
Agenda Descriptions 
The Agenda descriptions are intended to give notice to members of the public of a general summary of items of business to be transacted or discussed.  
 
Any person with a disability who requires a modification or accommodation in order to participate in this meeting should contact the OCTA at 
(714) 560-5611, no less than two (2) business days prior to this meeting to enable OCTA to make reasonable arrangements to assure accessibility to this 
meeting. 

 
 
 
 

Measure M2 Taxpayer Oversight Committee 
Teleconference Notice  

 
Committee Members:        
Frank Davies: Orange County Auditor-Controller 
Douglas P. Gillen 
Andrew Ramirez 
Harry Sloan 
Mark Kizzar 
Joseph McCarthy 
Tuan Nguyen 
Ajay Khetani 
Michael Pascual 
Shannon O’Toole 
Douglas Anderson 
 
Teleconference Sites:  
Orange County Transportation Authority - Headquarters  
550 S. Main Street 
Conference Room 07  
Orange, CA  
 
Guidance for Public Access to this Taxpayer Oversight Committee (TOC) Meeting: 
Governor Gavin Newsom enacted Executive Orders N-25-20 and N-29-20 authorizing a local legislative body to hold 
public meetings via teleconferencing and make public meetings accessible telephonically or electronically to all members 
of the public to promote social distancing due to the state and local State of Emergency resulting from the threat of Novel 
Coronavirus (COVID-19). 
 
In accordance with Executive Order N-29-20, and in order to ensure the safety of the Orange County Transportation 
Authority (OCTA) TOC Members and staff and for the purposes of limiting the risk of COVID-19, in-person public 
participation at public meetings of the OCTA will not be allowed during the time period covered by the above-referenced 
Executive Orders.  
 
Instead, members of the public can view a livestream of the August 10, 2021 5p.m. Taxpayer Oversight Committee 
meeting by clicking this link.  
 
Public comments may be submitted for the upcoming August 10, 2021 Taxpayer Oversight Committee meeting by 
emailing them to publiccomments@octa.net. If you wish to comment on a specific agenda item, please identify the 
committee name and item number in your email. All public comments that are timely received will be part of the public 
record and distributed to the TOC. Public comments will be made available to the public upon request. In order to ensure 
that staff has the ability to provide comments to the TOC Members in a timely manner, please submit your public 
comments 30 minutes prior to the start time of the Committee meeting date. 

https://www.youtube.com/user/goOCTA
mailto:publiccomments@octa.net


 

Agenda Descriptions 

The Agenda descriptions are intended to give notice to members of the public of a general summary of items of business to be transacted or discussed.  

 

Any person with a disability who requires a modification or accommodation in order to participate in this meeting should contact the OCTA at (714) 560 5611, 

no less than two (2) business days prior to this meeting to enable OCTA to make reasonable arrangements to assure accessibility to this meeting. 

 

 
 
 

 
 

  
 

  

 

   

 

  
 

   
 

 

 

  

 
 

 

  

 
 

 
 

   
 

     

 

    

 

   

 
 

    
 

  

 

  
 

  
 

  

 

   

   

Measure M2 Taxpayer Oversight Committee 
August 10, 2021 @ 5:00 p.m. 

 

The next meeting will be held on October 12, 2021 at 5pm

10. Adjournment

9. Committee Member Reports

8. Environmental Oversight Committee Report

7. Audit Subcommittee Report

6. Annual Eligibility Review Subcommittee Report

Staff Liaison – Alice Rogan, Marketing and Public Outreach DirectorD.

Alcock, Section Manager, M2 Local Programs

Measure  M2  Community-Based  Transit  Circulators Program (Project  V) – Joseph C.

Sales Tax Update – Sean Murdock, Director, Finance and AdministrationB.

  A. OC Streetcar Update – Tresa Oliveri, Community Relations Officer, Public Outreach

5. OCTA Staff Updates (5 Minutes)

Chris Boucly, Section Manager, Public Outreach
Steven King, Senior Program Manager, Capital Programs

C. Interstate 405 Improvement Project Update

Joseph Alcock, Section Manager, M2 Local Programs

B. Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs

Dan Phu, Program Manager, Planning

A. Environmental Programs Update

4. Presentation Items

Administration

3. Approval of Minutes/Attendance Report for June 8, 2021and File - Sean Finance and

2. Pledge of Allegiance

1. Welcome

AGENDA



 

 

 
 

 
 

INFORMATION ITEMS 
 
 

Staff Report Title  Board Meeting 
Date 

1. Coronavirus Update  June 14, 2021 

2. Annual Update to Investment Policy  June 14, 2021 

3. Measure M2 Environmental Mitigation Program Update  June 14, 2021 

4. Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs 
Semi-Annual Review - March 2021 

 June 14, 2021 

5. Measure M2 Eligibility Review Recommendations for 
Fiscal Year 2019-20 Expenditure Reports 

 June 14, 2021 

6. Regional Traffic Signal Synchronization Program 
Update 

 June 14, 2021 

7. Taxpayer Oversight Committee New Member 
Recruitment and Lottery 

 June 28, 2021 

8. Taxpayers Oversight Committee Measure M2 Annual 
Public Hearing Results and Compliance Finding 

 June 28, 2021 

9. Coronavirus Update  July 12, 2021 

10.  Orange County Transportation Authority Investment 
and Debt Programs Report - May 2021 

 July 12, 2021 

11. Measure M2 Community-Based Transit Circulators 
Program Project V Ridership Report 

 July 12, 2021 

12. OC Streetcar Project Quarterly Update  July 12, 2021 

13. Coronavirus Update  August 9, 2021 

14. Orange County Transportation Authority Investment 
and Debt Programs Report - June 2021 

 August 9, 2021 

15.  Measure M2 Comprehensive Transportation Funding 
Programs – 2022 Annual Calls for Projects 

 August 9, 2021 

16. Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs - 
Project X, Tier 1 Fiscal Year 2021-22 Call for Projects 
Programming Recommendations 

 August 9, 2021 

 

 Measure M2 Taxpayer Oversight Committee 



Measure M Taxpayer Oversight Committee 
Teleconference Site 

Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 S. Main Street, Orange CA, Room 07 

June 8, 2021 @ 6:00 p.m. 
 

MEETING MINUTES 
 

Committee Members Present: 
Frank Davies, Orange County Auditor-Controller, Chair 
Douglas P. Gillen, First District Representative 
Dr. Pauline Merry, First District Representative 
Mark Kizzar, Second District Representative, Co-Chairman 
Harry Sloan, Second District Representative 
Joseph McCarthy, Third District Representative 
Douglas Anderson, Fifth District Representative  
Jeffery Kaplan, Fifth District Representative  
 
Committee Members Absent: 
Tuan Nguyen, Third District Representative  
Larry Lang, Fourth District Representative 
Michael Pascual, Fourth District Representative 
 
Orange County Transportation Authority Staff Present: 
Joseph Alcock, Section Manager, Planning 
Christina Byrne, Department Manager, Public Outreach  
Adriann Cardoso, Department Manager, Planning  
Francesca Ching, Measure M Program Manager 
Jared Hill, Community Relations Specialist 
Ross Lew, Senior Program Manager, Capital Programs 
Sean Murdock, Finance and Administration Director 
Calina North, Principal Community Relations Specialist, Public Outreach 
Alice Rogan, Director, Marketing & Public Outreach 
Nicci Wright, Principal Community Relations Specialist, Public Outreach 

 
 

1. Welcome 
Chair Frank Davies welcomed everyone to the Orange County Transportation 
Authority (OCTA) Taxpayer Oversight Committee (TOC) meeting.   
 
Alice Rogan said there were no public comments.  She went over protocols and took 
roll call. 

 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

Chair Frank Davies led the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.   
 



Taxpayer Oversight Committee  Page 2 
Minutes/Attendance Report for June 8, 2021 

 
 

3. Annual Public Hearing 
A. Overview of Taxpayers Oversight Committee (TOC) 

Chair Frank Davies opened the Annual Public Hearing.  He provided a brief 
overview of Measure M2 (OC Go), the TOC and the TOC responsibilities. 
 

B. Review of the 2020 Taxpayer Oversight Committee Actions 
Co-Chair Mark Kizzar described the activities of the TOC during the past year.  
Activities included: conducting the 2020 Measure M2 Annual Hearing (finding the 
OCTA is proceeding in accordance with the Measure M2 Ordinance for the 29th 
year in a row), reviewing and commenting on the Fiscal Year 2020 Local 
Transportation Authority (LTA) Audit Results, reviewing the 35 local jurisdictions 
annual eligibility documents, monitoring the sales tax revenue forecasts and 
Covid-19 impacts to Measure M2, reviewing OCTA investment reports and review 
of the updated Measure M2 Next-10 Plan.  Recently the TOC learned that OCTA 
anticipates completion of 87% of the M2 Freeway Programs in two-thirds of the 
allocated time.  This results in OCTA bringing congestion and traffic relief to 
Orange County commuters more quickly than planned. 
 

C. Annual Eligibility Review (AER) Subcommittee Report 
Harry Sloan, AER Subcommittee Chair, provided a review of committee 
responsibilities and findings. The AER Subcommittee received, reviewed, and 
affirmed that all local jurisdictions had submitted all appropriate documentation.  
These documents were advanced to the full TOC for consideration and review.  
The full TOC concurred with the AER Subcommittee on October 13, 2020 and 
then on December 14, 2020 the OCTA Board of Directors found that all 35 Orange 
County local jurisdictions eligible to continue receiving Measure M2 net revenues.  
All local jurisdictions submitted required Fiscal Year ending in 2020 Measure M2 
Expenditures Reports by the December 31, 2020 deadline.  The AER 
Subcommittee affirmed that it received and reviewed Expenditure Reports for all 
Orange County local jurisdictions.  This was affirmed by the full TOC and it will be 
forwarded to the OCTA Board of Directors for consideration on June 14, 2021. 
 

D. Audit Subcommittee Report 
Chair Frank Davies introduced the Audit Subcommittee members and reviewed 
their responsibilities and findings.  The Audit Subcommittee reviewed Agreed-
Upon Procedures to be applied to the cities selected for review and selected a 
sample of cities for the local fair share and senior mobility program fund reviews.  
For the Fiscal Year end June 30, 2020, the Audit Subcommittee selected seven 
cities for review of local fair share and six cities for review of senior mobility 
program activities.  The County of Orange was also selected for review of its 
senior non-emergency medical transportation activities.  The committee also 
reviewed OCTA’s financial statements, compliance reports and external auditor’s 
opinion.  The external auditors issued an unmodified or “clean” opinion of the OC 
LTA financial statements for the year ending June 30, 2020.  The subcommittee 
reviewed all the reports and results provided by the auditors relevant to Measure 



Taxpayer Oversight Committee  Page 3 
Minutes/Attendance Report for June 8, 2021 

 
 

M2 and based on those reports,  the Audit Subcommittee found that OCTA has 
been proceeding in accordance with Measure M2 Ordinance No. 3 for FY 2019-
2020.   
 

E. Public Comments 
Alice Rogan said there were no public comments submitted. 
  

F. Adjournment of Public Hearing 
The Measure M2 Taxpayer Oversight Committee Public Hearing adjourned at 6:20 
p.m.   
 
A motion was made by Dr. Pauline Merry, seconded by Joseph McCarthy and 
carried unanimously to adjourn the 2021 Measure M2 Taxpayer Oversight 
Committee Public Hearing. 
 

4. Approval of Minutes/Attendance Report for April 13, 2021 
Chair Frank Davies asked if there are any corrections to the Minutes/Attendance 
Report for April 13, 2021.   
 
A motion was made by Mark Kizzar, seconded by Doug Gillen and carried 
unanimously to approve the April 13, 2021 TOC Minutes and the Attendance Report. 
 

5. Action Items 
A. 2021 Measure M Annual Hearing Follow-Up and Compliance Findings 

Chair Frank Davies said one of the primary responsibilities of the TOC is to 
determine if OCTA is proceeding in accordance with the renewed Measure M2 
Transportation Ordinance and Investment Plan.  The Audit subcommittee 
reviewed all information and found that the OCTA has been acting in accordance 
with renewed Measure M2 Transportation Ordinance and Investment Plan for 
Fiscal Year 2019/2020.   
 
A motion was made by Harry Sloan, seconded by Dr. Pauline Merry and carried 
unanimously to affirm that the Taxpayer Oversight Committee has confirmed 
OCTA has been proceeding in accordance with the renewed Measure M2 
Transportation Ordinance and Investment Plan for Fiscal Year 2019/2020. 
 
Chair Frank Davies said he is proud to announce that this is the 30th year the TOC 
has found OCTA proceeding in accordance with Measure M. 
 

B. M2 Quarterly Revenue and Expenditure Report (March 2021) 
Sean Murdock presented the Measure M2 Quarterly Revenue and Expenditure 
Report to the Audit Subcommittee.  He commented on the sales tax revenue 
outlook.  Sean said in the third quarter of this year there was a large turnaround 
in sales tax revenues collected.  He said the third quarter true-up payment from 
the sales tax receipts which ended in March was up 28% percent when compared 



Taxpayer Oversight Committee  Page 4 
Minutes/Attendance Report for June 8, 2021 

 
 

to the same quarter last year.  He said the impacts of the pandemic started in the 
latter part of March last year so the quarter ending in March 2020 was during the 
pandemic and last year’s numbers were pre-pandemic.  He said for the first nine 
months of this fiscal year there is 2.3% growth overall.  He said this is remarkable 
when those nine months were impacted by Covid.  Sean said there was roughly 
$85 million in Measure M2 expenditures in the third quarter.  He said $53 million 
of that was in the Freeway Program (largely spent on the I-405 Project), $23 
million spent in the Streets and Roads Program, and $9 million in the Transit 
Program (with much going towards the OC Streetcar Project). 
 
Committee Member Comments: 
Douglas Anderson asked if all the bond debt service payments have been made 
in a timely manner.  Sean Murdock said yes, all payments have been made as 
scheduled. 
 
Mark Kizzar asked about the impact to the original Fiscal Year Budget.  Sean 
Murdock said OCTA is well ahead of the Budget.  He said OCTA originally 
predicted a 4% decrease in revenue collected, but now OCTA is looking at an 
increase of 2.3% and it will likely be higher during the last quarter.  Sean said 
OCTA was very conservative when budgeting for this year due to the pandemic.  
He said OCTA has collected about $30 million more than expected. 
 
A motion was made by Joseph McCarthy, seconded by Mark Kizzar and carried 
unanimously to affirm receipt and review of the M2 Quarterly Revenue and 
Expenditure Report (March 2021) by the Taxpayer Oversight Committee. 
 

6. Presentation Items 
A. SR-55 Improvement Project Update (I-405 to I-5) 

Ross Lew provided an update on the SR-55 Improvement Project.  Ross shared 
a map of the project area, provided background on the project, showed the project 
improvements, and shared funding sources.  Ross said that OCTA received $140 
million in state funding which lowered the amount paid by Measure M2. He 
provided an update on the design, right-of-way, and utility work.  Ross shared the 
project schedule with construction slated to start in May 2022 and end in 2025.  He 
provided dates for next steps on the project. 
 
Calina North provided information regarding outreach strategies and tactics that 
are generally planned before and during construction.  Outreach is currently 
identifying key stakeholders and target audiences. <The full presentation can be 
found on OCTA.net> 
 
Committee Member Comments: 
Dr. Pauline Merry said it looks like OCTA is near people’s backyards and asked 
how OCTA works with these homeowners.  Ross Lew said any work OCTA does 
goes through a planning process which in this case began about 14 years ago 



Taxpayer Oversight Committee  Page 5 
Minutes/Attendance Report for June 8, 2021 

 
 

with a report that outlines improvements followed by preliminary engineering., 
During the environmental phase there is robust community outreach.  Once in the 
final design phase the impacts to properties are refined and the public has an 
opportunity to address any concerns.  Calina North said typically impacts are 
studied for a number of years and mitigations measures are proposed.  She said 
construction phase specific outreach begins about one year in advance to let the 
public know about the construction schedule and what to expect.  She said during 
construction OCTA does everything possible to mitigate inconveniences to the 
public. 
 

B. Measure M2 Quarterly Progress Report – Third Quarter 
Francesca Ching presented the Measure M2 Quarterly Progress Report for 
January-March 2021. She provided an overview of the progress report.  
Francesca showed program highlights for each component of Measure M2.  She 
said the Project Management Office continues to monitor the impacts of COVID-
19, sales tax revenue receipts, market conditions, and capital projects.  Francesca 
said the Triennial Performance Assessment will be conducted and concluded in 
2022.  <The full presentation is available upon request.> 
 

7. Selection of Co-Chair 

Chair Frank Davies said recognition of out-going members will take place later in the 

agenda.  Co-Chair Mark Kizzar is one of those members and it is time to select a new 

Co-Chair for the Fiscal Year 2021-2022.  Tuan Nguyen expressed interest in the 

position of Co-Chair.  Unfortunately, he was unable to attend tonight’s meeting.  He 

asked if anyone else was interested.  

 

A motion was made by Harry Sloan, seconded by Joseph McCarthy and carried 

unanimously to select Tuan Nguyen as the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 TOC Co-Chair. 

 

8. Subcommittee Selection 

Alice Rogan said the TOC has two standing subcommittees – the Audit 
Subcommittee and the Annual Eligibility Review (AER) Subcommittee.  In order to 
comply with the Brown Act no subcommittee can have a majority of TOC members 
on a subcommittee.  Alice described each committee. 
 

Audit Subcommittee Annual Eligibility Review Environmental Oversight 
Frank Davies Douglas Anderson  
Harry Sloan Douglas Gillan  

Tuan Nguyen* Joseph McCarthy  
Michael Pasquel*   

* Currently sitting on the Audit Subcommittee, but not in attendance to confirm. 

 
9. OCTA Staff Updates 



Taxpayer Oversight Committee  Page 6 
Minutes/Attendance Report for June 8, 2021 

 
 

A. Comprehensive Transportation Programs – 2021 Call for Projects Programming 
Recommendations – Joseph Alcock said last summer the OCTA Board 
authorized $30 million - $22 million for the Project O call and $8 million for the 
Project P call.  OCTA received a total of 12 Project O applications requesting a 
total of $27.2 million and six Project P applications requesting of $15.2 
million.  During early 2021, staff reviewed the applications for eligibility, 
consistency, adherence to the guidelines, and overall program objectives. In 
May, staff recommended and the OCTA Board approved $20.2 million in funding 
for nine Project O applications in the cities of Irvine, Garden Grove, Orange, 
Santa Ana, Yorba Linda and the County of Orange and $8.5 million for three 
Project P (signal synchronization) projects in the cities of Lake Forest, Irvine and 
Santa Ana. Joseph said for full information see the board item attached to 
tonight’s agenda.   
 

B. Measure M2 Ordinance No. 3 Amendment – Adriann Cardoso reminded the 
committee that at a previous meeting the TOC heard that an amendment would 
be initiated to the Measure M2 Ordinance for the local jurisdictions Maintenance 
of Effort (MOE) requirements.  The amendment provides flexibility to local 
jurisdictions for one additional year due to the pandemic.  Adriann said that the 
MOE is one of 13 requirements that local jurisdictions must meet in order to 
receive Measure M2 net revenues.  As an update she shared that on May 24, 
2021, the OCTA Board of Directors held a hearing and approved the amendment. 
This amendment would provide flexibility to jurisdictions who are receiving lower 
general funds revenues than they did before Covid. The amendment will become 
formally effective on July 8, 2021. 

 
C. I-405 Improvement Project (Project K) – Nicci Wright reviewed engagement 

strategies.  She talked about the 405Forward (pilot) Program which is a free 
business outreach program that highlights local businesses.  OCTA is partnering 
with the local chambers of commerce on the project.  Nicci said the Magnolia 
Street Bridge recently opened (the fifth bridge to open in the project area).  The 
Warner Avenue Bridge recently closed and will be closed for 23 months.  
Information on all milestones are provided in the slide presentation. <The full 
presentation can be found on OCTA.net> 
 

D. Staff Liaison Update – Alice Rogan reflected on the past year.  She said out-going 
members will missed.  Those members are Dr. Pauline Merry, Mark Kizzar, Larry 
Lang, and Jeffery Kaplan.  On behalf of the taxpayers, OCTA staff and the Orange 
County Grand Jurors Association we thank you. Your time and commitment to this 
committee it is deeply appreciated.  Resolutions of appreciation from the OCTA 
Board of Directors will be mailed to the out-going members.  Alice said please 
reach out to her if there is anything in the future she can help with.  OCTAs   
encourages you to reapply to the committee if ever interested.  Alice thanked the 
TOC for finding OCTA in compliance for the 30th year.  OCTA takes transparency 
very seriously.   



Taxpayer Oversight Committee  Page 7 
Minutes/Attendance Report for June 8, 2021 

 
 

 
Chair Frank Davis said thank you to the outgoing members. 

 
10. Committee Member Reports 

Dr. Pauline Merry said the Environmental Oversight Committee did not have its last 
meeting but received an update memo.  She said the highlights include the following.  
In October work began on the Pacific Crest Restoration Program.  The work includes 
removal and replacement of old barbed wire, removement of bike jumps, installation 
of restoration signs, posts for wildlife cameras and removal of invasive plants.  In 
addition, wildlife surveys are being conducted on the OCTA preserves which are 
completed every four years.  These surveys will help OCTA to understand the species 
populations as well as inform future land management efforts.  Dr. Merry said OCTA 
has also made five endowment deposits to fund the long-term management of 
OCTA’s seven wilderness preserves. This fund will have $34.5 at the end of Measure 
M2 to continue helping these preserves. 
 

11. Adjournment 
Chair Frank Davies adjourned the meeting and thanked staff for presentations and 
coordinating the meeting. 
 
The next meeting will be held via teleconference on August 10, 2021 at 5pm. 



Taxpayer Oversight Committee 
Fiscal Year 2020-2021 
Attendance Record 

 
 

X = Present               E = Excused Absence  * = Absence Pending Approval U = Unexcused Absence              -- = Resigned                                                                                                                                                                                                                      

  

July 11-Aug. Sept. 13-Oct. Nov. 8-Dec. Jan.  9-Feb. March 13-Apr. May 8-Jun. Meeting Date 

Douglas P. Gillen X X  X  M  E  X  X 

       E       

Pauline Merry X X  X  E  X  X  X 

       T       

Joseph McCarthy X X  X  I  X  X  X 

      N       

Mark Kizzar X X  X  G  X  X  X 

             

Harry Sloan X X  X  C  X  X  X 

      A       

Tuan Nguyen X X  X  N  X  X  * 

      C       

Larry A. Lang X X  X  E  X  X  * 

Fairport      L       

Michael Pascual X X  X  L  X  E  * 

      E       

Jeffrey Kaplan X X  X  D  X  X  X 

             

Douglas Anderson X X  X    X  X  X 

             

Frank Davies X X  X    X  X  X 

Absences Pending Approval 

Meeting Date Name Reason 

     June 8, 2021          Larry A. Lang   
     June 8, 2021          Tuan Nguyen    
     June 8, 2021                         Michael Pascual         Family matter 







                                                                                       COMMITTEE TRANSMITTAL 

Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California 92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282) 

 
June 14, 2021 
 
 
To: Members of the Board of Directors 
    
From: Andrea West, Interim Clerk of the Board  

Subject: Measure M2 Environmental Mitigation Program Update 

Regional Planning and Highways Committee Meeting of June 7, 2021 
 
Present: Directors Bartlett, Chaffee, Delgleize, Harper, Hernandez, Muller, 

Murphy, and Sarmiento 
Absent: None 
 

 
Committee Vote 
 
Following the roll call vote, this item was declared passed 8-0 by the Members 
present.  

 
Committee Recommendation 
 
Receive and file as an information item. 



Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California 92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282) 

June 7, 2021 
 
 
To: Regional Highways and Planning Committee 
 
From: Darrell E. Johnson, Chief Executive Officer 
 
Subject: Measure M2 Environmental Mitigation Program Update 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

    
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

expedite the permitting process.
referred to as the Regulatory Agencies, have also established a framework to
(ACOE) and the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB), commonly
the Preserves. In a parallel process, the United States Army Corps of Engineers
(Attachment A). An endowment was established for the long-term management of
conservation properties (Preserves) and funded 12 habitat restoration projects
the Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA) has purchased seven
referred to as Wildlife Agencies) in 2017. Consistent with the Conservation Plan,
Wildlife (CDFW) and the United States Fish and Wildlife Service (collectively
Plan (Conservation Plan), approved by the California Department of Fish and
the development of a Natural Community Conservation Plan/Habitat Conservation
process through state and federal Resource Agencies. This was achieved through
to mitigate certain impacts of 13 M2 freeway projects and streamline the approval
Measure M2 (M2) includes the Environmental Mitigation Program (EMP) intended

Background

Receive and file as an information item.

Recommendation

Mitigation Program is presented.
Plan/Habitat  Conservation  Plan. A biannual  status  report of  the  Environmental
habitat restoration projects as part of the Natural Community Conservation
Mitigation Program has acquired conservation properties and provided funding for
approvals from the state and federal Resource Agencies. The Environmental
environmental impacts of 13 freeway projects in exchange for streamlined project
Measure M2 includes a program to deliver comprehensive mitigation for specific

Overview



Measure M2 Environmental Mitigation Program Update Page 2

 

 

The development of the Conservation Plan, the subsequent purchase of these 
Preserves, and the restoration projects have largely met the intent of the EMP, 
and the mitigation needs of the M2 freeway projects.  Many of the restoration 
projects are close to or have obtained approvals from the Wildlife Agencies. As a 
commitment of the Conservation Plan, OCTA is required to prepare an annual 
report on the implementation processes. The 2020 Annual Conservation Plan 
Report is complete and is being reviewed by the Wildlife Agencies. Once 
approved, it will be provided to the Environment Oversight Committee (EOC) and 
included in the next EMP staff report.  
 
Discussion 
 
OCTA Restoration Projects Fire Repair 
 
The 2020 Silverado and Bond fires burned over 100 acres of OCTA-funded 
restoration projects. Three of the Irvine Ranch Conservancy (IRC)-managed 
restoration projects, including Agua Chinon, Bee Flat, and West Loma were 
impacted by the fires. These projects, along with the fire perimeters, are shown in 
Attachment B. IRC staff provided an overview of these impacts and proposed 
repair measures for the West Loma and Agua Chinon restoration projects during 
the February 3, 2021, EOC meeting. The Bee Flat project area was completed in 
2020, requiring no additional efforts from OCTA. 
 
Due to the fire damage, additional tasks will be required to meet the established 
success criteria for the West Loma and Agua Chinon projects. These tasks include 
labor and materials associated with increased weed control needs, re-seeding, 
reinstallation of plantings, and general maintenance. It is anticipated to take an 
additional two to three years to meet the required success criteria for each of these 
restoration projects. Updates for these projects as well as for the OCTA 
Conservation Plan Annual Reports will continue to be provided to the EOC.  

 
Pacific Horizon Preserve OCTA Restoration Efforts 
 
In October 2020, work began on the OCTA Pacific Horizon Restoration Project to 
decommission a trail segment. This work is focused on preserving the  
many-stemmed dudleya, which is a rare plant, as well as a covered species 
identified in OCTA M2 Conservation Plan. OCTA obtained multiple permits and 
approvals prior to initiating this work. Contractors completed various tasks on the 
Preserve, including the removal and replacement of old barbed wire, removal of 
bicycle jumps, installation of restoration signs and posts for wildlife cameras, and 
removal of invasive plants. In March of this year, OCTA with the help of the  
Laguna Canyon Foundation, conducted additional outreach to the community to 
request cooperation in staying off this decommissioned portion of trail. In addition, 
invasive weed treatment occurred this winter adjacent to the OCTA-targeted 
restoration area. This effort also included treatment of invasive weeds on adjacent 
County-owned land (Attachment C).  



Measure M2 Environmental Mitigation Program Update Page 3

 

 

Trabuco Rose Preserve Gully Restoration 
 
OCTA staff began the implementation of an erosion stabilization project at the 
Trabuco Rose Preserve.  Ongoing erosion has created a large gully in an 
unnamed tributary. The gully has been increasing in size, which has impacted the 
adjacent main access road.   
 
Phase one of the restoration efforts included the placement of fabric and rock 
along approximately 80 linear feet of the upstream portion of the gully to buttress 
the sides. The buttressing reinforces the oak habitat and access road. The rock 
placement has been designed to mimic a natural creek and allows the water to 
flow down the gully gradually. Phase two of the project will continue the placement 
of rock and fabric for the downstream portion of the gully, terminating at  
Hickey Creek. The design will slow the water, ultimately flowing down into a larger 
step pool-like feature (waterfall) before meeting Hickey Creek.  Native plants will 
be installed to help stabilize the rock and soften this new feature.  
 
Phase one was completed in April 2021 (Attachment D). Staff worked with the 
Wildlife Agencies, the ACOE, the SWRCB, as well as the County to obtain the 
necessary permits/approvals. Phase two will require additional design and 
construction. OCTA is currently underway with a procurement for the design of 
this phase two. It is anticipated that the project will be completed in fiscal year 
2022-23. 
 
OCTA Preserves Fire Management Plans Update 
 
As required by the Conservation Plan, OCTA began developing fire management 
plans for the Preserves in 2018. Each Preserve will have its own separate plan. 
The plans will provide guidelines for decision-making at all stages, including fire 
prevention, pre-fire vegetation management, suppression activities, and  
post-fire responses that are compatible with conservation and stewardship 
responsibilities. This includes annual vegetation thinning on the Preserves near 
homes and maintenance of the preserve access roads. An overview and status 
was provided to the EOC in February 2020.  
 
The first plan for the Silverado Chaparral Preserve has been reviewed and 
approved by the Orange County Fire Authority. Staff is now coordinating with the 
Wildlife Agencies for approval. The subsequent plans are anticipated to be 
completed in 2021. Once completed, they will be shared with the EOC as well as 
interested stakeholders.  
 
Clean Water Act Permits Update 
 
The M2 freeway projects are anticipated to impact certain waters that are subject 
to regulation by the ACOE, the SWRCB, and the CDFW, and will require 
mitigation. Before construction activities can occur, OCTA must obtain sections 



Measure M2 Environmental Mitigation Program Update Page 4

 

 

401 and 404 Clean Water Act permits from the aforementioned Regulatory 
Agencies. The Conservation Plan mitigation was utilized to help obtain Clean 
Water Act permits. This has streamlined the project-level permitting processes. 
These efforts are the result of years of collaboration between OCTA and the 
Regulatory Agencies and constitute another groundbreaking milestone for the M2 
EMP.  
 
Freeway Projects Update 
 
The following construction projects have benefited from the EMP. Without the 

additional mitigation-related requirements and 
unknown costs could have been incurred, resulting in increased project cost and 
schedule risks.  
 
 Project C (Interstate 5 Improvement Project from State Route 73 [SR-73] to  

El Toro Road); and 
 Project K (Interstate 405 Improvement Project from SR-73 to the  

Los Angeles County Line). 
 
A strong partnership has been forged through collaboration with the environmental 
community as exemplified by their participation on the EOC.  Furthermore, 
substantial risk reduction from the threat of potential lawsuits has occurred 
because of these partnerships. 
 
EMP Endowment Fund Investment Report  
 
Conservation Plan permits were issued by the Wildlife Agencies in mid-2017 
streamlining the M2 environmental process.  This allowed OCTA to expedite the 
M2 freeway projects. The Conservation Plan requires the establishment of a  
$34.5 million endowment fund for long-term management of the Preserves.  
To date, OCTA has made five endowment deposits. Quarterly investment reports 
are provided to the Board of Directors (Board), with the most recent one presented 
in May 2021. As of March 31, 2021, the balance was $18,216,874. The balance is 
above the fiscal year 2021 target of $16,323,789. Staff will continue to provide 
regular endowment updates to the Board, Finance and Administration Committee, 
and the EOC. 
 
Hikes and Equestrian Rides 
 
Since March 2020, OCTA has postponed the docent-led hikes and equestrian 
rides.  This is in compliance with the state  stay-at-home order to protect the 
health and well-being of all Californian residents and establish consistency across 
the state to slow the spread of the coronavirus (COVID-19). OCTA staff is 

, if current COVID-19  
  



Measure M2 Environmental Mitigation Program Update Page 5

 

 

trends continue. OCTA will release the revised 2021 Wilderness Preserve Hiking 
and Equestrian Riding Tour calendar once it is determined safe to resume public 
events. 
 
Summary 
 
M2 includes an EMP that provides funding for programmatic mitigation to offset 
certain impacts of the 13 M2 freeway projects. To expedite the delivery of the  
M2 freeway projects, this program was initiated to implement early project 
mitigation through preservation and habitat restoration. This program is 
administered through a Conservation Plan, which was approved by the  
Wildlife Agencies in mid-2017. To maximize the benefits of the investments, OCTA 
has utilized some of that same mitigation to obtain Clean Water Act permits.  
 
Attachments 
 
A. OCTA Preserves and Funded Restoration Projects 
B. OCTA Preserves and Restoration Projects Near Bond and Silverado Fires 
C. Pacific Horizon Preserve OCTA Restoration Efforts Map 
D. OCTA Trabuco Rose Gully Location Map and Photo 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Prepared by: 

 

Approved by: 

 
Lesley Hill Kia Mortazavi 
Environmental Mitigation  
Project Manager  
(714) 560-5759 

Executive Director, Planning 
(714) 560-5741 





ATTACHMENT B



 

Page 1 of 4 

Pacific Horizon Preserve OCTA Restoration Efforts Map



Page 2 of 4 



Page 3 of 4 



Page 4 of 4 



OCTA Trabuco Rose Gully Location Map and Photo

1



2



3



                                                                                       COMMITTEE TRANSMITTAL 

Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California 92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282) 

 
June 14, 2021 
 
 
To: Members of the Board of Directors 
    
From: Andrea West, Interim Clerk of the Board  

Subject: Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs Semi-Annual 
Review  March 2021 

Regional Planning and Highways Committee Meeting of June 7, 2021 
 
Present: Directors Bartlett, Chaffee, Delgleize, Harper, Hernandez, Muller, 

Murphy, and Sarmiento 
Absent: None 
 

 
Committee Vote 
 
Following the roll call vote, this item was declared passed 8-0 by the Members 
present.  

 
Committee Recommendations 
 
A. Approve requested adjustments to Comprehensive Transportation 

Funding Programs projects, Local Fair Share, and Senior Mobility 
Program funds. 
 

B. Due to the impacts of the coronavirus, approve an exception to the 
Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs Guidelines for 
Environmental Cleanup Program Tier I projects in order for project 
award delays to be granted. 

 













ATTACHMENT A



1 

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
March 2021 Semi-Annual Review Adjustment Requests



2 

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
March 2021 Semi-Annual Review Adjustment Requests



3 

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
March 2021 Semi-Annual Review Adjustment Requests



4 

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
March 2021 Semi-Annual Review Adjustment Requests



5 

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
March 2021 Semi-Annual Review Adjustment Requests



6 

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
March 2021 Semi-Annual Review Adjustment Requests



7 

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
March 2021 Semi-Annual Review Adjustment Requests



8 

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
March 2021 Semi-Annual Review Adjustment Requests





















                                                                                       COMMITTEE TRANSMITTAL 

Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California 92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282) 

 
 
August 9, 2021 
 
 
To: Members of the Board of Directors 
    
From: Andrea West, Interim Clerk of the Board  

Subject: Measure M2 Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs  
2022 Annual Calls for Projects 

Regional Planning and Highways Committee Meeting of August 2, 2021 
 
Present: Directors Bartlett, Chaffee, Delgleize, Harper, Hernandez, 

Murphy, and Sarmiento 
Absent: Director Muller 
 

 
Committee Vote 
 
Following the roll call vote, this item was declared passed 7-0 by the Members 
present.  

 
Committee Recommendations 

 
A. Approve proposed revisions to the Comprehensive Transportation 

Funding Programs Guidelines. 
 

B. Authorize staff to issue the 2022 annual call for projects for the 
Regional Capacity Program. 
 

C. Authorize staff to issue the 2022 annual call for projects for the 
Regional Traffic Signal Synchronization Program. 
 



















B













 

 
 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 





 

  

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 





 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 





 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 



 
 
 



 

 
 
 
 

 

 
 











 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 



 







 





 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 
 



 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 



 



 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 

 

 



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 











 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 



 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 



 
 
 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 



 

 
 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 













 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 



 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 









 

 

 

 



 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



 



 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 





 

 



 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 







 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California 92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282) 

August 2, 2021 
 
 
To: Regional Planning and Highways Committee 
 
From: Darrell E. Johnson, Chief Executive Officer 
 
Subject: Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs  Project X  

Tier 1 Fiscal Year 2021-22 Call for Projects Programming 
Recommendations 

 
 
Overview 
 

provides Measure M2 funding for water quality improvement projects to abate 
transportation-related pollution. The fiscal year 2021-22 Tier 1 Grant Program 
call for projects was issued on February 8, 2021. The evaluations are complete, 
and a list of projects recommended for funding is presented for review and 
approval. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Approve ten projects in the amount of $2,697,424 for the 2021 Environmental 
Cleanup Program Tier 1 call for projects. 
 
Background 
 
In May 2010, the Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA) Board of 
Directors (Board) approved a two-tiered approach to fund the Measure M2 (M2) 
Project X Environmental Cleanup Program (ECP). The Tier 1 Grant Program is 
designed to mitigate the more visible forms of pollutants, such as litter and 
debris, which collect on roadways and in catch basins (i.e., storm drains) prior to 
being deposited in waterways and the ocean. The Tier 2 Grant Program provides 
funding for larger (i.e., treating catchment areas of 50 acres or greater) 
potentially multijurisdictional, capital-intensive structural treatment best 
management practice (BMP) types of projects. 
 
Tier 1 funds are made available through a competitive call for projects (call) to  
Orange County local jurisdictions to purchase equipment and provide upgrades 
to existing catch basins and other related BMPs that supplement current 
requirements. Examples include screens, filters, and inserts for catch basins,  
as well as other devices designed to remove the above-mentioned pollutants. 
 

 



Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs Project X
Tier 1 Fiscal Year 2021-22 Call for Projects Programming 
Recommendations 

Page 2
 

 

 

Proposed projects must demonstrate a direct nexus to the reduction of 
transportation-related pollution, as developed and defined by the OCTA 
Environmental Cleanup Allocation Committee (ECAC). 
 
To date, the Board has approved funding for 189 Tier 1 projects, totaling 
approximately $27.4 million. It is estimated that nearly 33 million gallons of trash 
have been captured since the inception of the ECP in 2011. On February 8, 2021, 
the Board approved the issuance of the current fiscal year 2021-22 ECP Tier 1 call, 
making available up to $2.8 million to support an 11th call.  OCTA publicized the 
call on numerous occasions with the OCTA Technical Advisory Committee. Staff 
also presented a guidelines update and call overview to the Orange County 
Stormwater National Pollution Discharge Elimination System General Permittees 
committee meeting in March.  
 
Discussion 
 
The 2021 ECP Tier 1 call deadline to submit applications was May 6, 2021. 
Eleven applications were submitted from ten local jurisdictions. All applications 
were reviewed and evaluated by an application review committee consisting of 
OCTA staff, the ECAC Chairman, and an additional member of the ECAC. 
Project applications were evaluated based on the following Board-approved 
selection criteria: 
 
 Project need and proposed benefit to water quality; 
 Cost/benefit analyses; 
 Pollution-reducing benefits; 
 Effectiveness of the proposed BMP;  
 Evaluation of other BMP types;  
 Efficiency/effectiveness of the proposed BMP; 
 Project readiness;  
 Secondary attributes;  
 Proposed methodology for measuring pollution-reduction benefits after 

installation; and 
 Adequacy of proposed operations and maintenance plans.  

 
On July 8, 2021, the ECAC met and endorsed 
conclusions and recommended that the ten projects identified in Attachment A 
be submitted for Board consideration and approval. If this recommendation is 
approved by the Board, it would result in a total of $2,697,424 in M2 Project X 
Tier I funding. 
 



Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs Project X
Tier 1 Fiscal Year 2021-22 Call for Projects Programming 
Recommendations 

Page 3
 

 

 

The recommended projects met overall program objectives and scored well in 
terms of satisfying the evaluation criteria requirements listed above. The one 
eligible project that is not currently recommended for funding also met these 
requirements. However, it was the lowest-scoring project and there was not 
sufficient remaining programming capacity to fully fund this project. Accordingly, 
this applicant is encouraged to work with OCTA to update its application and 
reapply in a future call. 
 
Attachment A includes project-specific information, final scores, and 
recommended award amounts. A brief overview of the project types that are 
recommended for funding is provided below. Attachment B provides visual 
samples of recommended project unit types.  
 
 Catch basin debris screen devices: These devices prevent debris from 

entering the storm drain system through catch basins and primarily 
consist of connector pipe screen, automatic retractable screen, full trash 
capture, and grated inlet trash screen types of devices. 

 A debris separating baffle box is an advanced stormwater treatment 
system utilizing a non-clogging screen technology and hydrodynamic 
separation to capture pollutants. The non-clogging screening system 
stores trash and debris in a dry state, suspended above sedimentation 
chambers, thereby allowing for easier maintenance. 

 An in-line trash trap unit is a precast concrete structure designed to treat 
pollutants present in stormwater and urban runoff through the capturing 
of trash, solids, and floatable debris in disposable mesh nets from 
incoming flows. The design of the in-line trash trap unit effectively uses 
the energy of water flow to drive pollutants into nets in order to capture 
and separate trash, debris, and sediment, including all particles larger 
than one millimeter. Oil-absorbing material can also be placed inside or 
outside the nets in order to absorb oil sheen and grease. 

 Bioretention basins are landscaped depressions or shallow basins used 
to slow and treat stormwater runoff. Stormwater is directed to the basin 
and then percolates through the system where it is treated by several 
physical, chemical, and biological processes. The cleaned water is then 
able to infiltrate native soils or can be directed to nearby stormwater 
drains or receiving waters. 

 
Also, as part of this program, local agencies must agree to contribute a minimum 
match of 20 percent of total project costs. All the recommended projects met this 
requirement and are recommended for programming approval. 
 



Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs Project X
Tier 1 Fiscal Year 2021-22 Call for Projects Programming 
Recommendations 

Page 4
 

 

 

Next Steps 
 
If these programming recommendations are approved by the Board, each 
agency that is awarded funding will be required to execute a letter amendment 
to their Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs (CTFP) master 
agreement prior to project implementation. OCTA will then monitor project status 
and implementation through the CTFP semi-annual review process. 
 
Summary 
 
OCTA, in conjunction with local agencies, implements projects that support 
water quality improvements related to transportation infrastructure. Staff is 
seeking Board approval to program $2,697,424 in ECP funds to ten local agency 
projects. The improvement includes 1,350 connector pipe screens units,  
670 automatic retractable screens devices, seven full trash capture units,  
one grated inlet trash screen unit, one debris separating baffle box, one in-line 
trash trap unit, and one bioretention basin. 
 
Attachments 
 
A. Project X 2021 Tier 1 Call for Projects, Programming Recommendations 
B. Visual Samples of Recommended Best Management Practice Project 

Types* 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by:     Approved by: 

 

 
Joseph Alcock     Kia Mortazavi 
Section Manager M2 Local Programs  Executive Director, Planning 
(714) 560-5372     (714) 560-5741 

 











Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California 92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282) 

August 2, 2021 
 
 
To: Regional Planning and Highways Committee 
 
From: Darrell E. Johnson, Chief Executive Officer 
 
Subject: Interstate 405 Improvement Project Update 
 
 
Overview 
 
The Orange County Transportation Authority is currently underway with the 
implementation of the Interstate 405 Improvement Project.  This report provides a 
project update.  
 
Recommendation 
 
Receive and file as an information item. 
 
Background 
 
The Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA), in cooperation with the 
California Department of Transportation and the cities of Costa Mesa,  
Fountain Valley, Huntington Beach, Seal Beach, and Westminster, is 
implementing the Interstate 405 (I-405) Improvement Project between  
State Route 73 (SR-73) and Interstate 605 (I-605) (Project).  The Project will  
add one general purpose lane in each direction from Euclid Street to I-605, 
consistent with Measure M2 Project K, and will add an additional lane in each 
direction that will combine with the existing high-occupancy vehicle lane to 
provide dual express lanes in each direction of I-405 from SR-73 to I-605, 
otherwise known as the 405 Express Lanes. 
 
On November 14, 2016, the OCTA Board of Directors (Board) awarded the 
design-build (DB) contract to OC 405 Partners (OC405), a joint venture.  OCTA 
executed the DB contract with OC405 and issued Notice to Proceed (NTP)  
No. 1 on January 31, 2017.  NTP No. 1 was a limited NTP for mobilization, design, 
and administrative activities.  On July 26, 2017, the Transportation Infrastructure 
Finance and Innovation Act (TIFIA) loan agreement was executed between 
OCTA and the United States Department of Transportation (USDOT).  
On July 27, 2017, OCTA issued NTP No. 2 to OC405.  NTP No. 2 was a full NTP 
for all activities, including construction. 



Interstate 405 Improvement Project Update Page 2
 

 

 

Discussion 
 
A number of activities are ongoing as the construction work continues to 
advance.  The following provides a more detailed status of Project activities. 
 
Financing and TIFIA Loan 
 
In July 2017, OCTA executed a TIFIA loan agreement with the USDOT  
for up to approximately $629 million.  Pursuant to the terms identified in the loan 
agreement, OCTA staff submits periodic reimbursement requisitions to the 
USDOT Build America Bureau (Bureau) and the Federal Highway Administration.  
OCTA has received two TIFIA loan disbursements amounting to approximately  
$287 million.  
 
In October 2020, OCTA staff received Board approval to pursue a reset of the 
interest rate on the TIFIA loan.  OCTA has applied, and is currently working with 
the Bureau, to reset the 2.91 percent interest rate on the 2017 TIFIA loan.  
If successful, the current interest rate of 2.91 percent could be reduced, resulting 
in substantial debt service savings.  Based on the estimated timeline provided 
by the Bureau, OCTA is targeting a financial close for the new TIFIA loan by this 
fall. 
 
Tolling Contracts 
 
On February 26, 2018, the Board selected Kapsch TrafficCom USA, Inc., (Kapsch) 
to provide toll lanes system integration services for design, installation, 
operation, and maintenance of the electronic toll and traffic management (ETTM) 
system on both the 405 and 91 Express Lanes.  Kapsch is currently under 
contract and is working closely with the design-builder to deliver fully functional 
express lanes upon opening in 2023.  Kapsch has received approval for the 
ETTM infrastructure final design to be used for the 405 Express Lanes, including 
equipment types and configurations.  Kapsch continues to review the  
design- activities, and has provided input on 
requirements for the Toll Operations Center (TOC) improvements.  The TOC will 

 
405 Express Lanes operations.
 
OCTA staff developed a request for proposals for the back-office system and 
customer service center operations for the 405 Express Lanes.  The Board 
approved its release in June 2020, and the Board is anticipated to approve the 
selection of the preferred vendor in August 2021.  Also in the next few months, 
OCTA staff will be presenting to the Board with options for a future customer 
service center and roadway services location.  OCTA staff is currently evaluating  
 
 



Interstate 405 Improvement Project Update Page 3
 

 

 

various buy versus lease options and will be seeking Board direction on a future 
site to locate these services.  This location is separate from the TOC location as 
it needs to be readily accessible to the public for customer service purposes. 
 
Design 
 
The final design is substantially complete at this time.  The DB process allows for 
design refinements, and that process will continue throughout the remainder of 
construction. 
 
Right-of-Way (ROW) Acquisition 
 
Construction of the Project impacts 288 properties, including 179 residential 
properties, 71 commercial/industrial properties, 37 public properties, and  
one railroad property.  There are 287 properties identified as partial acquisitions  

.  The ROW 
required to construct the Project is comprised of a combination of fee 
acquisitions, permanent easements, temporary construction easements, 
permanent and temporary ground lease reductions, and access control rights.  
This ROW is required for roadway and bridge construction, soundwalls and 
retaining walls, drainage systems, and for the installation of above ground and 
underground facilities, including electrical, telecommunication, water, sewer, 
gas, and storm drain systems. 
 
The ROW acquisition program is on schedule.  As of July 2020, OCTA has 
possession of the required property rights needed for all 288 property impacts, 
which retires a significant risk to OCTA. The overall ROW process continues as 
OCTA works with certain property owners to finalize remaining agreements on 
costs related to certain acquisitions.  As this is a DB project, minor additional 
ROW needs may become necessary in the future as construction continues.   
Of the 288 total properties impacted, 288 offers were presented and the  
ROW is .  There were 60 resolutions of 
necessity (RON) approved by the Board and no additional RONs are anticipated 
at this time. 
 
Utility Relocations 
 
There are currently 132 utilities that require relocation to accommodate the 
Project.  OCTA is coordinating with 22 impacted utility owners to identify and 
resolve conflicts and relocation issues.  To date, OCTA has executed 87 percent 
of the necessary utility relocation agreements and is in the process of finalizing 
the remaining utility agreements.  There are several remaining potential utility 
relocation risks, including various Southern California Edison (SCE) facilities, for 
which staff continues to develop and implement mitigation plans, as utilities are  
 



Interstate 405 Improvement Project Update Page 4
 

 

 

a shared risk between OCTA and OC405.  Many critical utility relocations that 
had once been considered to pose some risk, such as facilities owned by 
Frontier Communications, Chevron USA, Crimson Pipeline, and SCE have been 
successfully completed.  Additionally, a major Southern California Gas (SCG) 
pipeline relocation within the United States Navy property that posed a significant 
risk to the Project schedule has been successfully completed on schedule. 
However, OC405 recently identified a new conflict along a different section of 
the same existing SCG gas line near Bolsa Chica Road that requires 
relocation.  OCTA has taken an active role in coordinating this relocation with 
both OC405 and SCG, including developing a construction schedule to ensure 

o 
mitigate any potential risks to the Project schedule.
 
Roadway and Wall Construction 
 
OC405 began construction in March 2018.  Initial construction activities included 
restriping portions of the freeway and setting up concrete barriers on the outside 
of the freeway to protect work areas for activities such as tree removals and 
grading. These initial construction activities are complete.  Clearing and grubbing, 
including tree and ground cover removal, and rough grading activities are also 
substantially complete at this time.   
 
Significant roadway construction activities, including installation of drainage 
systems, retaining walls and soundwalls, and paving operations began  
in earnest in 2019, and will continue through the end of the Project.  
Improvements have been initiated on all Orange County flood control facilities 
which require improvements associated with the Project, including Bixby,  
East Garden Grove Wintersburg, Fountain Valley, Gisler, Greenville Banning, 
Milan, Montecito, Newland, Ocean View, and Santa Ana River channels.  Work 
on these flood control facilities is at various stages of construction and is 
anticipated to be substantially complete by the end of 2022.  Additionally, over 
half of the retaining walls and soundwalls needed for the Project are currently 
under construction or complete. A majority of the walls needed for the Project 
are anticipated to be complete by the end of 2021. 
 
Bridge Construction 
 
Bridges that are being replaced as part of the Project are being reconstructed in 
either one or two stages.  Bridges being built in one stage are closed to traffic on 
both sides of I-405 during demolition and reconstruction of that bridge, and traffic 
is detoured to other adjacent bridges crossing the freeway.  The first one-stage 
bridge completed was the Slater Avenue bridge, which opened to traffic in  
fall 2019. Opening the Slater Avenue bridge allowed for demolition and  
 
 



Interstate 405 Improvement Project Update Page 5
 

 

 

construction activities to commence on Bushard Street and Talbert Avenue.   
The Bushard Street bridge was completed and opened to traffic in October 2020, 
and the Talbert Avenue bridge construction was recently completed and opened 
to traffic in April 2021.  After the recent opening of the Talbert Avenue bridge, 
demolition and construction activities were able to commence on Ward Street.  
Further north within the Project limits, the McFadden Avenue bridge was  
opened to traffic in October 2020.  The Edinger Avenue and Edwards Street 
bridges are also under construction and anticipated to be opened to traffic late 
this year. 
 
Bushard Street, Edinger Avenue, Edwards Street, McFadden Avenue,  
Slater Avenue, Talbert Avenue, and Ward Street are all one-stage bridges.   
The remaining one-stage bridge replacements at Newland Street and  
Springdale Street are anticipated to begin construction late this year. 
 
Bridges being built in two stages maintain traffic on a portion of the bridge  
while the new bridge is being constructed. Significant bridge construction 
progressed at the two-stage bridges at the Bolsa Avenue, Bolsa Chica Road, 
Brookhurst Street, Fairview Road, Goldenwest Street, Magnolia Street,  
Warner Avenue, and Westminster Boulevard bridges.  The first half of the new 
Magnolia Street bridge opened last year, and the full Magnolia Street bridge was 
the first two-stage bridge to be opened to traffic in May. Opening the  
Magnolia Street bridge allowed for the demolition and construction activities  
to recently commence on Warner Avenue. The first halves of the new  
Bolsa Chica Road and Goldenwest Street bridges opened last summer, and  
the full bridges are anticipated to be opened late this year and the spring of  
next year, respectively. The first halves of the new Fairview Road and 
Westminster Boulevard bridges opened earlier this year, and the full  
bridges are anticipated to be opened in the spring of next year.  The first half of 
the Bolsa Avenue bridge recently opened in June 2021, and the full  
bridge is anticipated to be opened late next year.  The last two-stage bridge to 
start construction was at Brookhurst Street, which began construction late  
last year. 
 
Lastly, the Heil pedestrian overcrossing bridge was demolished last fall and a 
new pedestrian overcrossing is under construction at this location, and is 
anticipated to open to pedestrian traffic late this year. 
 
On the following page is a tabular summary of the anticipated openings of the 

18 bridges that cross over the freeway and require replacement: 
 
 
 
 
 



Interstate 405 Improvement Project Update Page 6
 

 

 

Overcrossing Bridge 
Number of 

Stages 
Anticipated Opening Date 

Open 2021 2022 2023 
Bolsa Chica Road Two  X   
Springdale Street One    X 
Westminster Boulevard Two   X  
Edwards Street One  X   
Goldenwest Street Two   X  
Bolsa Avenue Two   X  
McFadden Avenue One X    
Edinger Avenue One  X   
Newland Street One    X 
Heil Avenue (Pedestrian)  One  X   
Magnolia Street Two X    
Warner Avenue One    X 
Bushard Street One X    
Slater Avenue One X    
Brookhurst Street Two    X 
Talbert Avenue One X    
Ward Street One   X  
Fairview Road Two   X  

 
In addition to the bridge replacements noted above, the widening of four existing 
freeway bridges and construction of three new on-ramp bridges continued over 
Beach Boulevard, Bolsa overhead railroad crossing, Harbor Boulevard,  
Santa Ana River, and an old United States Navy railroad crossing. Lastly, the 
construction of the new connector between the medians of I-405 and SR-73 that 
will connect the 405 Express Lanes to SR-73 is anticipated to commence this 
summer. 
 
Looking ahead, the remainder of 2021 and 2022 will remain busy related to 
bridge, wall, and pavement construction.  
 
Project Challenges 
 
As would be expected on a project of this magnitude, certain challenges have 
been encountered, including the following: 
 
 Oversight and approvals from many different agencies and third parties 
 Cost and availability of construction resources in this active construction 

market 
 Dispute resolution and change management 
 Minimizing impacts and disruptions to the public 
 Timely performance of third-party utility work 
 Project schedule impacts and mitigations 



Interstate 405 Improvement Project Update Page 7
 

 

 

Additionally, in September 2019, there was a discovery of archaeological 
resources within the Project site. OCTA is following established state  
procedures for this type of discovery, and is working with the responsible parties 
to ensure appropriate and respectful procedures are followed.  This discovery 
impacted construction at a specific location; however, construction at that 
location has since resumed.   
 
OCTA has worked closely with its partners and OC405 to mitigate schedule 
delays when identified.  Significant schedule mitigations have been implemented 
during the course of construction. These include expediting construction of 
several key bridges and extended overnight and daytime freeway lane closures 
to take advantage of the significantly reduced traffic volumes on the freeway at 
certain times in the past year related to the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic.  
The objectives of the schedule mitigations are to minimize schedule delay 
impacts while balancing the minimization of traffic impacts.   
 
Risks Remaining 
 
Many of the Project risks have been realized during the design phase and the 
first half of construction and have since been retired.  However, there are risks 
that remain for the second half of construction moving forward.  The COVID-19 
pandemic continues to be a risk as the effects and duration of the pandemic 
remain unknown.  OCTA, its partners, and OC405 remain vigilant in taking the 
appropriate safety measures to minimize impacts to the workforce and 
construction progress.  Additional archaeological discoveries also continue to be 
a risk as excavation in certain areas of the Project will take place in the next year.  
OCTA has taken a proactive approach with the appropriate stakeholders to 
minimize impacts if there are future discoveries.  Contaminated soils have been 
found during certain excavation operations and are a risk that will remain until 
excavations for Project improvements are complete.  The timely relocation of 
utilites is always a risk and the team will remain very focused on these efforts.  
Lastly, the coordination near the end of the Project when Kapsch will be installing 
and testing the tolling equipment, concurrent with the completion of construction 
by OC405, is key to remaining on schedule.  Coordination efforts to plan for this 
timeframe at the end of the Project are ongoing and have been effective to date.   
 
Project Cost and Schedule 
 
The overall Project cost is $2,080,234,000.  The Project milestones for substantial 
completion and opening of the 405 Express Lanes remain on schedule and are 
planned for late 2023. 
 
 
 
 



Interstate 405 Improvement Project Update Page 8
 

 

 

Public Outreach 
 
Since April, the Outreach team has conducted five virtual meetings with 
community members along the Project corridor and presented Project updates 

, and 
the Diverse Community Leaders Group.  Virtual neighborhood meetings 
continue to draw strong participation.  An average of 45 people attended each 
virtual meeting live, while an average of 180 people viewed the recording. The 
team will continue to hold virtual meetings to maximize outreach efforts and look 
for opportunities for in-person or hybrid discussions as appropriate.  
 
The team received more than 270 inquiries from the public this quarter. 
Comments and questions continue to focus on construction, closures and 
detours, nighttime activities, schedule updates, and bridge, wall, and 
interchange design. The number of inquiries remains steady despite more 
bridges moving into construction, a reflection of more frequent community 
meetings, increased social media engagement, and more use of the P
interactive map of closures and detours.  
 
Nearly 6,700 motorists used the interactive map this quarter. That is a 12 percent 
increase over last quarter, the result of a rise in traffic volumes. In addition, 
215,000 flyers were canvassed this quarter, covering 25 major activities such as 
pile driving, bridge demolition, and extended ramp closures. Meanwhile, the 
Project's reach on social media remains steady and the use of location-based 
advertising has been ramped up, in an efficient, cost-effective way to deliver 
short messages about construction to mobile devices in specified geographic 
areas. These tools also encourage new subscribers to join the Project email 
database.  
 
In the coming months, the Outreach team has approximately five neighborhood 
meetings planned to discuss the status of Beach Boulevard and Edwards Street, 
construction of the new I-405/SR-73 Express Lanes Connector, as well as the 
closure and construction of the Newland Street and Springdale Street bridges. 
In addition, the team will hold several focused discussions with smaller groups 
of residents and business owners regarding activities occurring adjacent to their 
properties.  
 
The team also has expanded efforts to reach diverse and disadvantaged 
communities throughout the Project corridor.  The team is continually working to 
make in-language collateral more accessible on the Project website, promoting 
access to Vietnamese and Spanish in-person translators, engaging with partners 
at community and faith-based organizations, and promoting local Vietnamese 
and Latinx businesses through the 405 Forward program.  
 
 



Interstate 405 Improvement Project Update Page 9
 

 

 

The 405 Forward pilot program was launched in May in conjunction with the 
recent opening of the Magnolia Street bridge. The program supports and 
promotes businesses near the Project, encouraging communities to eat at local 
restaurants, shop at local retailers, and use local services.  Nearly 90 businesses 
near the Magnolia Street and Warner Avenue interchanges have signed up for 
the free program to date and almost half are Vietnamese-owned. With the 
success of the pilot program, the Outreach team anticipates expanding the  
405 Forward program in the coming months.  
 
Summary 
 
Construction continues to advance.  Currently, utility relocations, public outreach, 
and other activities are in process to continue the construction phase of the 
Project. 
 
Attachment 
 
None. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by: 

 

 
Approved by: 

 
Jeff Mills, P.E. Rose Casey, P.E. 
Senior Program Manager 
(714) 560-5925 

Director, Highway Programs 
(714) 560-5729 

 



Interstate 405 Improvement Project Update



Project Location and Key Features

2



Background

3



Project Update

4



Construction Update

5



Construction Update

6



Construction Update

7



Construction Update

8



Construction Update

9



Construction Update

10



Bridge Construction Map

11



Status of 18 Bridge Replacements

12



Major Risks Remaining

13



Outreach Metrics

14



Upcoming Outreach

15







                                                                                       COMMITTEE TRANSMITTAL 

Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California 92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282) 

 
July 12, 2021 
 
 
To: Members of the Board of Directors 
    
From: Andrea West, Interim Clerk of the Board  

Subject: Measure M2 Community-Based Transit Circulators Program 
Project V Ridership Report  

Transit Committee Meeting of July 8, 2021 
 
Present: Directors Chaffee, Do, Jones, Nguyen, Sarmiento, Shaw, and 

Sidhu 
Absent: None 
 

 
Committee Vote 
 
Following the roll call vote, this item was declared passed 6-0 by the Members 
present.  
 
Director Sarmiento was not present to vote on this item. 

 
Committee Recommendations 
 
A. Receive and file Project V Ridership Report as an information item. 

 
B. Release contingency for the award of $171,810 in M2 Project V capital 

 
 

            
 



















                                                                                       COMMITTEE TRANSMITTAL 

Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California 92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282) 

 
June 14, 2021 
 
 
To: Members of the Board of Directors 

 
From: Andrea West, Interim Clerk of the Board 

Subject: Annual Update to Investment Policy 

Finance and Administration Committee Meeting of June 9, 2021 
 
Present: Directors Foley, Goodell, Harper, Hennessey, Hernandez, Jones, 

and Muller 
Absent: None 
 
Committee Vote 
 
Following the roll call vote, this item was declared passed 7-0 by the Members 
present. 
 
Committee Recommendations 
 
A. Adopt the Fiscal Year 2021-22 Investment Policy July 1, 2021. 
 
B. Authorize the Treasurer, Chief Financial Officer, Andrew Oftelie, to 

invest, reinvest, purchase, exchange, sell, and manage Orange County 
Transportation Authority funds during fiscal year 2021-22. 



Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California  92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282) 

June 9, 2021 
 
 
To: Finance and Administration Committee 
 
From: Darrell E. Johnson, Chief Executive Officer 
 
Subject: Annual Update to Investment Policy 
 
 
Overview 
 

Proposed Fiscal Year 2021-22 Investment Policy. As recommended under 
California Government Code Section 53646(a)(2), the Orange County 
Transportation Authority is submitting its proposed investment policy to be 
reviewed at a public meeting. Furthermore, the governing body of a local agency 
is required to annually renew the delegation of authority for the Treasurer to 
invest, reinvest, purchase, exchange, sell, or manage public funds for a period 
of one year. 
 
Recommendations 
 
A. Adopt the Fiscal Year 2021-22 Investment Policy July 1, 2021. 

 
B. Authorize the Treasurer, Chief Financial Officer Andrew Oftelie, to invest, 

reinvest, purchase, exchange, sell, and manage Orange County 
Transportation Authority funds during fiscal year 2021-22. 

 
Background 
 
The Investment Policy (Policy) sets forth the guidelines for all Orange County 
Transportation Authority (OCTA) investments that must conform to the California 
Government Code (Code). The main objectives of the Policy continue to be the 
preservation of capital, liquidity, diversification, and a market average rate of 
return through economic cycles.  
 
The Policy is reviewed, updated and approved by the Board of Directors (Board) 
at least annually. However, relevant changes to the Code may warrant 
amendments to the Policy throughout the year.    
 
 



Annual Update to Investment Policy Page 2
 

 

 

Discussion 
 
The Proposed Fiscal Year 2021-22 Policy is being submitted for review and 
adoption by the Board. OCTA s four investment managers performed an 
objective evaluation of the policy as it relates to effectiveness and risk.  Based 
on their feedback, staff is recommending changes be made to the policy. 
 

than the Code and, 
despite the recommended changes, will remain more conservative than the 
Code in most areas. Staff believes that the current structure and 
recommendations are a good match for the risk tolerance of OCTA, while 
providing sufficient latitude to navigate the fixed-income market.  
 
The proposed changes to the Policy, consisting of changes to align requirements 
to the Code, can be found in Attachment A. The attachment describes the current 
policy, recommended change, rationale for the recommended change, and the 
source of the recommended change.   
 
A high-level summary of the recommended changes and the source of the 
recommendations are as follows: 
 
 Adjust Credit Rating Action language to allow Investment Managers the 

discretion to trade a security that has been placed on Negative Credit 

(investment managers) 
 Increase Commercial Paper limit to reflect Code changes as of  

January 1, 2021, to 40 percent, with a ten percent maximum in a single 
issuer (investment manager and OCTA) 

 Adjust Mortgage and Asset-Backed Security limit to a 20 percent mix 
between both security types (investment manager and OCTA)  

 
The Proposed Fiscal Year 2021-22 Policy can be found in Attachment B, and as 
reference, a black line copy of the Policy (reflecting all proposed changes, 
including minor adjustments) can be found in Attachment C.   
 
Next Steps  
 
If the Board approves the Proposed Fiscal Year 2021-22 Policy, a copy of the 
final Policy will be provided to each portfolio manager. Each portfolio manager 
will be required to acknowledge receipt and understanding of the Investment 
Policy changes.  
 
 



Annual Update to Investment Policy Page 3
 

 

 

Summary 
 
California Government Code Section 53646(a)(2) recommends that local 
agencies annually review their Investment Policy at a public meeting. The 

 
Proposed Fiscal Year 2021-22 Investment Policy for approval by the Board of 
Directors. Further, the Orange County Transportation Authority requests 
approval by the Board of Directors, authorizing the Treasurer, for a period of one 
year, to invest, reinvest, purchase, exchange, sell, and manage Orange County 
Transportation Authority funds during fiscal year 2021-22. 
 
Attachments 
 
A. Proposed Primary Changes to Investment Policy 
B. Orange County Transportation Authority  Proposed Fiscal Year 2021-22 

Investment Policy, July 1, 2021 
C. Black-line Copy of Orange County Transportation Authority  Proposed 

Fiscal Year 2021-22 Investment Policy, July 1, 2021 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: 

 

 Approved by: 

 
Robert Davis  Andrew Oftelie 
Department Manager 
Treasury/Public Finance  
714-560-5675 

 Chief Financial Officer,  
Finance and Administration  
714-560-5649 

 



OCTA - Orange County Transportation Authority



  

   
 

  
 

  
 

 
 

 

  

 
 

 
 

 

   
 

  

 
 

  
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

   
  

  
 

  
 

 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT B

unreasonable market risks.
. Diversification Finally, the OCTA shall diversify its portfolio(s) to avoid incurringd

return through economic cycles.
. Total Return -- -average rate ofc

risk of loss of either the principal or interest based upon then prevailing rates.
secondary market, and which offer the flexibility to be easily sold at any time with minimal

. Liquidity -- It is important that the portfolio contain investments for which there is an activeb

institutional default, broker-dealer default, or erosion of market value of the securities.
investment transaction shall seek to ensure that capital losses are avoided, whether from

. Safety of Principal -- Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the OCTA.  Eacha

The primary objectives, in priority order, of investment activities shall be:

3. INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES

to Bond Funds.
provisions of this Policy, the percentage limitations listed elsewhere in this Policy do not apply
Funds will be invested in the securities permitted by this Policy. Notwithstanding the other
Agreements. If the Bond Agreements are silent as to the permitted investments, the Bond
and Accounts (Bond Funds) shall be invested in the securities permitted by the applicable Bond
funds invested separately under Bond Indenture Agreements (Bond Agreements). Bond Funds
retirement funds, separate trusts, Environmental Mitigation Program Endowment Fund and
The policy applies to the investm

2. SCOPE

to.
provisions will be considered immediately incorporated into the Investment Policy and adhered
provisions of the Code be or become more restrictive than those contained herein, such
of prudent investment management. Irrespective of these policy provisions, should the
Policy conforms to the California Government Code (the Code) as well as customary standards
Investments may only be made as authorized by this Investment Policy. The OCTA Investment

market-average rate of return through economic cycles.
funds are prudently invested to preserve capital, provide necessary liquidity and to achieve a
Transportation Authority (OCTA).
This Investment Policy sets forth the investment guidelines for all funds of the Orange County

1. PURPOSE

July 1, 2021
Proposed Fiscal Year 2021-22 Investment Policy

Orange County Transportation Authority



 2 

4. PRUDENCE 
 

OCTA are trustees and fiduciaries subject to the prudent investor standard. 
 
The standard of prudence to be used by investment officials shall be the "prudent investor" 
standard as defined in the Code below and shall be applied in the context of managing an 
overall portfolio.  
procedures and the Investment Policy and exercising due diligence shall be relieved of 
personal responsibility for an individual security's credit risk or market price changes, provided 
deviations from expectations are reported in a timely fashion and appropriate action is taken to 
control developments. 
 
The Prudent Investor Standard:  When investing, reinvesting, purchasing, acquiring, 
exchanging, selling, or managing public funds, a trustee shall act with care, skill, prudence, and 
diligence under the circumstances then prevailing, including but not limited to, the general 
economic conditions and the anticipated needs of OCTA, that a prudent person acting in a like 
capacity and familiarity with those matters would use in the conduct of funds of a like character 
and with like aims, to safeguard the principal and maintain the liquidity needs of the agency.  
 
5. ETHICS AND CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 
 
OCTA's officers and employees involved in the investment process shall not participate in 

program, or which impairs their ability to make impartial investment decisions.  OCTA's 
investment professionals and Treasury/Public Finance Department employees are not 
permitted to have any material financial interests in financial institutions that conduct business 
with OCTA, and they are not permitted to have any personal financial/investment holdings that 
have a material effect on the performance of OCTA's investments. 
 
6. DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY 
 
Authority to manage OCTA's investment program is derived from an order of the Board of 
Directors.  Management responsibility for the investment program is hereby delegated to 
OCTA's Treasurer pursuant to Section 53607 of the Code.  On an annual basis, the Board of 

r to invest or reinvest OCTA 
funds.  The Treasurer is hereby authorized to delegate his authority as he determines to be 
appropriate.  No person may engage in an investment transaction except as provided under 
the terms of this Investment Policy and the procedures established by the Treasurer. The 
Treasurer shall be responsible for all actions undertaken and shall establish a system of 
controls to regulate the activities of subordinate professionals. 
 
The Treasurer shall develop administrative procedures and internal control, consistent with this 

designed to prevent losses of public funds arising from fraud, employee error, 
misrepresentation by third parties, or imprudent actions by employees of OCTA. 
 
 



 3 

7. RESPONSIBILITIES  
 
The Finance and Administration Committee of the OCTA Board of Directors, subject to the 
approval of the OCTA Board of Directors, is responsible for establishing the Investment Policy 
and ensuring investments are made in compliance with this Investment Policy. This Investment 
Policy shall be reviewed annually by the Board of Directors at a public meeting. 
 
The Treasurer is responsible for making investments and for compliance with this policy 
pursuant to the delegation of authority to invest funds or to sell or exchange securities. Pursuant 
to Section 53607 of the Code, the Treasurer shall make a monthly report to the Board of 
Directors. The OCTA provides a monthly report to the Finance and Administration Committee 
and the Board of Directors in accordance with Section 53607 of the Code 
 

program and for having an annual independent audit performed on OC  
 
8. COMPLIANCE  
 
The OCTA has provided each of its portfolio managers with a copy of this Investment Policy as 
a part of their contract and expects its portfolio managers to invest each portfolio they manage 
for OCTA in accordance with the provisions of the Investment Policy or the respective Bond 
Agreements as applicable  When diversification limits are exceeded by a portfolio manager, 
the Treasurer will document the situation and include a write-up in the monthly Debt and 
Investment Report to the Finance and Administration Committee and the Board of Directors. 
 
The OCTA 

 
 

n 
investment that does not comply with the provisions of the Investment Policy, the Treasurer 
shall immediately notify the portfolio manager of the compliance violation. At that point, the 
portfolio manager is on probation for a period of one year. The second time a violation occurs 
while the portfolio manager is on probation, the Finance and Administration Committee shall 
review the error and may request that the portfolio manager responsible for the compliance 
violation meet with the Chair of the Finance and Administration Committee and the Treasurer 
as soon as practical at which time it will be decided whether the Board of Directors will be 
notified of the violation.  
 

on 
probation that does not comply with the provisions of the Investment Policy, the Treasurer shall 
notify the Board of Directors of the compliance violations.  OCTA may terminate services for 
its convenience any time by providing at least 30 days written notice.    
 
 
9. FINANCIAL BENCHMARKS 
 
In order to establish a basis for evaluating investment results, the Authority uses two nationally 
recognized fixed income security performance benchmarks to evaluate return on investments.  



 4 

The ICE/BAML 1-3-year Treasury Index and the ICE/BAML 1 3-year AAA-A U.S. Corporate 
and Government Index benchmarks are -term portfolios.
 
10. SAFEKEEPING AND CUSTODY 
 
To protect against potential losses by collapse of individual securities dealers, all deliverable 
securities owned by OCTA, including collateral on repurchase agreements, shall be held in 
safekeeping by a third-party bank trust department acting as agent for OCTA under the terms 
of a custody agreement executed by the bank and by OCTA. All deliverable securities will be 
received and delivered using standard delivery-versus-payment procedures.  
 
11. PERMITTED INVESTMENTS  
 
Maturity and Term 
 
All investments, unless otherwise specified, are subject to a maximum stated term of five years.  
Maturity shall mean the stated final maturity or the mandatory redemption date of the security, 
or the unconditional put option date if the security contains such a provision.  Term or tenure 
shall mean the remaining time to maturity from the settlement date. 
 
The Board of Directors must grant express written authority to make an investment or to 
establish an investment program of a longer term no less than three months prior to the 
investment 
 
Eligible Instruments and Quality 
 
OCTA policy is to invest only in high quality instruments as permitted by the Code, subject to 
the limitations of this Investment Policy. If an eligible security already contained in the 
Auth  (Credit Watch) by any 
of the three Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organizations (NRSROs), or a purchase 
is made of a sec  any of the three 
NRSROs, which is permitted under this Investment Policy, then the security will be handled 
under the provisions of Credit Rating Actions. Percentage holding limits and credit quality 
minimums in this section are applicable at the time of purchase.  
 
11-1. OCTA NOTES AND BONDS 
 
 Notes and bonds issued by OCTA, including notes and bonds payable solely out of the 

revenues from a revenue-producing property owned, controlled, or operated by OCTA or 
by a department, board, agency or authority of OCTA which may bear interest at a fixed or 
floating rate.   

 
11-2. U.S. TREASURY OBLIGATIONS 
 

United States Treasury notes, bonds, bills, or certificates of indebtedness, or those for which 
the faith and credit of the United States are pledged for the payment of principal and interest. 

 
 
 
 



 5 

11-3. FEDERAL AGENCY OR U.S. GOVERNMENT SPONSORED ENTERPRISES 
 
 Federal agency or United States government-sponsored enterprise obligations, 

participations, or other instruments, including those issued by or fully guaranteed as to 
principal and interest by federal agencies or the U.S. government sponsored enterprises.  

 
11-4. MUNICIPAL DEBT 
 
 Such instruments defined as being issued by a local or state agency, including: 
 

A. Registered state warrants or treasury notes or bonds of this state, including bonds 
payable solely out of revenues from a revenue-producing property owned, controlled, or 
operated by the state or by a department, board, agency, or authority of the state. 
 

B. Bonds, notes, warrants, or other evidence of indebtedness of a local agency within this 
state, including bonds payable solely out of revenues from a revenue-producing property 
owned, controlled, or operated by the state or local agency or by a department, board, 
agency or authority of the local agency.  
 

C. Registered treasury notes or bonds of any of the other 49 states in addition to 
California, including bonds payable solely out of the revenues from a revenue-
producing property owned, controlled, or operated by a state or by a department, 
board, agency, or authority of any of the other 49 states, in addition to California. 
 

D. Defeased state and local obligations (as defined in A, B, or C above) as long as the 
obligations have been legally defeased with State and Local Government Series 
(SLGS), U.S. Treasury, and U.S. Agency securities and such obligations mature or 
otherwise terminate within five years of the date of purchase.  
 

11-5. BANKERS ACCEPTANCES 
 

Bankers  acceptances otherwise known as bills of exchange or time drafts that are drawn 
on and accepted by a commercial bank.     

 
 
11-6. COMMERCIAL PAPER 
 

The entity that issues commercial paper shall meet the following conditions:    
 
  A. be issued by corporations that have debt other than commercial paper, if any, that is 

rated in the ratings category of A or its equivalent or higher by two NRSROs  
 
   B. be issued by corporations organized and operating within the United States and 

having total assets in excess of five hundred million dollars ($500,000,000) 
 

C. may not purchase more than 10 percent of the outstanding paper of any single 
issuer. 

 



 6 

11-7. NEGOTIABLE CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT 
 
 Negotiable Certificates of Deposit issued by a nationally or state-chartered bank or state, a 

savings association or a federal association (as defined by Section 5102 of the Financial 
Code), a state or federally licensed or state licensed branch of a foreign bank.   

 
11-8. REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS 
 
 Repurchase agreements collateralized by U.S. Treasuries or Agency securities as defined 

in the Investment Policy with any registered broker-dealer subject to the Securities Investors 
Protection Act or any commercial banks insured by the FDIC provided: 

 
  A. a Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association (SIFMA) master repurchase 

agreement and a tri-party agreement, if applicable, representing a custodial 
undertaking in connection with a master repurchase agreement, which governs the 
transaction and has been signed by OCTA; and 

 
  B. the securities are held free and clear of any lien by OCTA's custodian or trustee or 

an independent third party acting as agent "Agent" for the custodian or trustee, and 
such third party is (i) a Federal Reserve Bank, or (ii) a bank which is a member of 
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and which has combined capital, surplus 
and undivided profits of not less than $50 million and the custodian or trustee shall 
have received written confirmation from such third party that it holds such securities, 
free and clear of any lien, as agent for OCTA's custodian or trustee; and 

 
  C.  a perfected first security interest under the Uniform Commercial Code, or book entry 

procedures prescribed at 31 C.F.R. 306.1 et seq. or 31 C.F.R. 350.0 et seq. in such 
securities is created for the benefit of OCTA's custodian or trustee and OCTA; and 

 
  D. the Agent provides OCTA's custodian or trustee and OCTA with valuation of the 

collateral securities no less frequently than weekly and will liquidate the collateral 
securities if any deficiency in the required 102 percent collateral percentage is not 
restored within two business days of such valuation. 

  
11-9. MEDIUM TERM NOTES 
 

 Medium term notes are defined as all corporate and depository institution debt securities 
issued by corporations organized and operating within the United States or by depository 
institutions licensed by the United States or any state and operating within the United 
States. 

 
11-10. MONEY MARKET MUTUAL FUNDS 
 
 Shares of beneficial interest issued by diversified management companies that are money 

market funds registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission under the 
Investment Company Act of 1940.  Shares may not represent more than 10 percent of the 
funds  and no more than 10% of the total portfolio may be invested in shares 
of any one money market mutual fund.  



 7 

 

11-11. MORTGAGE OR ASSET-BACKED SECURITIES 
 
 Any mortgage pass-through security, collateralized mortgage obligation, mortgage-backed 

or other pay-through bond, equipment lease-backed certificate, consumer receivable pass-
through certificate, or consumer receivable-backed bond. 

 
11-12. SUPRANATIONALS  
 

US Dollar denominated senior unsecured unsubordinated obligations issued or    
unconditionally   guaranteed by the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development, 
International Finance Corporation, or Inter-American Development Bank.  

 
11-13. STATE OF CALIFORNIA LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND (LAIF) 
 

LAIF is a pooled fund managed by the State Treasurer referred to in Section 16429.1 of the 
Code.  All securities are purchased under the authority of the Code Section 16430 and 
16480.4. 

 
11-14. ORANGE COUNTY TREASURY INVESTMENT POOL (OCIP) 
 
 The OCIP is a pooled fund managed by the Orange County Treasurer and is comprised of 

two funds, the Money Market Fund and Extended Fund.  The Money Market Fund is 
invested in cash equivalent securities.  The Extended Fund is for cash requirements past 
one year and is based on the Code Sections 53601 and 53635.  These pools are based on 
the investment requirements detailed in Government Code Sections 53600 et seq. and 
53630 et seq.   

 
11-15. INVESTMENT POOLS 
 
 Shares of beneficial interest issued by a joint powers authority organized pursuant to 

Government Code Section 6509.7 that invests in the securities and obligations as 
authorized under the pools investment policy and that comply with the investment 
restrictions of Government Code Sections 53600 through 53610 and Section 53630. 

    
11-16. VARIABLE AND FLOATING RATE SECURITIES 
 
 Variable and floating rate securities are restricted to investments in securities with a final 

maturity of not to exceed five years as described above, must utilize traditional money 
market reset indices such as U. S. Treasury bills, Federal Funds, commercial paper or 
LIBOR (London Interbank Offered Rate) or SOFR (Secured Overnight Financing Rate), and 
must meet all minimum credit requirements previously detailed in the Investment Policy.  
Investments in floating rate securities whose reset is calculated using more than one of the 
above indices are not permitted, i.e. dual index notes. 

 
 
 
 
 



 8 

11-17. BANK DEPOSITS

 Bank deposits in California banks which have a minimum short-term rating of A-1, or its 
equivalent or higher, by a NRSRO. Bank deposits are required to be collateralized as 
specified under Government Code section 53630.  The Treasurer shall draft and execute a 
contract describing provisions for bank deposits. 

 
11-18. DERIVATIVES 
 
 Derivatives are to be used as a tool for bonafide hedging investments only where deemed 

appropriate.  Derivatives shall not be used for the purpose of interest rate speculation. 
 
 Derivative products in any of the eligible investment categories listed above may be 

permitted. The Treasurer has the sole responsibility for determining which prospective 
investments are derivatives. Each prospective investment in a derivative product must be 
documented by the Treasurer as to the purpose and specific financial risk being hedged.  
Each such investment must be approved by the Finance and Administration Committee 
prior to entering into such investment.   

 
 No investments shall be permitted that have the possibility of returning a zero or negative 

yield if held to maturity. In addition, the investment in inverse floaters, range notes, strips 
derived from mortgage obligations, step-up notes and dual index notes are not permitted 
investments. 

 
 
Credit Rating Actions 
 
Rating criteria will apply at the time of purchase of a security and monitored for changes while 
retained security whose credit rating is on Credit Watch at the time 
of purchase, has been placed on Credit Watch, or whose credit rating has been downgraded 
(including downgrades resulting in the rating falling below the minimum credit rating 
requirements) subsequent to the time of purchase, 
Policy. 
 
For any security, whose credit rating falls below the minimum required rating as per the 
California Government Code and the Investment Policy or placed on Negative Credit Watch 
for imminent downgrade to below the minimum required ratings, the Treasurer will make the 
decision whether to continue to retain or sell the security. For all other security rating 
downgrades, and for securities placed on Negative Credit Watch, the decision to retain or sell 
the security will be left to the Investment Manager, and OCTA will be notified immediately of 
the decision along with rationale regarding the decision to retain or sell.  
 
 
The Authority will notify the Board through its monthly reporting practices of all securities on 
Credit Watch at the time of purchase, placed on Credit Watch or downgraded during the 
reporting period. Securities whose credit rating falls below the minimum requirements, will be 
noticed in the monthly debt and investment reports until the security is sold or meets the 
minimum credit rating requirements.  
 
 



 9 

Diversification and Maturity Restrictions

Diversification and maturity restrictions ensure the portfolio is not unduly concentrated in the 
securities of one type, industry, entity, or specific maturity thereby assuring adequate portfolio 
liquidity should one sector or company experience difficulties. 
 
Outside portfolio managers must review the portfolios they manage to ensure compliance with 
OCTA's diversification guidelines on an ongoing basis. 
 
AUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS, ISSUER CONCENTRATION & MATURITY RESTRICTIONS 
 



 10 

 
Issuer/Counter-Party Diversification Guidelines for All Securities Except U.S. Treasuries 
and U.S. Government Agency Securities 
  
Unless otherwise specified in this policy, any one corporation, bank, local agency, special 
purpose vehicle or other corporate issuer name for one or more series of securities shall not 
exceed 5% of the portfolio.  
 
Issuer/Counter-Party Diversification Guidelines for  
 

debt, including notes and bonds payable solely out of the revenues from a revenue-producing 
property owned, controlled, or operated by OCTA or by a department, board, agency or 
authority of OCTA which may bear interest at a fixed or floating rate, providing the purchase 
does not exceed 25% of the Maximum Portfolio.  
 



 11 

12. PROHIBITED INVESTMENT VEHICLES AND PRACTICES

 State law notwithstanding, any investments not specifically described herein are 
prohibited, including, but not limited to futures and options. 

 In accordance with Government Code, Section 53601.6, investment in inverse 
floaters, range notes, or mortgage derived interest-only strips is prohibited. 

 Investment in any security that could result in a zero-interest accrual if held to 
maturity is prohibited. Except securities backed by the U.S. Government that could 
result in a zero- or negative-interest accrual if held to maturity are permitted, under 
a provision sunsetting on January 1, 2026, 

 Trading securities for the sole purpose of speculating on the future direction of 
interest rates is prohibited. 

 Purchasing or selling securities on margin is prohibited. 
 The use of reverse repurchase agreements, securities lending or any other form of 

borrowing or leverage is prohibited. 
 The purchase of foreign currency denominated securities is prohibited. 
 Agencies that are not Qualified Institutional Buyers (QIB) as defined by the Securities 

and Exchange Commission are prohibited from purchasing Private Placement 
Securities.  The SEC defines a QIB as having at least $100,000,000 in securities 
owned and invested. 

 
13. SECURITIES SAFE KEEPING 
 
All deliverable security transactions, including collateral for repurchase agreements, entered 
into by OCTA shall be conducted on a delivery-versus-payment basis. Deliverable securities 
shall be held by a third-party custodian designated by the Treasurer, evidenced by safe keeping 
receipts and in compliance with Code Section 53608.  
 
14. BROKER DEALERS 
 
The Treasurer, and investment professionals authorized by the Treasurer, may buy securities 
from a list of broker dealers and financial institutions that will be periodically reviewed. 
 
Outside portfolio managers must certify that they will purchase securities from broker/dealers 
(other than themselves) or financial institutions in compliance with this Investment Policy. 
 
15. INVESTMENT POLICY REVIEW 
 
This Investment Policy shall be reviewed annually by the Finance and Administration 
Committee of the OCTA Board of Directors to ensure its consistency with the overall objectives 
of preservation of principal, liquidity, yield and diversification and its relevance to current law 
and economic trends. 
 
16. DEFINITION OF TERMS 
 
ACCRUED INTEREST:  The amount of interest that is earned but unpaid since the last interest 
payment date. 
 
AGENCY SECURITIES: (See U.S. Government Agency Securities) 
 



 12 

ASK PRICE: (Offer Price) The price at which securities are offered from a seller.

ASSET BACKED SECURITIES (ABS):  Securities collateralized or backed by receivables 
such as automobile loans and credit card receivables.  The assets are transferred or sold by 
the company to a Special Purpose Vehicle and held in trust.  The SPV or trust will issue debt 
collateralized by the receivables. 
 
BANKERS ACCEPTANCES (BAs):  Time drafts which a bank "accepts" as its financial 
responsibility as part of a trade finance process.  These short-term notes are sold at a discount 
and are obligations of the drawer (the bank's trade finance client) as well as the bank.  Once 
accepted, the bank is irrevocably obligated to pay the BA upon maturity if the drawer does not. 
 
BASIS POINT:  When a yield is expressed as X.YZ%, the YZ digits to the right of the decimal 
point are known as basis points.  One basis point equals 1/100 of one percent.  Basis points 
are used more often to describe changes in yields on bonds, notes and other fixed-income 
securities. 
 
BID PRICE:  The price at which a buyer offers to buy a security. 
 
BOOK ENTRY:  The system, maintained by the Federal Reserve, by which most securities are 
"delivered" to an investor's custodian bank.  The Federal Reserve maintains an electronic 
record of the ownership of these securities and records any changes in ownership 
corresponding to payments made over the Federal Reserve wire (delivery versus payment).  
These securities do not receive physical certificates. 
 
BOOK VALUE:  The original cost of the investment. 
 
CALLABLE BONDS:  A bond issue which all or part of its outstanding principal amount may 
be redeemed before maturity by the issuer under specified conditions. 
 
CAPITAL GAIN/LOSS:  The profit or loss realized from the sale of a security. 
 
CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT (NEGOTIABLE CDs):  A negotiable (marketable or 
transferable) receipt for a time deposit at a bank or other financial institution for a fixed time 
and interest rate. 
 
COLLATERAL:  Securities or cash pledged by a borrower to secure repayment of a loan or 
repurchase agreement.  Also, securities pledged by a financial institution to secure deposits in 
an Investment Agreement. 
 
COMMERCIAL PAPER (CP):  Unsecured promissory notes issued by companies and 
government entities usually at a discount.  Commercial paper is negotiable, although it is 
typically held to maturity.   
 
COUPON:  The annual rate of interest received by an investor from the issuer of certain types 
of fixed-  
 
CURRENT YIELD:  The annual income from an investment divided by the current market 
value.  Since the mathematical calculation relies on the current market value rather than the 



 13 

investor's cost, current yield is unrelated to the actual return the investor will earn if the security 
is held to maturity.
 
CUSTODIAN:  A bank or other financial institution that keeps custody of assets in the name of 
the depositor.  
 
DELIVERY VERSUS PAYMENT (DVP):  Delivery of securities with a simultaneous exchange 
of money for the securities. 
 
DERIVATIVE SECURITY:  Financial instrument created from, or whose value depends upon, 
one or more underlying assets or indexes of asset values. 
 
DISCOUNT:  The difference between the par value of a bond and the cost of the bond, when 
the cost is below par.  Some short-term securities, such as Treasury bills and  
acceptances, are known as discount securities.  They sell at a discount from par and return the 
par value to the investor at maturity without additional interest.  Other securities, which have 
fixed coupons, trade at a discount when the coupon rate is lower than the current market rate 
for securities of that maturity and/or quality. 
 
DIVERSIFICATION:  An investment principal designed to spread the risk in a portfolio by 
dividing investments by sector, maturity and quality rating. 
 
DOLLAR-WEIGHTED AVERAGE MATURITY:  A calculation that expresses the "average 
maturity" of an investment portfolio using each investment's maturity weighted by the size or 
book-value of that investment. 
 
DURATION:  A measure of the timing of cash flows, such as the interest payments and 
principal repayment, to be received from a given fixed-income security. 
 
FEDERAL FUNDS RATE:  Interest rate at which banks lend federal funds to each other. 
 
FEDERAL OPEN MARKET COMMITTEE (FOMC):  A committee within the Federal Reserve 
System that makes short-term monetary policy for the Fed.  The committee decides either to 
sell securities to reduce the money supply, or to buy government securities to increase the 
money supply.  Decisions made at FOMC meetings will cause interest rates to either rise or 
fall. 
 
FEDERAL RESERVE SYSTEM:  A U.S. centralized banking system which has supervisory 
powers over the 2 Federal Reserve banks and about 3,000-member banks. 
 
FITCH Ratings referred to as Fitch: (See Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating 
Organizations) 
 
INTEREST:  The amount earned while owning a debt security, generally calculated as a 
percentage of the principal amount. 
 
INTEREST RATE RISK:  The risk associated with declines or rises in interest rates, which 
causes the market price of a fixed-income security to increase or decrease in value. 
 
LIQUIDITY:  The speed and ease with which an investment can be converted to cash. 



 14 

MARK-TO-MARKET:  The process by where the value of a security is adjusted to reflect 
current market conditions. 
 
MARKET RISK:  The risk that the value of a security will rise or decline as a result in changes 
in market conditions. 
 
MARKET VALUE:  The current market price of a security. 
 
MATURITY:  The date that the principal or stated value of an investment becomes due and 
payable. 
 
MEDIUM TERM MATURITY CORPORATE SECURITIES:  Notes issued by corporations 
organized and operating within the United States or by depository institutions licensed by the 
United States or any state and operating within the United States.   
 
MONEY MARKET:  The market in which short-term debt instruments (Treasury bills, discount 
notes, commercial paper,  acceptances, etc.) are issued and traded. 
 
MONEY MARKET MUTUAL FUNDS:  An investment company that pools money from 
investors and invest in a variety of short-term money market instruments.  
 

(See Nationally Recognized 
Statistical Rating Organizations) 
 
MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITY:  A debt instrument with a pool of real estate loans as the 
underlying collateral.  The mortgage payments of the individual real estate assets are used to 
pay interest and principal on the bonds.  
 
MUNICIPAL DEBT:  Issued by public entities to meet capital needs. 
 

Firms 
that review the creditworthiness of the issuers of debt securities, and express their opinion in 
the form of letter ratings (e.g. AAA, AA, A, BBB, etc.)  The primary rating agencies include 
Standard & Poor's Global Ratings; Moody's Investor Services, Inc., Fitch Ratings and Kroll 
Bond Rating Agency, Inc.  
 
NEGOTIABLE CD: (See Certificates of Deposit) 
 
NET ASSET VALUE (NAV):  The market value of one share of an investment company, such 

dividing by the total number of shares outstanding.  This is calculated once a day based on the 
 

 
NON-CALLABLE:  Bond that is exempt from any kind of redemption for a stated time period. 
 
OCTA BONDS:  Bonds, notes, warrants, or other evidences of indebtedness.  
 
OFFER PRICE:  An indicated price at which market participants are willing to sell a security. 



 15 

PAR VALUE:  The amount of principal that must be paid at maturity.  Also referred to as the 
face amount of a bond, normally quoted in $1,000 increments per bond. 
 
PHYSICAL DELIVERY:  The delivery of an investment to a custodian bank in the form of a 
certificate and/or supporting documents evidencing the investment (as opposed to "book entry" 
delivery). 
 
PORTFOLIO:  A group of securities held by an investor. 
 
PREMIUM:   
 
PRIME RATE:  A preferred interest rate charged by commercial banks to their most 
creditworthy customers.   
 
PRINCIPAL:  The face value or par value of an investment. 
 
PURCHASE DATE:  See (Trade Date) 
 
REINVESTMENT RISK:  The risk that coupon payments (or other payments received) cannot 
be reinvested at the same rate as the initial investment. 
 
REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS (REPOS):  A purchase of securities under a simultaneous 
agreement to sell these securities back at a fixed price on some future date.  This is in essence 
a collateralized investment, with the difference between the purchase price and sales price 
determining the earnings. 
 
SAFEKEEPING:  Holding of assets (e.g. securities) by a financial institution. 
 
SECURITES & EXCHANCE COMMISSION (SEC):  The federal agency responsible for 
supervising and regulating the securities industry. 
 
SETTLEMENT DATE:  The date on which the purchase or sale of securities is executed.  For 
example, in a purchase transaction, the day securities are physically delivered or wired to the 
buyer in exchange for cash is the settlement date. 
 
SPECIAL PURPOSE VEHICLE (SPV):  A trust or similar structure created specifically to 
purchase securities and reprofile cash flows and/or credit risk.  Mortgage or Asset-backed 
securities may be issued out of the SPV and secured by the collateral transferred from the 
corporation. 
 
STANDARD & POOR'S GLOBAL RATINGS referred to as Standa : 
(See Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organizations) 
 
SUPRANATIONAL: A supranational is a multi-national organization whereby member states 
transcend national boundaries or interests to share in the decision making to promote economic 
development in member countries.  
 
THIRD-PARTY CUSTODIAL AGREEMENT: (See Custodian) 
 



 16 

TOTAL RETURN:  The sum of all investment income plus changes in the capital value of the 
portfolio.  
 
TRADE DATE:  The date and time corresponding to an investor's commitment to buy or sell a 
security. 
 
U.S. GOVERNMENT AGENCY SECURITIES or FEDERAL AGENCIES:  U.S. Government 
related organizations, the largest of which are government financial intermediaries assisting 
specific credit markets (housing, agriculture).  
 
U.S. TREASURY OBLIGATIONS:  Securities issued by the U.S. Treasury and backed by the 
full faith and credit of the United States. The Treasury issues both discounted securities and 
fixed coupon notes and bonds. 
 
 Treasury bills:  non-interest-bearing discount securities of the U.S. Treasury with 

maturities under one year.  
 
 Treasury notes:  interest-bearing obligations of the U.S. Treasury with maturities 

ranging from two to ten years from the date of issue. 
 
 Treasury bond:  interest-bearing obligations issued by the U.S. Treasury with maturities 

ranging from ten to thirty years from the date of issue. 
 
  Treasury STRIPS:  U.S. Treasury securities that have been separated into their 

component parts of principal and interest payments and recorded as such in the Federal 
Reserve book entry record-keeping system. 

 
  Treasury TIPS: U.S. Treasury securities whose principal increases at the same rate as 

the Consumer Price Index.  The interest payment is then calculated from the inflated 
principal and repaid at maturity. 

 
VARIABLE AND FLOATING RATE SECURITIES:  Variable and floating rate securities are 
appropriate investments when used to enhance yield and reduce risk. They should have the 
same stability, liquidity and quality as traditional money market securities. 
 
VOLATILITY:  The degree of fluctuation in the price and valuation of securities. 
 
YIELD:  The current rate of return on an investment security generally expressed as a 
percentage of the securities current price. 
 
ZERO COUPON SECURITIES:  Security that is issued at a discount and makes no periodic 
interest payments.  The rate of return consists of a gradual accretion of the principal of the 
security and is payable at par upon maturity. 
 
 



Orange County Transportation Authority
Fiscal Year 2021-20220 Investment Policy 

July 1,June 9 10, 20210 
 
1. PURPOSE 
 
This Investment Policy sets forth the investment guidelines for all funds of the Orange County 
Transportation Authority (OCTA) invested on and after July 1, 2021June 9 10, 20210. The 

 funds are prudently invested to preserve 
capital, provide necessary liquidity and to achieve a market-average rate of return through 
economic cycles. 
 
Investments may only be made as authorized by this Investment Policy.   The OCTA 
Investment Policy conforms to the California Government Code (the Code) as well as 
customary standards of prudent investment management.   Irrespective of these policy 
provisions,  should the provisions of the Code be or become more restrictive than those 
contained herein, such provisions will be considered immediately incorporated into the 
Investment Policy and adhered  to. 
 
2. SCOPE 
 
The policy applies to the investm
retirement funds, separate trusts, Environmental Mitigation Program Endowment Fund and 
funds invested separately under Bond Indenture Agreements (Bond Agreements). Bond Funds 
and Accounts (Bond Funds) shall be invested in the securities permitted by the applicable Bond 
Agreements. If the Bond Agreements are silent as to the permitted investments, the Bond 
Funds will be invested in the securities permitted by this Policy. Notwithstanding the other 
provisions of this Policy, the percentage limitations listed elsewhere in this Policy do not apply 
to Bond Funds.  
 
3. INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES 
 
The primary objectives, in priority order, of investment activities shall be:  
 
a. Safety of Principal -- Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the OCTA.  Each 

investment transaction shall seek to ensure that capital losses are avoided, whether from 
institutional default, broker-dealer default, or erosion of market value of the securities. 

 
b. Liquidity -- It is important that the portfolio contain investments for which there is an active 

secondary market, and which offer the flexibility to be easily sold at any time with minimal 
risk of loss of either the principal or interest based upon then prevailing rates. 

 
c. Total Return -- -average rate of 

return through economic cycles. 
 
d. Diversification  Finally, the OCTA shall diversify its portfolio(s) to avoid incurring 

unreasonable market risks. 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT C



 2 

 
4. PRUDENCE 
 

OCTA are trustees and fiduciaries subject to the prudent investor standard. 
 
The standard of prudence to be used by investment officials shall be the "prudent investor" 
standard as defined in the Code below and shall be applied in the context of managing an 
overall portfolio.  
procedures and the Investment Policy and exercising due diligence shall be relieved of 
personal responsibility for an individual security's credit risk or market price changes, provided 
deviations from expectations are reported in a timely fashion and appropriate action is taken to 
control developments. 
 
The Prudent Investor Standard:  When investing, reinvesting, purchasing, acquiring, 
exchanging, selling, or managing public funds, a trustee shall act with care, skill, prudence, and 
diligence under the circumstances then prevailing, including but not limited to, the general 
economic conditions and the anticipated needs of OCTA, that a prudent person acting in a like 
capacity and familiarity with those matters would use in the conduct of funds of a like character 
and with like aims, to safeguard the principal and maintain the liquidity needs of the agency.  
 
5. ETHICS AND CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 
 
OCTA's officers and employees involved in the investment process shall not participate in 

program, or which impairs their ability to make impartial investment decisions.  OCTA's 
investment professionals and Treasury/Public Finance Department employees are not 
permitted to have any material financial interests in financial institutions that conduct business 
with OCTA, and they are not permitted to have any personal financial/investment holdings that 
have a material effect on the performance of OCTA's investments. 
 
6. DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY 
 
Authority to manage OCTA's investment program is derived from an order of the Board of 
Directors.  Management responsibility for the investment program is hereby delegated to 
OCTA's Treasurer pursuant to Section 53607 of the Code.  On an annual basis, the Board of 

r to invest or reinvest OCTA 
funds.  The Treasurer is hereby authorized to delegate his authority as he determines to be 
appropriate.  No person may engage in an investment transaction except as provided under 
the terms of this Investment Policy and the procedures established by the Treasurer. The 
Treasurer shall be responsible for all actions undertaken and shall establish a system of 
controls to regulate the activities of subordinate professionals. 
 
The Treasurer shall develop administrative procedures and internal control, consistent with this 

designed to prevent losses of public funds arising from fraud, employee error, 
misrepresentation by third parties, or imprudent actions by employees of OCTA. 
 



 3 

 
7. RESPONSIBILITIES  
 
The Finance and Administration Committee of the OCTA Board of Directors, subject to the 
approval of the OCTA Board of Directors, is responsible for establishing the Investment Policy 
and ensuring investments are made in compliance with this Investment Policy. This Investment 
Policy shall be reviewed annually by the Board of Directors at a public meeting. 
 
The Treasurer is responsible for making investments and for compliance with this policy 
pursuant to the delegation of authority to invest funds or to sell or exchange securities. Pursuant 
to Section 53607 of the Code, the Treasurer shall make a monthly report to the Board of 
Directors. The OCTA provides a monthly report to the Finance and Administration Committee 
and the Board of Directors in accordance with Section 53607 of the Code 
 

program and for having an annual independent audit performed on OC  
 
8. COMPLIANCE  
 
The OCTA has provided each of its portfolio managers with a copy of this Investment Policy as 
a part of their contract and expects its portfolio managers to invest each portfolio they manage 
for OCTA in accordance with the provisions of the Investment Policy or the respective Bond 
Agreements as applicable  When diversification limits are exceeded by a portfolio manager, 
the Treasurer will document the situation and include a write-up in the monthly Debt and 
Investment Report to the Finance and Administration Committee and the Board of Directors. 
 
The OCTA 

 
 

n 
investment that does not comply with the provisions of the Investment Policy, the Treasurer 
shall immediately notify the portfolio manager of the compliance violation. At that point, the 
portfolio manager is on probation for a period of one year. The second time a violation occurs 
while the portfolio manager is on probation, the Finance and Administration Committee shall 
review the error and may request that the portfolio manager responsible for the compliance 
violation meet with the Chair of the Finance and Administration Committee and the Treasurer 
as soon as practical at which time it will be decided whether the Board of Directors will be 
notified of the violation.  
 

on 
probation that does not comply with the provisions of the Investment Policy, the Treasurer shall 
notify the Board of Directors of the compliance violations.  OCTA may terminate services for 
its convenience any time by providing at least 30 days written notice.    
 
 
9. FINANCIAL BENCHMARKS 
 



 4 

In order to establish a basis for evaluating investment results, the Authority uses two nationally
recognized fixed income security performance benchmarks to evaluate return on investments.  
The ICE/BAML 1-3-year Treasury Index and the ICE/BAML 1 3-year AAA-A U.S. Corporate 
and Government Index benchmarks are -term portfolios. 
 
10. SAFEKEEPING AND CUSTODY 
 
To protect against potential losses by collapse of individual securities dealers, all deliverable 
securities owned by OCTA, including collateral on repurchase agreements, shall be held in 
safekeeping by a third-party bank trust department acting as agent for OCTA under the terms 
of a custody agreement executed by the bank and by OCTA. All deliverable securities will be 
received and delivered using standard delivery-versus-payment procedures.  
 
11. PERMITTED INVESTMENTS  
 
Maturity and Term 
 
All investments, unless otherwise specified, are subject to a maximum stated term of five years.  
Maturity shall mean the stated final maturity or the mandatory redemption date of the security, 
or the unconditional put option date if the security contains such a provision.  Term or tenure 
shall mean the remaining time to maturity from the settlement date. 
 
The Board of Directors must grant express written authority to make an investment or to 
establish an investment program of a longer term no less than three months prior to the 
investment 
 
Eligible Instruments and Quality 
 
OCTA policy is to invest only in high quality instruments as permitted by the Code, subject to 
the limitations of this Investment Policy. If an eligible security already contained in the 
Auth  (Credit Watch) by any 
of the three Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organizations (NRSROs), or a purchase 
is made of a sec  any of the three 
NRSROs, which is permitted under this Investment Policy, then the security will be handled 
under the provisions of Credit Rating Actions. Percentage holding limits and credit quality 
minimums in this section are applicable at the time of purchase.  
 
11-1. OCTA NOTES AND BONDS 
 
 Notes and bonds issued by OCTA, including notes and bonds payable solely out of the 

revenues from a revenue-producing property owned, controlled, or operated by OCTA or 
by a department, board, agency or authority of OCTA which may bear interest at a fixed or 
floating rate.   

 
11-2. U.S. TREASURY OBLIGATIONS 
 

United States Treasury notes, bonds, bills, or certificates of indebtedness, or those for which 
the faith and credit of the United States are pledged for the payment of principal and interest. 

 
 



 5 

 
 
11-3. FEDERAL AGENCY OR U.S. GOVERNMENT SPONSORED ENTERPRISES 
 
 Federal agency or United States government-sponsored enterprise obligations, 

participations, or other instruments, including those issued by or fully guaranteed as to 
principal and interest by federal agencies or the U.S. government sponsored enterprises.  

 
11-4. MUNICIPAL DEBT 
 
 Such instruments defined as being issued by a local or state agency, including: 
 

A. Registered state warrants or treasury notes or bonds of this state, including bonds 
payable solely out of revenues from a revenue-producing property owned, controlled, or 
operated by the state or by a department, board, agency, or authority of the state. 
 

B. Bonds, notes, warrants, or other evidence of indebtedness of a local agency within this 
state, including bonds payable solely out of revenues from a revenue-producing property 
owned, controlled, or operated by the state or local agency or by a department, board, 
agency or authority of the local agency.  
 

C. Registered treasury notes or bonds of any of the other 49 states in addition to 
California, including bonds payable solely out of the revenues from a revenue-
producing property owned, controlled, or operated by a state or by a department, 
board, agency, or authority of any of the other 49 states, in addition to California. 
 

D. Defeased state and local obligations (as defined in A, B, or C above) as long as the 
obligations have been legally defeased with State and Local Government Series 
(SLGS), U.S. Treasury, and U.S. Agency securities and such obligations mature or 
otherwise terminate within five years of the date of purchase.  
 

11-5. BANKERS ACCEPTANCES 
 

Bankers  acceptances otherwise known as bills of exchange or time drafts that are drawn 
on and accepted by a commercial bank.     

 
 
11-6. COMMERCIAL PAPER 
 

The entity that issues commercial paper shall meet the following conditions:    
 
  A. be issued by corporations that have debt other than commercial paper, if any, that is 

rated in the ratings category of A or its equivalent or higher by two NRSROs  
 
   B. be issued by corporations organized and operating within the United States and 

having total assets in excess of five hundred million dollars ($500,000,000) 
 



 6 

C. may not purchase more than 10 percent of the outstanding paper of any single 
issuer.

 
 
 
11-7. NEGOTIABLE CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT 
 
 Negotiable Certificates of Deposit issued by a nationally or state-chartered bank or state, a 

savings association or a federal association (as defined by Section 5102 of the Financial 
Code), a state or federally licensed or state licensed branch of a foreign bank.   

 
11-8. REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS 
 
 Repurchase agreements collateralized by U.S. Treasuries or Agency securities as defined 

in the Investment Policy with any registered broker-dealer subject to the Securities Investors 
Protection Act or any commercial banks insured by the FDIC provided: 

 
  A. a Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association (SIFMA) master repurchase 

agreement and a tri-party agreement, if applicable, representing a custodial 
undertaking in connection with a master repurchase agreement, which governs the 
transaction and has been signed by OCTA; and 

 
  B. the securities are held free and clear of any lien by OCTA's custodian or trustee or 

an independent third party acting as agent "Agent" for the custodian or trustee, and 
such third party is (i) a Federal Reserve Bank, or (ii) a bank which is a member of 
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and which has combined capital, surplus 
and undivided profits of not less than $50 million and the custodian or trustee shall 
have received written confirmation from such third party that it holds such securities, 
free and clear of any lien, as agent for OCTA's custodian or trustee; and 

 
  C.  a perfected first security interest under the Uniform Commercial Code, or book entry 

procedures prescribed at 31 C.F.R. 306.1 et seq. or 31 C.F.R. 350.0 et seq. in such 
securities is created for the benefit of OCTA's custodian or trustee and OCTA; and 

 
  D. the Agent provides OCTA's custodian or trustee and OCTA with valuation of the 

collateral securities no less frequently than weekly and will liquidate the collateral 
securities if any deficiency in the required 102 percent collateral percentage is not 
restored within two business days of such valuation. 

  
11-9. MEDIUM TERM NOTES 
 

 Medium term notes are defined as all corporate and depository institution debt securities 
issued by corporations organized and operating within the United States or by depository 
institutions licensed by the United States or any state and operating within the United 
States. 

 
11-10. MONEY MARKET MUTUAL FUNDS 
 
 Shares of beneficial interest issued by diversified management companies that are money 

market funds registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission under the 



 7 

Investment Company Act of 1940. Shares may not represent more than 10 percent of the 
funds and no more than 10% of the total portfolio may be invested in shares 
of any one money market mutual fund.  

 

11-11. MORTGAGE OR ASSET-BACKED SECURITIES 
 
 Any mortgage pass-through security, collateralized mortgage obligation, mortgage-backed 

or other pay-through bond, equipment lease-backed certificate, consumer receivable pass-
through certificate, or consumer receivable-backed bond. 

 
11-12. SUPRANATIONALS  
 

US Dollar denominated senior unsecured unsubordinated obligations issued or    
unconditionally   guaranteed by the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development, 
International Finance Corporation, or Inter-American Development Bank.  

 
11-13. STATE OF CALIFORNIA LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND (LAIF) 
 

LAIF is a pooled fund managed by the State Treasurer referred to in Section 16429.1 of the 
Code.  All securities are purchased under the authority of the Code Section 16430 and 
16480.4. 

 
11-14. ORANGE COUNTY TREASURY INVESTMENT POOL (OCIP) 
 
 The OCIP is a pooled fund managed by the Orange County Treasurer and is comprised of 

two funds, the Money Market Fund and Extended Fund.  The Money Market Fund is 
invested in cash equivalent securities.  The Extended Fund is for cash requirements past 
one year and is based on the Code Sections 53601 and 53635.  These pools are based on 
the investment requirements detailed in Government Code Sections 53600 et seq. and 
53630 et seq.   

 
11-15. INVESTMENT POOLS 
 
 Shares of beneficial interest issued by a joint powers authority organized pursuant to 

Government Code Section 6509.7 that invests in the securities and obligations as 
authorized under the pools investment policy and that comply with the investment 
restrictions of Government Code Sections 53600 through 53610 and Section 53630. 

    
11-16. VARIABLE AND FLOATING RATE SECURITIES 
 
 Variable and floating rate securities are restricted to investments in securities with a final 

maturity of not to exceed five years as described above, must utilize traditional money 
market reset indices such as U. S. Treasury bills, Federal Funds, commercial paper or 
LIBOR (London Interbank Offered Rate) or SOFR (Secured Overnight Financing Rate), and 
must meet all minimum credit requirements previously detailed in the Investment Policy.  
Investments in floating rate securities whose reset is calculated using more than one of the 
above indices are not permitted, i.e. dual index notes. 

 
 



 8 

 
11-17. BANK DEPOSITS 
  
 Bank deposits in California banks which have a minimum short-term rating of A-1, or its 

equivalent or higher, by a NRSRO. Bank deposits are required to be collateralized as 
specified under Government Code section 53630.  The Treasurer shall draft and execute a 
contract describing provisions for bank deposits. 

 
11-18. DERIVATIVES 
 
 Derivatives are to be used as a tool for bonafide hedging investments only where deemed 

appropriate.  Derivatives shall not be used for the purpose of interest rate speculation. 
 
 Derivative products in any of the eligible investment categories listed above may be 

permitted. The Treasurer has the sole responsibility for determining which prospective 
investments are derivatives. Each prospective investment in a derivative product must be 
documented by the Treasurer as to the purpose and specific financial risk being hedged.  
Each such investment must be approved by the Finance and Administration Committee 
prior to entering into such investment.   

 
 No investments shall be permitted that have the possibility of returning a zero or negative 

yield if held to maturity. In addition, the investment in inverse floaters, range notes, strips 
derived from mortgage obligations, step-up notes and dual index notes are not permitted 
investments. 

 
 
Credit Rating Actions 
 
Rating criteria will apply at the time of purchase of a security and monitored for changes while 
retained security whose credit rating is on Credit Watch at the time 
of purchase, has been placed on Credit Watch, or whose credit rating has been downgraded 
(including downgrades resulting in the rating falling below the minimum credit rating 
requirements) subsequent to the time of purchase, 
Policy. 
 
For any security, whose credit rating falls below the minimum required rating as per the 
California Government Code and the Investment Policy or placed on Negative Credit Watch 
for imminent downgrade to below the minimum required ratings, the Treasurer will make the 
decision whether to continue to retain or sell the security. For all other security rating 
downgrades, and for securities placed on Negative Credit Watch, the decision to retain or sell 
the security will be left to the Investment Manager, and OCTA will be notified immediately of 
the decision along with rationale regarding the decision to retain or sell.  
 
Investment Managers are to notify OCTA (the Director of Finance and Administration, the 
Department Manager for Treasury and Public Finance, and the Department Analyst) regarding 
any security whose credit rating has been placed on Credit Watch or downgraded.  The notice 
shall include a Objectives,  and a 
recommendation to retain or sell the security. The security shall be immediately reviewed by 



 9 

the Treasurer for action. The decision to retain the security, sell the security, or other action 
shall be approved by the Treasurer. 
 
The Authority will notify the Board through its monthly reporting practices of all securities on 
Credit Watch at the time of purchase, placed on Credit Watch or downgraded during the 
reporting period. Securities whose credit rating falls below the minimum requirements, will be 
noticed in the monthly debt and investment reports until the security is sold or meets the 
minimum credit rating requirements.  
 
 
Diversification and Maturity Restrictions 
 
Diversification and maturity restrictions ensure the portfolio is not unduly concentrated in the 
securities of one type, industry, entity, or specific maturity thereby assuring adequate portfolio 
liquidity should one sector or company experience difficulties. 
 
Outside portfolio managers must review the portfolios they manage to ensure compliance with 
OCTA's diversification guidelines on an ongoing basis. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 10 

 
 
AUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS, ISSUER CONCENTRATION & MATURITY RESTRICTIONS 
 



 11 

 
Issuer/Counter-Party Diversification Guidelines for All Securities Except U.S. Treasuries 
and U.S. Government Agency Securities 
  
Unless otherwise specified in this policy, any one corporation, bank, local agency, special 
purpose vehicle or other corporate issuer name for one or more series of securities shall not 
exceed 5% of the portfolio.  
 
Issuer/Counter-Party Diversification Guidelines for  
 

debt, including notes and bonds payable solely out of the revenues from a revenue-producing 
property owned, controlled, or operated by OCTA or by a department, board, agency or 
authority of OCTA which may bear interest at a fixed or floating rate, providing the purchase 
does not exceed 25% of the Maximum Portfolio.  



 12 

 
12. PROHIBITED INVESTMENT VEHICLES AND PRACTICES 
 

 State law notwithstanding, any investments not specifically described herein are 
prohibited, including, but not limited to futures and options. 

 In accordance with Government Code, Section 53601.6, investment in inverse 
floaters, range notes, or mortgage derived interest-only strips is prohibited. 

 Investment in any security that could result in a zero-interest accrual if held to 
maturity is prohibited. Except securities backed by the U.S. Government that could 
result in a zero- or negative-interest accrual if held to maturity are permitted, under 
a provision sunsetting on January 1, 2026, 

 Trading securities for the sole purpose of speculating on the future direction of 
interest rates is prohibited. 

 Purchasing or selling securities on margin is prohibited. 
 The use of reverse repurchase agreements, securities lending or any other form of 

borrowing or leverage is prohibited. 
 The purchase of foreign currency denominated securities is prohibited. 
 Agencies that are not Qualified Institutional Buyers (QIB) as defined by the Securities 

and Exchange Commission are prohibited from purchasing Private Placement 
Securities.  The SEC defines a QIB as having at least $100,000,000 in securities 
owned and invested. 

 
132. SECURITIES SAFE KEEPING 
 
All deliverable security transactions, including collateral for repurchase agreements, entered 
into by OCTA shall be conducted on a delivery-versus-payment basis. Deliverable securities 
shall be held by a third-party custodian designated by the Treasurer, evidenced by safe keeping 
receipts and in compliance with Code Section 53608.  
 
143. BROKER DEALERS 
 
The Treasurer, and investment professionals authorized by the Treasurer, may buy securities 
from a list of broker dealers and financial institutions that will be periodically reviewed. 
 
Outside portfolio managers must certify that they will purchase securities from broker/dealers 
(other than themselves) or financial institutions in compliance with this Investment Policy. 
 
154. INVESTMENT POLICY REVIEW 
 
This Investment Policy shall be reviewed annually by the Finance and Administration 
Committee of the OCTA Board of Directors to ensure its consistency with the overall objectives 
of preservation of principal, liquidity, yield and diversification and its relevance to current law 
and economic trends. 
 
165. DEFINITION OF TERMS 
 
ACCRUED INTEREST:  The amount of interest that is earned but unpaid since the last interest 
payment date. 



 13 

AGENCY SECURITIES: (See U.S. Government Agency Securities)
 
ASK PRICE: (Offer Price) The price at which securities are offered from a seller. 
 
ASSET BACKED SECURITIES (ABS):  Securities collateralized or backed by receivables 
such as automobile loans and credit card receivables.  The assets are transferred or sold by 
the company to a Special Purpose Vehicle and held in trust.  The SPV or trust will issue debt 
collateralized by the receivables. 
 
BANKERS ACCEPTANCES (BAs):  Time drafts which a bank "accepts" as its financial 
responsibility as part of a trade finance process.  These short-term notes are sold at a discount 
and are obligations of the drawer (the bank's trade finance client) as well as the bank.  Once 
accepted, the bank is irrevocably obligated to pay the BA upon maturity if the drawer does not. 
 
BASIS POINT:  When a yield is expressed as X.YZ%, the YZ digits to the right of the decimal 
point are known as basis points.  One basis point equals 1/100 of one percent.  Basis points 
are used more often to describe changes in yields on bonds, notes and other fixed-income 
securities. 
 
BID PRICE:  The price at which a buyer offers to buy a security. 
 
BOOK ENTRY:  The system, maintained by the Federal Reserve, by which most securities are 
"delivered" to an investor's custodian bank.  The Federal Reserve maintains an electronic 
record of the ownership of these securities and records any changes in ownership 
corresponding to payments made over the Federal Reserve wire (delivery versus payment).  
These securities do not receive physical certificates. 
 
BOOK VALUE:  The original cost of the investment. 
 
CALLABLE BONDS:  A bond issue which all or part of its outstanding principal amount may 
be redeemed before maturity by the issuer under specified conditions. 
 
CAPITAL GAIN/LOSS:  The profit or loss realized from the sale of a security. 
 
CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT (NEGOTIABLE CDs):  A negotiable (marketable or 
transferable) receipt for a time deposit at a bank or other financial institution for a fixed time 
and interest rate. 
 
COLLATERAL:  Securities or cash pledged by a borrower to secure repayment of a loan or 
repurchase agreement.  Also, securities pledged by a financial institution to secure deposits in 
an Investment Agreement. 
 
COMMERCIAL PAPER (CP):  Unsecured promissory notes issued by companies and 
government entities usually at a discount.  Commercial paper is negotiable, although it is 
typically held to maturity.   
 
COUPON:  The annual rate of interest received by an investor from the issuer of certain types 
of fixed-  
 



 14 

CURRENT YIELD:  The annual income from an investment divided by the current market 
value.  Since the mathematical calculation relies on the current market value rather than the 
investor's cost, current yield is unrelated to the actual return the investor will earn if the security 
is held to maturity. 
 
CUSTODIAN:  A bank or other financial institution that keeps custody of assets in the name of 
the depositor.  
 
DELIVERY VERSUS PAYMENT (DVP):  Delivery of securities with a simultaneous exchange 
of money for the securities. 
 
DERIVATIVE SECURITY:  Financial instrument created from, or whose value depends upon, 
one or more underlying assets or indexes of asset values. 
 
DISCOUNT:  The difference between the par value of a bond and the cost of the bond, when 
the cost is below par.  Some short-term securities, such as Treasury bills and  
acceptances, are known as discount securities.  They sell at a discount from par and return the 
par value to the investor at maturity without additional interest.  Other securities, which have 
fixed coupons, trade at a discount when the coupon rate is lower than the current market rate 
for securities of that maturity and/or quality. 
 
DIVERSIFICATION:  An investment principal designed to spread the risk in a portfolio by 
dividing investments by sector, maturity and quality rating. 
 
DOLLAR-WEIGHTED AVERAGE MATURITY:  A calculation that expresses the "average 
maturity" of an investment portfolio using each investment's maturity weighted by the size or 
book-value of that investment. 
 
DURATION:  A measure of the timing of cash flows, such as the interest payments and 
principal repayment, to be received from a given fixed-income security. 
 
FEDERAL FUNDS RATE:  Interest rate at which banks lend federal funds to each other. 
 
FEDERAL OPEN MARKET COMMITTEE (FOMC):  A committee within the Federal Reserve 
System that makes short-term monetary policy for the Fed.  The committee decides either to 
sell securities to reduce the money supply, or to buy government securities to increase the 
money supply.  Decisions made at FOMC meetings will cause interest rates to either rise or 
fall. 
 
FEDERAL RESERVE SYSTEM:  A U.S. centralized banking system which has supervisory 
powers over the 2 Federal Reserve banks and about 3,000-member banks. 
 
FITCH Ratings referred to as Fitch: (See Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating 
Organizations) 
 
INTEREST:  The amount earned while owning a debt security, generally calculated as a 
percentage of the principal amount. 
 
INTEREST RATE RISK:  The risk associated with declines or rises in interest rates, which 
causes the market price of a fixed-income security to increase or decrease in value. 



 15 

LIQUIDITY:  The speed and ease with which an investment can be converted to cash.
 
MARK-TO-MARKET:  The process by where the value of a security is adjusted to reflect 
current market conditions. 
 
MARKET RISK:  The risk that the value of a security will rise or decline as a result in changes 
in market conditions. 
 
MARKET VALUE:  The current market price of a security. 
 
MATURITY:  The date that the principal or stated value of an investment becomes due and 
payable. 
 
MEDIUM TERM MATURITY CORPORATE SECURITIES:  Notes issued by corporations 
organized and operating within the United States or by depository institutions licensed by the 
United States or any state and operating within the United States.   
 
MONEY MARKET:  The market in which short-term debt instruments (Treasury bills, discount 
notes, commercial paper,  acceptances, etc.) are issued and traded. 
 
MONEY MARKET MUTUAL FUNDS:  An investment company that pools money from 
investors and invest in a variety of short-term money market instruments.  
 

(See Nationally Recognized 
Statistical Rating Organizations) 
 
MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITY:  A debt instrument with a pool of real estate loans as the 
underlying collateral.  The mortgage payments of the individual real estate assets are used to 
pay interest and principal on the bonds.  
 
MUNICIPAL DEBT:  Issued by public entities to meet capital needs. 
 
NATIONALL Firms 
that review the creditworthiness of the issuers of debt securities, and express their opinion in 
the form of letter ratings (e.g. AAA, AA, A, BBB, etc.)  The primary rating agencies include 
Standard & Poor's Global Ratings; Moody's Investor Services, Inc., Fitch Ratings and Kroll 
Bond Rating Agency, Inc.  
 
NEGOTIABLE CD: (See Certificates of Deposit) 
 
NET ASSET VALUE (NAV):  The market value of one share of an investment company, such 
as a 

dividing by the total number of shares outstanding.  This is calculated once a day based on the 
 

 
NON-CALLABLE:  Bond that is exempt from any kind of redemption for a stated time period. 
 
OCTA BONDS:  Bonds, notes, warrants, or other evidences of indebtedness.  



 16 

OFFER PRICE: An indicated price at which market participants are willing to sell a security.
 
PAR VALUE:  The amount of principal that must be paid at maturity.  Also referred to as the 
face amount of a bond, normally quoted in $1,000 increments per bond. 
 
PHYSICAL DELIVERY:  The delivery of an investment to a custodian bank in the form of a 
certificate and/or supporting documents evidencing the investment (as opposed to "book entry" 
delivery). 
 
PORTFOLIO:  A group of securities held by an investor. 
 
PREMIUM:  The  
 
PRIME RATE:  A preferred interest rate charged by commercial banks to their most 
creditworthy customers.   
 
PRINCIPAL:  The face value or par value of an investment. 
 
PURCHASE DATE:  See (Trade Date) 
 
REINVESTMENT RISK:  The risk that coupon payments (or other payments received) cannot 
be reinvested at the same rate as the initial investment. 
 
REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS (REPOS):  A purchase of securities under a simultaneous 
agreement to sell these securities back at a fixed price on some future date.  This is in essence 
a collateralized investment, with the difference between the purchase price and sales price 
determining the earnings. 
 
SAFEKEEPING:  Holding of assets (e.g. securities) by a financial institution. 
 
SECURITES & EXCHANCE COMMISSION (SEC):  The federal agency responsible for 
supervising and regulating the securities industry. 
 
SETTLEMENT DATE:  The date on which the purchase or sale of securities is executed.  For 
example, in a purchase transaction, the day securities are physically delivered or wired to the 
buyer in exchange for cash is the settlement date. 
 
SPECIAL PURPOSE VEHICLE (SPV):  A trust or similar structure created specifically to 
purchase securities and reprofile cash flows and/or credit risk.  Mortgage or Asset-backed 
securities may be issued out of the SPV and secured by the collateral transferred from the 
corporation. 
 
STANDARD & POOR'S GLOBAL RATINGS r : 
(See Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organizations) 
 
SUPRANATIONAL: A supranational is a multi-national organization whereby member states 
transcend national boundaries or interests to share in the decision making to promote economic 
development in member countries.  
 



 17 

THIRD-PARTY CUSTODIAL AGREEMENT: (See Custodian)

TOTAL RETURN:  The sum of all investment income plus changes in the capital value of the 
portfolio.   
 
TRADE DATE:  The date and time corresponding to an investor's commitment to buy or sell a 
security. 
 
U.S. GOVERNMENT AGENCY SECURITIES or FEDERAL AGENCIES:  U.S. Government 
related organizations, the largest of which are government financial intermediaries assisting 
specific credit markets (housing, agriculture).  
 
U.S. TREASURY OBLIGATIONS:  Securities issued by the U.S. Treasury and backed by the 
full faith and credit of the United States. The Treasury issues both discounted securities and 
fixed coupon notes and bonds. 
 
 Treasury bills:  non-interest-bearing discount securities of the U.S. Treasury with 

maturities under one year.  
 
 Treasury notes:  interest-bearing obligations of the U.S. Treasury with maturities 

ranging from two to ten years from the date of issue. 
 
 Treasury bond:  interest-bearing obligations issued by the U.S. Treasury with maturities 

ranging from ten to thirty years from the date of issue. 
 
  Treasury STRIPS:  U.S. Treasury securities that have been separated into their 

component parts of principal and interest payments and recorded as such in the Federal 
Reserve book entry record-keeping system. 

 
  Treasury TIPS: U.S. Treasury securities whose principal increases at the same rate as 

the Consumer Price Index.  The interest payment is then calculated from the inflated 
principal and repaid at maturity. 

 
VARIABLE AND FLOATING RATE SECURITIES:  Variable and floating rate securities are 
appropriate investments when used to enhance yield and reduce risk. They should have the 
same stability, liquidity and quality as traditional money market securities. 
 
VOLATILITY:  The degree of fluctuation in the price and valuation of securities. 
 
YIELD:  The current rate of return on an investment security generally expressed as a 
percentage of the securities current price. 
 
ZERO COUPON SECURITIES:  Security that is issued at a discount and makes no periodic 
interest payments.  The rate of return consists of a gradual accretion of the principal of the 
security and is payable at par upon maturity. 
 
 



                                                                                       COMMITTEE TRANSMITTAL 

Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California 92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282) 

 
June 14, 2021 
 
 
To: Members of the Board of Directors 
    
From: Andrea West, Interim Clerk of the Board  

Subject: Measure M2 Eligibility Review Recommendations for 
Fiscal Year 2019-20 Expenditure Reports 

Regional Planning and Highways Committee Meeting of June 7, 2021 
 
Present: Directors Bartlett, Chaffee, Delgleize, Harper, Hernandez, Muller, 

Murphy, and Sarmiento 
Absent: None 
 

 
Committee Vote 
 
Following the roll call vote, this item was declared passed 8-0 by the Members 
present.  

 
Committee Recommendation 
 
Approve all 35 Orange County local jurisdictions eligible to continue receiving 
Measure M2 net revenues. 









ATTACHMENT A 

Measure M2 Eligibility Requirements and Submittal Schedule Summary
Fiscal Year 2020-21 

 
Compliance Category Frequency (submitted) Status 

Capital Improvement Program Annual 
(June 30, 2020)  

Circulation Element/Master Plan of Arterial 
Highways Consistency  

Biennial 
(June 30, 2021) 

N/A  next 
cycle 

Congestion Management Program Biennial 
(June 30, 2021) 

N/A  next 
cycle 

Expenditure Report Annual 
(December 31, 2020) 

Submitted, 
pending 
Board 

approval 

Local Signal Synchronization Plan Every Three Years 
(i.e., June 30, 2020)  

Maintenance of Effort Annual 
(June 30, 2020)  

Mitigation Fee Program (MFP) Biennial 
(June 30, 2021)1 

N/A  next 
cycle 

No Supplanting of Developer Fees Annual 
(June 30, 2020)  

Pavement Management Plan (PMP)  Biennial  
(June 30, 2020)2  

Timely Submittal of Project Final Reports 
Within Six Months of 
Project Completion 

Ongoing 

Timely Use of Net Revenues  Annual 
(June 30, 2020)  

Traffic Forum Participation  Annual 
(June 30, 2020)  

Transit and Non-Motorized Transportation 
Land-Use Planning Strategies 

Annual 
(June 30, 2020)  

 
Board  Board of Directors 
N/A  Not applicable 
 
 
 
 
_______  

1 A jurisdiction must submit their updated program and revised fee schedule or process methodology when 
the jurisdiction updates their MFP and/or nexus study. 

2 14 agencies update their PMPs on odd-numbered fiscal years, while 21 agencies update their PMPs on 
even-numbered fiscal years. 



ATTACHMENT B



                                                                                       COMMITTEE TRANSMITTAL 

Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California 92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282) 

 
June 14, 2021 
 
 
To: Members of the Board of Directors 
    
From: Andrea West, Interim Clerk of the Board  

Subject: Regional Traffic Signal Synchronization Program Update 

Regional Planning and Highways Committee Meeting of June 7, 2021 
 
Present: Directors Bartlett, Chaffee, Delgleize, Harper, Hernandez, Muller, 

Murphy, and Sarmiento 
Absent: None 
 

 
Committee Vote 
 
Following the roll call vote, this item was declared passed 8-0 by the Members 
present.  

 
Committee Recommendation 
 
Receive and file as an information item. 



 

Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California 92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282)

June 7, 2021 
 
 
To: Regional Planning and Highways Committee 
 
From: Darrell E. Johnson, Chief Executive Officer 
 
Subject: Regional Traffic Signal Synchronization Program Update  
 
 
Overview 
 
The Orange County Transportation Authority has been working with local cities, the 
County of Orange, and the California Department of Transportation to fund and 
implement key regional traffic signal synchronization projects. This report provides 
an update on the Measure M2 Regional Traffic Signal Synchronization Program, 
including results from recently completed projects. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Receive and file as an information item. 
 
Background 
 
The Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA) provides funding and 
assistance to implement multi-agency signal synchronization as part of the 
Measure M2 (M2) Regional Traffic Signal Synchronization Program (RTSSP) 
(Project P). Annually, OCTA provides competitive grants specifically dedicated to 
the coordination of traffic signals across jurisdictional boundaries. The goal of  
Project P is to improve the flow of traffic by developing and implementing regional 
signal coordination that crosses local agencies  boundaries and maintains 
coordination through freeway interchanges, where possible. 
 
Since 2008, OCTA and local agencies have implemented signal synchronization 
for 89 projects that included 3,003 signalized intersections and 772 centerline miles 
of streets (Attachment A). The projects have improved travel times, reduced delays 
and congestion, and increased the number of successive green light drivers see in 
their daily commutes. The results of the program translate into direct benefits to 
motorists in time and cost savings from lower fuel consumption and a reduction of 
greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions. 
  



Regional Traffic Signal Synchronization Program Update  Page 2 
  

 

 
Discussion 
 
Signal synchronization is a cost-effective way to increase roadway throughput 
without major new construction. Projects are corridor-based and new optimized 
signal timings are developed based on traffic conditions and current travel patterns. 
These projects optimize traffic signal timing to reduce travel times, stops,  
delays, and ultimately give users an overall better driving experience. Key to these 
efforts is regular dialogue between partner agencies and the California Department 
of Transportation, resulting in agencies working together towards the  
multijurisdictional goal of the program. 
 
Funding is provided through annual calls for projects (call), with 80 percent of 
funding from M2 
Supplemental funding is used whenever available, including  
SB 1 (Chapter 5, Statutes of 2017) Local Partnership Program funds, and Solutions 
for Congested Corridors Program grants. A variety of sources have been used in 
the past to fund signal synchronization projects, including Measure M1,  
Proposition 1B Traffic Light Signal Synchronization Program, and air quality funds.  
 
Signal synchronization projects implement a coordination strategy involving  
time-
necessary upgrades to the traffic signal infrastructure. This includes modifications 
to prepare for future connected and autonomous vehicle technologies and 
applications. Existing synchronization on crossing arterials is incorporated when 
and where possible. Optimized timings are developed and implemented for 
identified peak periods, which are typically weekday mornings, midday, and 
evenings. For weekend operations, the peak is typically mid-morning through  

 and 
travel time studies are conducted to evaluate the improvements from these new 
optimized timing plans. 
 
These studies are conducted during peak traffic periods with specially equipped 
vehicles that have computer-linked global positioning system devices to collect 
traffic data. Several runs are made in each 
middle of the traffic platoon of vehicles for each run. These studies showed 
improvements across all performance measures, including travel time, number of 
stops, and average safe speed. Additionally, fuel consumption, GHG, and other 
vehicle emission data are reported (Attachment B). Historically, signal 
synchronization efforts nationwide have resulted in travel time and speed 
improvements, as well as a reduction in stops in the range between five percent 
and 15 percent. C
results in the high-end of this range due to the combination of the optimized traffic 
signal timing plans, cooperation between all participating agencies, and minor 
signal upgrades to maximize traffic flow. 
 
 



Regional Traffic Signal Synchronization Program Update  Page 3 
  

 

 
Signal Synchronization Projects 
 
The signal synchronization program  target is to regularly synchronize  
2,000 signalized intersections, as expressed in the M2 voter guide. OCTA and local 
agencies have completed 89 signal synchronization projects since 2008. A total of 
3,003 signalized intersections and 772 centerline miles of streets have been 
implemented. The total Board of Directors grant allocations for the completed 
projects were approximately $64.81 million. The completed projects are identified 
on the map in Attachment A. A summary of the results for the 89 completed signal 
synchronization projects is identified in Attachment B. The early acceleration of 
Project P allowed the benefits of signal synchronization to be experienced by 
travelers much earlier than originally promised. 
 
The completed projects have reduced average travel time by 13 percent and the 
average number of stops by 29 percent. Average speed improved by 14 percent. 
Consumers will save approximately $178.4 
dollars) on fuel costs and reduce GHG emissions by approximately 919 million 
pounds over the three-year project cycle. The reduction of GHG emissions is made 
possible by reducing the number of stops, smoothing the flow of traffic, and 
reducing the amount of acceleration and deceleration of vehicles. These results 
are comparable to signal synchronization efforts nationwide.  
 
The following table lists nine signal synchronization projects, where new timing 
plans were implemented within the last two years, along with the corresponding 
travel time and speed improvements: 
 

Corridor Limits 
Length 
(Miles) 

Travel Time 
Improvements 

Average 
Speed 

Improvements

Alicia Parkway*^ 
Crown Valley Parkway 
to Rustic Oak 

10.50 12 percent 13 percent 

Camino Vera Cruz 
Avenida Pico to 
Camino De Los Mares 

1.43 9 percent 8 percent 

Coast Highway* 
Orange Street to Reef 
Point Drive 

9.01 5 percent 5 percent 

El Toro Road*^ 
Bridger Road to 
Ridgeline Road 

7.17 20 percent 25 percent 

Irvine Boulevard* 
Jamboree Road to 
Bake Parkway 

7.25 17 percent 21 percent 

Irvine Center Drive/ 
Edinger Avenue^ 

Newport Avenue to 
Lake Forest Drive 

9.12 16 percent 19 percent 

Orangewood Avenue* 
Batavia Street to 
Harbor Boulevard 

3.21 17 percent 22 percent 

Von Karman Avenue/ 
Tustin Ranch Road 

Campus Drive to 
Pioneer Way 

7.88 13 percent 14 percent 

Westminster Avenue/ 
17th Street*^ 

Apollo Drive to 
Newport Avenue 

16.33 5 percent 5 percent 

*  Project corridor reported on previous RTSSP update to the Board of Directors 
^ Denotes a project corridor that has been revisited 



Regional Traffic Signal Synchronization Program Update  Page 4 
  

 

 
The travel time collection for all completed projects, including these nine corridors, 
occurred prior to March 2020 and the State stay-at-home executive order. Traffic 
engineers are continuing to monitor and update the signal timing to respond to 
changes in traffic patterns and to ensure travelers experience benefits from the 
completed projects.  
 
OCTA is currently funding an additional 31 signal synchronization projects that are 
in various stages of implementation. The committed funding from OCTA is primarily 
from the competitive signal program and the grant allocation of these projects  
is approximately $55.7 million. Once completed, these funded projects will 
synchronize an additional 1,213 signals and 316 miles of roadway. 
 
It is good practice to periodically resynchronize traffic signals to make sure they 
consider changes in traffic. The signal program encourages previously completed 
streets and highways projects to compete again for funding during the annual call. 
Previous investments made as part of earlier projects are incorporated into the 
revisited projects. An example of this would be the Alicia Parkway and  
Westminster Avenue/17th Street corridors. The signals along Alicia Parkway were 
synchronized in 2010 and the signals along Westminster Avenue/17th Street in 
2011. Both of these corridors were updated in 2019. The result is a program that 
can regularly coordinate intersections as the basis for synchronized operation 
across Orange County.   
 
Next Steps 
 
OCTA continues to work with local agencies through various venues, including the 
Technical Steering Committee, Technical Advisory Committee, and the traffic 
forum to identify corridors that are eligible for funding and would benefit from signal 
program funding as part of the annual call.  
 
Summary 
 
OCTA and local agencies have successfully implemented new cooperative traffic 
signal synchronization timing on 89 corridors. Another 31 projects are planned or 
underway. The synchronization of traffic signals along these regional corridors 
continually results in significant improvements to traffic flow by reducing total travel 
times, stops per mile, and improving average safe speeds while decreasing fuel 
costs, GHG, and overall vehicle emissions. 
 
  



Regional Traffic Signal Synchronization Program Update  Page 5 
  

 

 
Attachments 
 
A. Orange County Transportation Authority-Funded Signal Synchronization 

Projects, (2008  Present) 
B. Summary of Results for Completed Regional Traffic Signal Synchronization 

Projects 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: 

 

Approved by: 

 
 

Alicia Yang Kia Mortazavi 
Project Manager III 
(714) 560-5362 

Executive Director, Planning 
(714) 560-5741 

 



ATTACHMENT A



S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f R

es
ul

ts
 f

o
r 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d 
R

e
gi

o
na

l T
ra

ff
ic

 S
ig

n
al

 S
yn

ch
ro

n
iz

at
io

n
 P

ro
je

ct
s

C
o

rr
id

o
r 

N
a

m
e

T
im

in
g

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
d

L
e

a
d

 A
g

e
n

cy
L

e
n

g
th

 
(M

il
e

s
)

S
ig

n
a

ls
 B

o
a

rd
 

A
ll

o
c

a
ti

o
n

 

 E
s

ti
m

a
te

d
 

P
ro

je
c

t 
L

if
e

 G
a

s 
S

a
v

in
g

s
 

(D
o

ll
a

rs
)^

E
s

ti
m

a
te

d
 

P
ro

je
c

t 
L

if
e

 
G

re
e

n
h

o
u

s
e 

G
a

s
 S

a
v

in
g

s
 

(l
b

s
.)

T
ra

v
e

l 
T

im
e

 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t

A
v

e
ra

g
e

 
S

p
e

e
d

 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t

S
to

p
s

 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t

1
E

uc
lid

 S
tr

e
et

*
2

00
8

O
C

T
A

1
5

6
2

4
80

,0
83

$
  

  
  

 
3

,0
91

,6
31

$
  

  
  

1
6,

18
8,

27
6

  
 

2
0%

2
4%

4
3%

2
P

ac
ifi

c 
P

a
rk

 D
riv

e
/O

so
 P

a
rk

w
a

y*
2

00
9

O
C

T
A

9
3

4
2

48
,2

72
$

  
  

  
 

3
,6

47
,3

70
$

  
  

  
1

9,
09

8,
24

9
  

 
2

2%
2

9%
5

0%
3

A
lic

ia
 P

ar
kw

a
y¹

2
01

0
O

C
T

A
1

1
4

1
9

39
,1

44
$

  
  

  
 

8
06

,0
01

$
  

  
  

  
4

,2
20

,3
58

  
  

 
1

3%
1

2%
4

0%
4

B
ea

ch
 B

o
ul

ev
a

rd
¹

2
01

0
O

C
T

A
2

1
7

0
1

,2
43

,8
59

$
  

  
1

0,
46

9,
72

2
$

  
  

5
4,

82
1,

20
2

  
 

1
4%

2
1%

2
8%

5
C

h
a

pm
an

 A
ve

n
ue

 (
S

ou
th

)*
¹

2
01

0
O

C
T

A
1

4
5

2
7

98
,1

61
$

  
  

  
 

3
,2

44
,6

79
$

  
  

  
1

6,
98

9,
69

6
  

 
1

6%
1

8%
4

6%

6
E

di
n

g
er

 A
ve

n
ue

/I
rv

in
e 

C
e

nt
e

r 
D

riv
e/

M
o

ul
to

n 
P

a
rk

w
a

y*
¹

2
01

1
O

C
T

A
22

1
09

8
46

,2
1

7
$

  
  

  
 

4
,6

09
,7

06
$

  
  

  
24

,1
3

7,
22

0
  

 
1

1%
14

%
3

4%
7

H
a

rb
or

 B
o

ul
e

va
rd

*¹
2

01
1

O
C

T
A

1
6

1
07

8
90

,3
77

$
  

  
  

 
3

,2
26

,1
11

$
  

  
  

1
6,

89
2,

43
0

  
 

1
1%

1
2%

2
3%

8
O

ra
ng

et
ho

rp
e 

A
ve

n
ue

¹
2

01
1

O
C

T
A

1
7

4
7

6
97

,5
85

$
  

  
  

 
2

,6
59

,0
36

$
  

  
  

1
3,

92
3,

18
3

  
 

1
7%

2
0%

4
2%

9
S

ta
te

 C
ol

le
g

e
 B

ou
le

va
rd

/B
ris

to
l S

tr
e

e
t*

¹
2

01
1

O
C

T
A

1
7

9
7

5
74

,6
39

$
  

  
  

 
4

,0
89

,7
35

$
  

  
  

2
1,

41
4,

53
1

  
 

1
5%

1
8%

2
8%

1
0

W
es

tm
in

st
e

r 
A

ve
nu

e
¹

2
01

1
O

C
T

A
1

3
4

8
3

08
,8

47
$

  
  

  
 

4
,2

33
,3

90
$

  
  

  
2

2,
16

6,
73

6
  

 
1

4%
1

7%
3

5%
1

1
B

ro
ok

hu
rs

t 
S

tr
ee

t¹
2

01
2

O
C

T
A

1
6

5
6

6
31

,7
64

$
  

  
  

 
7

,8
50

,2
13

$
  

  
  

4
1,

10
5,

03
1

  
 

1
9%

1
8%

3
1%

1
2

E
l T

or
o 

R
o

ad
*¹

2
01

2
O

C
T

A
1

1
4

0
4

78
,9

16
$

  
  

  
 

3
,3

02
,8

28
$

  
  

  
1

7,
29

4,
16

0
  

 
1

9%
2

4%
3

2%
1

3
K

at
el

la
 A

ve
nu

e
¹

2
01

2
O

C
T

A
1

7
6

9
6

73
,8

45
$

  
  

  
 

4
,4

35
,7

16
$

  
  

  
2

3,
22

6,
16

5
  

 
1

4%
1

4%
3

6%
1

4
L

a 
P

a
lm

a 
A

ve
nu

e¹
2

01
2

O
C

T
A

1
8

6
1

8
03

,9
99

$
  

  
  

 
6

,2
81

,5
46

$
  

  
  

3
2,

39
1,

22
9

  
 

1
8%

2
2%

2
7%

1
5

B
as

ta
n

ch
u

ry
 R

oa
d

2
01

3
F

u
lle

rt
on

8
2

7
5

39
,9

36
$

  
  

  
 

1
,0

53
,0

07
$

  
  

  
5

,5
13

,7
23

  
  

 
1

3%
1

5%
4

9%
1

6
E

uc
lid

 S
tr

e
et

*
2

01
3

F
u

lle
rt

on
1

7
6

6
1

,0
00

,0
00

$
  

  
4

,3
16

,0
31

$
  

  
  

2
2,

59
9,

45
8

  
 

1
5%

1
7%

3
9%

1
7

L
am

be
rt

 A
ve

n
ue

2
01

3
L

a 
H

a
br

a
1

0
2

6
5

20
,0

00
$

  
  

  
 

4
,5

78
,3

12
$

  
  

  
2

3,
97

2,
80

7
  

 
1

4%
1

6%
4

1%
1

8
T

u
st

in
 A

ve
nu

e/
R

o
se

 D
riv

e
2

01
3

O
C

T
A

1
0

4
3

6
83

,2
00

$
  

  
  

 
2

,3
09

,8
42

$
  

  
  

1
2,

09
4,

71
7

  
 

1
5%

1
7%

3
7%

1
9

Y
or

ba
 L

in
da

 B
ou

le
va

rd
¹

2
01

3
O

C
T

A
1

2
4

6
5

21
,8

37
$

  
  

  
 

1
,8

13
,6

93
$

  
  

  
9

,4
96

,7
99

  
  

 
1

2%
1

0%
2

1%
2

0
L

in
co

ln
 A

ve
n

ue
2

01
4

A
na

he
im

1
3

5
3

7
77

,9
10

$
  

  
  

 
1

,5
64

,3
00

$
  

  
  

8
,1

90
,9

35
  

  
 

9
%

1
5%

2
5%

2
1

V
al

le
y 

V
ie

w
 S

tr
ee

t
2

01
4

B
ue

na
 P

a
rk

3
2

0
2

80
,0

00
$

  
  

  
 

3
,0

56
,0

89
$

  
  

  
1

6,
00

2,
19

4
  

 
2

8%
2

4%
3

7%
2

2
1

7t
h 

S
tr

e
e

t
2

01
4

C
o

st
a

 M
es

a
3

9
2

20
,0

00
$

  
  

  
 

1
23

,0
98

$
  

  
  

  
6

44
,5

63
  

  
  

  
7

%
3

%
0

%
2

3
B

ak
e

r 
S

tr
e

et
/P

la
ce

n
tia

 A
ve

n
ue

2
01

4
C

o
st

a
 M

es
a

8
2

7
5

19
,9

60
$

  
  

  
 

5
40

,2
28

$
  

  
  

  
2

,8
28

,7
24

  
  

 
1

4%
1

6%
3

4%
2

4
F

a
irv

ie
w

 R
o

a
d/

S
tr

e
et

2
01

4
C

o
st

a
 M

es
a

8
3

1
6

20
,0

01
$

  
  

  
 

1
,7

35
,4

72
$

  
  

  
9

,0
87

,2
20

  
  

 
1

1%
1

2%
2

4%
2

5
V

ic
to

ria
 S

tr
e

et
2

01
4

C
o

st
a

 M
es

a
3

1
1

2
00

,0
00

$
  

  
  

 
1

24
,8

20
$

  
  

  
  

6
53

,5
81

  
  

  
  

2
2%

1
5%

2
5%

2
6

B
re

a 
B

o
ul

ev
a

rd
2

01
4

F
u

lle
rt

on
4

1
6

3
20

,0
00

$
  

  
  

 
8

13
,5

31
$

  
  

  
  

4
,2

59
,7

83
  

  
 

1
2%

1
3%

4
3%

2
7

C
o

m
m

o
nw

ea
lth

 A
ve

nu
e

2
01

4
F

u
lle

rt
on

8
3

0
6

00
,0

00
$

  
  

  
 

8
03

,0
23

$
  

  
  

  
4

,2
04

,7
61

  
  

 
1

1%
1

2%
3

6%
2

8
L

em
on

 S
tr

ee
t/

A
na

h
ei

m
 B

o
ul

e
va

rd
2

01
4

F
u

lle
rt

on
2

1
3

2
80

,0
00

$
  

  
  

 
5

31
,8

72
$

  
  

  
  

2
,7

84
,9

69
  

  
 

1
6%

2
1%

4
0%

2
9

P
la

ce
nt

ia
 A

ve
n

ue
2

01
4

F
u

lle
rt

on
4

1
5

3
80

,0
00

$
  

  
  

 
5

70
,9

21
$

  
  

  
  

2
,9

89
,4

36
  

  
 

1
8%

2
2%

4
8%

3
0

C
u

lv
e

r 
D

riv
e

2
01

4
Ir

vi
ne

1
1

3
9

7
79

,8
56

$
  

  
  

 
3

,6
25

,6
48

$
  

  
  

1
8,

98
4,

49
8

  
 

1
2%

1
2%

1
9%

3
1

Ja
m

bo
re

e 
R

o
a

d
2

01
4

Ir
vi

ne
9

2
7

2
30

,6
08

$
  

  
  

 
3

,1
73

,2
17

$
  

  
  

1
6,

61
5,

49
5

  
 

9
%

9
%

1
9%

3
2

Je
ff

re
y 

R
o

ad
2

01
4

Ir
vi

ne
9

4
0

4
10

,0
32

$
  

  
  

 
1

,9
10

,9
10

$
  

  
  

1
0,

00
5,

84
5

  
 

9
%

1
0%

2
6%

3
3

L
a 

H
a

br
a 

B
o

ul
ev

a
rd

/C
e

n
tr

al
 A

ve
nu

e
/

S
ta

te
 C

ol
le

g
e

 B
ou

le
va

rd
2

01
4

La
 H

a
br

a
6

2
3

4
60

,0
0

0
$

  
  

  
 

1
,5

5
0,

18
4

$
  

  
  

8
,1

1
7,

02
5

  
  

 
10

%
1

1
%

2
7%

3
4

P
as

e
o 

de
 V

a
le

n
ci

a
2

01
4

L
ag

un
a 

H
ill

s
3

1
2

1
90

,7
42

$
  

  
  

 
1

69
,8

59
$

  
  

  
  

8
89

,4
11

  
  

  
  

8
%

5
%

3
4%

3
5

B
al

l R
oa

d
2

01
4

O
C

T
A

1
1

3
8

7
33

,4
16

$
  

  
  

 
1

,5
32

,1
15

$
  

  
  

8
,0

22
,4

11
  

  
 

5
%

7
%

1
3%

P
ag

e 
1 

o
f 

3

ATTACHMENT B



Summary of Results for Completed Regional Traffic Signal Synchronization Projects

Corridor Name
Timing 

Completed Lead Agency
Length 
(Miles) Signals

 Board 
Allocation 

 Estimated 
Project Life Gas 

Savings 
(Dollars)^

Estimated 
Project Life 
Greenhouse 
Gas Savings 

(lbs.)
Travel Time 

Improvement

Average 
Speed 

Improvement
Stops 

Improvement

36 Crown Valley Parkway 2014 OCTA 9 30 367,200$       556,861$        2,915,820     4% 3% 20%
37 Edinger Avenue* 2014 OCTA 12 38 753,800$       1,264,832$      6,622,870     2% 5% 25%
38 First Street/Bolsa Avenue 2014 OCTA 12 49 980,000$       3,506,276$      18,359,448   11% 12% 26%
39 Lake Forest Drive 2014 OCTA 2 10 119,679$       685,904$        3,591,510     19% 23% 33%
40 Los Alisos Boulevard 2014 OCTA 7 21 332,617$       27,876$          145,962        5% 3% 16%
41 MacArthur Boulevard/Talbert Avenue 2014 OCTA 7 24 392,256$       524,129$        2,744,427     7% 8% 13%
42 Magnolia Street 2014 OCTA 16 54 399,943$       2,208,937$      11,566,362   10% 12% 26%
43 Marguerite Parkway 2014 OCTA 9 31 323,056$       609,084$        3,189,264     11% 12% 21%
44 Pacific Park Drive/Oso Parkway* 2014 OCTA 8 32 490,222$       1,912,481$      10,014,071   16% 19% 29%
45 Warner Avenue 2014 OCTA 13 43 621,848$       1,797,186$      9,410,366     8% 6% 15%
46 Avenida Pico 2014 San Clemente 4 21 416,453$       705,991$        3,696,687     9% 10% 21%
47 El Camino Real 2014 San Clemente 4 19 359,998$       1,482,733$      7,763,838     9% 10% 25%
48 Del Obispo Street 2014 San Juan Capistrano 4 16 138,800$       992,762$        5,198,269     13% 10% 11%
49 Knott Avenue 2015 Buena Park 7 28 448,000$       1,918,098$      10,043,483   23% 26% 37%
50 Newport Coast Drive 2015 Newport Beach 5 15 260,000$       651,984$        3,413,896     10% 0% 6%
51 San Joaquin Hills Road 2015 Newport Beach 4 11 220,000$       584,913$        3,062,701     11% 12% 32%
52 Jeronimo Road¹ 2015 OCTA 6 16 267,360$       1,508,063$      7,896,471     12% 3% 35%
53 Santa Margarita Parkway 2015 OCTA 5 20 311,912$       1,705,334$      8,929,416     15% 18% 41%
54 Trabuco Road¹ 2015 OCTA 5 16 266,971$       1,294,844$      6,780,018     15% 18% 32%
55 Avenida Vista Hermosa 2015 San Clemente 3 17 305,856$       252,899$        1,324,219     17% 19% 54%
56 Camino De Los Mares 2015 San Clemente 2 13 248,208$       1,806,683$      3,153,365     27% 37% 57%
57 Artesia Boulevard 2016 Buena Park 2 11 422,142$       795,156$        4,163,572     20% 16% 38%
58 Alton Parkway 2016 Irvine 14 48 1,209,396$    3,082,089$      16,138,332   12% 14% 39%
59 Barranca Parkway 2016 Irvine 13 44 2,106,434$    2,734,900$      14,320,395   10% 11% 26%
60 Adams Avenue¹ 2016 OCTA 5 17 1,042,374$    2,065,973$      10,817,781   7% 14% 27%
61 Antonio Parkway¹ 2016 OCTA 10 27 1,156,920$    2,274,125$      11,907,699   16% 19% 23%
62 Bake Parkway 2016 OCTA 6 19 532,603$       1,434,344$      7,510,464     12% 12% 28%
63 La Paz Road 2016 OCTA 8 23 328,192$       1,951,861$      10,220,270   14% 16% 21%
64 Newport Avenue/Boulevard (North)¹ 2016 OCTA 7 24 946,045$       581,731$        3,046,041     12% 15% 36%
65 Newport Boulevard (South) 2016 OCTA 7 33 1,304,596$    944,446$        4,945,276     5% 7% 17%
66 State College Boulevard*¹ 2016 OCTA 5 35 1,041,579$    1,484,920$      7,775,289     10% 11% 16%
67 Seal Beach Boulevard/Los Alamitos Boulevard 2016 Seal Beach 3 13 586,720$       1,016,379$      5,321,931     10% 11% 31%
68 Anaheim Boulevard 2017 Anaheim 4 18 787,940$       (95,430)$         (499,686)       -1% 0% 9%
69 Harbor Boulevard* 2017 Anaheim 4 22 731,867$       1,414,593$      7,407,047     8% 9% 15%
70 Birch Street/Rose Drive 2017 Brea 4 14 664,230$       629,603$        3,296,709     23% 30% 37%

Page 2 of 3



Summary of Results for Completed Regional Traffic Signal Synchronization Projects

Corridor Name
Timing 

Completed Lead Agency
Length 
(Miles) Signals

 Board 
Allocation 

 Estimated 
Project Life Gas 

Savings 
(Dollars)^

Estimated 
Project Life 
Greenhouse 
Gas Savings 

(lbs.)
Travel Time 

Improvement

Average 
Speed 

Improvement
Stops 

Improvement

71 Bristol Street* 2017 OCTA 8 45 1,884,620$    1,649,926$      8,639,290     7% 8% 13%
72 Goldenwest Street 2017 OCTA 8 32 380,800$       374,406$        1,960,454     11% 7% 23%
73 Harbor Boulevard* 2017 Santa Ana 10 46 1,852,080$    4,320,825$      22,624,563   10% 10% 15%
74 Sunflower Avenue 2018 Costa Mesa 3 14 617,960$       631,288$        3,305,529     15% 32% 38%
75 El Toro Road* 2018 Laguna Woods 3 15 514,000$       1,116,724$      5,847,356     17% 20% 33%
76 Moulton Parkway* 2018 Laguna Woods 11 37 645,440$       939,620$        4,920,008     12% 2% 41%
77 Marguerite Parkway* 2018 Mission Viejo 9 30 759,232$       1,663,372$      8,709,695     8% 9% 18%
78 Olympiad Road-Felipe Road 2018 Mission Viejo 6 18 515,656$       197,900$        1,036,240     3% 3% 6%
79 Chapman Avenue* 2018 OCTA 14 55 2,344,044$    2,322,428$      12,160,622   8% 9% 0%

80
Kraemer Boulevard/Glassell Street/

Grand Avenue 2018 OCTA 15 61 2,433,520$    1,722,240$      441,600        12% 7% 8%
81 Orangewood Avenue 2019 Anaheim 3 15 683,328$       1,140,726$      5,973,032     17% 22% 46%
82 Irvine Boulevard 2019 Irvine 7 29 378,166$       2,757,359$      14,437,996   17% 21% 37%
83 Irvine Center Drive/Edinger Avenue* 2019 Irvine 9 39 1,824,000$    3,402,931$      17,818,317   16% 19% 31%
84 Von Karman Avenue/Tustin Ranch Road 2019 Irvine 8 30 1,439,980$    2,231,534$      11,684,688   13% 14% 27%
85 Alicia Parkway* 2019 OCTA 11 40 1,847,200$    3,550,240$      18,589,652   12% 13% 31%
86 Coast Highway 2019 OCTA 9 27 1,799,210$    1,907,001$      9,985,376     5% 5% 8%
87 El Toro Road* 2019 OCTA 7 25 1,112,447$    4,079,112$      21,358,911   20% 25% 42%
88 Westminster Avenue/17th Street* 2019 OCTA 16 63 2,820,102$    141,754$        742,246        5% 5% 16%
89 Camino Vera Cruz 2019 San Clemente 1 5 192,686$       145,831$        763,596        9% 8% 35%

772 3003 64,812,893$  178,451,633$  919,019,575 13% 14% 29%

^ $3.90 per gallon gasoline price used to estimate savings
Note: Improvements are averaged across both directions over the full corridor 
¹ Project Board of Directors allocation includes external funding

lbs - pounds

OCTA - Orange County Transportation Authority

Summary of All Projects    
* Euclid Street, Pacific Park Drive/Oso Parkway, Harbor Boulevard, State College Boulevard, Bristol Street, Moulton Parkway, Chapman Avenue, Westminster Avenue, El Toro Road, 
Alicia Parkway, Marguerite Parkway, and Irvine Center Drive/Edinger Avenue are included multiple times because these corridors have been revisited

Page 3 of 3



Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California  92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282) 

June 28, 2021 
 
 
To: Members of the Board of Directors 

 
From: Darrell E. Johnson, Chief Executive Officer 
 
Subject: Taxpayer Oversight Committee New Member Recruitment and 

Lottery   
 
 
Overview 
 
The Measure M2 Ordinance No. 3 requires the establishment of a committee to 
oversee implementation of the prescribed Measure M2 program of transportation 
improvements.  This committee is known as the Taxpayer Oversight Committee, 
and each year, new committee members are recruited and selected to fill 
vacancies created by expired terms. The recruitment process for the Taxpayer 
Oversight Committee has been completed for 2021, and a lottery must take 
place in public session to fill vacancies in the First, Second, Fourth, and Fifth 
Supervisorial Districts.   
 
Recommendation 
 
Pursuant to Measure M2 Ordinance No. 3, conduct the lottery for final selection of 
new Measure M2 Taxpayer Oversight Committee members by drawing one name 
representing each of the First, Second, Fourth, and Fifth Supervisorial Districts, 
from the list of recommended finalists from the Grand Jurors Association of 
Orange County. 
 
Background 
 
The Measure M2 (M2) Ordinance No. 3 (M2 Ordinance) requires the 
establishment of an independent Taxpayer Oversight Committee (TOC) to 
ensure the transportation projects in the M2 Transportation Investment Plan 
(Plan) are implemented as approved by the voters. The 11-member committee 
has balanced representation from all five supervisorial districts, with ten private 
citizens plus the Orange County Auditor-Controller. The TOC meets bimonthly 
to review progress on the implementation of the Plan. 
 
Each year, as terms of appointed TOC members come to an end, a recruitment 
process is conducted to fill vacancies. As outlined in the M2 Ordinance, the 



Taxpayer Oversight Committee New Member Recruitment and 
Lottery 

Page 2

 

 

recruitment process is conducted by the Grand Jurors Association of Orange 
County (GJAOC). The GJAOC acts as an independent body serving in the 
interest of Orange County citizens. In its role, the GJAOC appoints a  
five-member Selection Panel (Panel) to conduct the recruitment process.   
 
The Panel has conducted the application/recruitment program since the 
beginning of Measure M in 1990. The first lottery took place on  
November 15, 1990, and the individuals chosen began meeting in January 1991, 
serving staggered one-year, two-year, or three-year terms. Following the same 
recruitment process, new members serving three-year terms have joined the 
committee each year, replacing outgoing members whose terms have expired. 
 
Discussion 
 
On June 30, 2021, the terms of four TOC members will expire. The current 
membership roster is attached (Attachment A). The schedule for the recruitment 
process for this year began in late January 2021 to fill vacancies in the First, 
Second, Fourth, and Fifth Supervisorial District seats (Attachment B). 
 
The Panel concluded the recruitment process to fill the four vacant positions in 
early May (Attachment C). A fact sheet/application form was used for recruitment 
purposes (Attachment D). Announcements were distributed to more than 8,700 
persons by sending an announcement to the Orange County Transportation 
Authority (OCTA) database. Advertisements were also placed in the  
Los Angeles Times and the Orange County Register, and digital banners were 
placed on their websites. In addition, social 
media pages as well as on construction project pages located within the 
recruitment area. Additionally, targeted Facebook and mobile application 
advertisements were used to notify residents in the First, Second, Fourth, and 
Fifth Supervisorial Districts. Announcements were sent to the media, cities, and 
elected offices and information was sent to local civic organizations and 
professional associations (Orange County Business Council, OC Taxpayers 
Association, Chambers of Commerce, etc.) to include in their newsletters and 
social media accounts. Also, information was sent to three Orange County 
universities (University of California, Irvine, Chapman University, and California 
State University, Fullerton) to share with graduate students studying fields 
related to business or political science.  
 
The members of the Panel screened 29 applications from interested citizens, 
looking , as well as 
experience with community and transportation issues.  The Panel considered 

ts, desire to make the TOC a 
priority, their involvement in community organizations, any special skills or 



Taxpayer Oversight Committee New Member Recruitment and 
Lottery 

Page 3

 

 

experience relating to transportation, and their degree of knowledge of 
government. In addition, M2 prohibits elected or appointed officials from serving 
on the TOC. Based on a previous amendment to the M2 Ordinance, the Panel 
also included more specific questions on the application regarding conflicts of 
interest. Any appointed and elected officials were required to fill out an intent to 
resign form. 
 
Following the initial screening process, 27 virtual interviews were conducted by 
the Panel in an effort to gain as much insight as possible about the most qualified 
candidates. 
 
The Panel is recommending 15 candidates for possible membership on the 
committee: two from the First Supervisorial District, five from the Second 
Supervisorial District, three from the Fourth Supervisorial District, and five from 
the Fifth Supervisorial District (Attachment E). While an extensive outreach 
campaign took place for recruitment across all Supervisorial Districts, application 
numbers fluctuated between districts resulting in variance in the number of 
finalists. 
  
At the June 28, 2021, OCTA Board of Directors meeting, the Chairman will select 
four persons by lottery to fill the vacant positions. The four new members will 
begin serving their terms in July 2021. Each representative will serve a  
three-year term. 
 
During the lottery process, the first name drawn from each supervisorial district 
will be the selected committee member. The remaining names will be drawn from 
each supervisorial district to establish a contingency list. Should a vacancy 
occur, finalists would be called upon to serve on the committee in the order in 
which the names were drawn. 
 
Resolutions for Outgoing Members 
 
Participation on the TOC requires dedication, time, and commitment. The 
volunteers who serve on the TOC provide expertise and insight, resulting in 
thoughtful discussions regarding the implementation and oversight of M2. In 
recognition of this contribution to the citizens of Orange County, Resolutions of 
Appreciation will be given to the following TOC members who have completed 
their terms:  
 
 Dr. Pauline Merry  First Supervisorial District 
 Mark Kizzar  Second Supervisorial District 
 Larry Lang  Fourth Supervisorial District 



Taxpayer Oversight Committee New Member Recruitment and 
Lottery 

Page 4

 

 

 Jeffrey Kaplan  Fifth Supervisorial District 
 
Summary 
 
The Panel has completed its recruitment for four open positions on the TOC for 
the First, Second, Fourth, and Fifth Supervisorial Districts and submitted the 
names of eligible candidates for the 2021 lottery to fill the four positions. 
Outgoing members will receive Resolutions of Appreciation. 
 
Attachments 
 
A. Measure M2 Taxpayer Oversight Committee Members Fiscal Year 2020-21 
B. Measure M2 Taxpayer Oversight Committee, 2021 Recruitment 

Schedule, Supervisorial Districts One, Two, Four, and Five 
C. 2021 Grand Jurors Association of Orange County, Oversight Committee 

Selection Panel  
D. Taxpayer Oversight Committee, 2021 Membership Application 
E. Measure M2 Taxpayer Oversight Committee, 2021 Finalists 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: 
 
 
 
 

 Approved by: 
 
 

Alice T. Rogan  Maggie McJilton 
Director, Marketing and Public Outreach 
External Affairs 
(714) 560-5577 

 Interim Executive Director, 
External Affairs 
(714) 560-5824 

 



Measure M2  
Taxpayer Oversight Committee Members  

Fiscal Year 2020-21 
 

 
  
 
 M2  Measure M2 
  
 

 
  

 

District Name Term Expiration 

1 Douglas P. Gillen 3 Years 2022 

1 Pauline E. Merry * 3 Years 2021 

2 Harry Sloan 3 Years 2023 

2 Mark Kizzar 3 Years 2021 

3 Joseph McCarthy 3 Years 2023 

3 Tuan Nguyen 3 Years 2022 

4 Larry A. Lang 3 Years 2021 

4 Michael Pascual 3 Years 2022 

5 Jeffrey Kaplan 3 Years 2021 

5 Douglas Anderson 3 Years 2022 

 
Frank Davies: Orange County 
Auditor-Controller 

 
Required by M2 
Ordinance 

ATTACHMENT A



MEASURE M2 TAXPAYER OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE
2021 RECRUITMENT SCHEDULE 

SUPERVISORIAL DISTRICTS ONE, TWO, FOUR, AND FIVE 
 

Jan. 27 
Planning meeting with Grand Jurors Association of Orange County 
(GJAOC) Selection Panel 

Feb. 8 Website updated with 2021 recruitment content and application 

Feb. 15  May 2  

First social media posts on Facebook and Twitter 
 
Bi-  
 
Bi-weekly social media posts (Facebook and Twitter) 
 
Monthly call with GJAOC on recruitment status / weekly recap emails  

Feb. 22 

Press release distributed 
 
Information sent to the County Supervisor offices, city public 
information officers, city clerks and city managers; Orange County 
Business Council, Women
organizations for newsletters/blogs/social media  

Feb. 26 - May 2 

Ad in the Los Angeles Times (includes local community papers); 
Orange County Register (includes local community papers) 
 
Posted on Los Angeles Times and Orange County Register websites 

May 2 Application deadline 

May 3, 4 GJAOC Interview Panel Resume Screening and Interview Scheduling  

May 5, 6, 7, 10, 
11, 12, 13 

GJAOC Selection Panel interviews candidates and prepares finalist list 

May 20 GJAOC Selection Panel submits list of finalists to OCTA 

May 21-28 Legal counsel review of finalists  

Jun. 28 OCTA Chairman draws names at Board of Directors Meeting 

ATTACHMENT B 



 
 
 
 
 

2021 
GRAND JURORS ASSOCIATION OF ORANGE COUNTY 

OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE SELECTION PANEL 
 
 
 

William Underwood, Chair 

Robin Bowen 

Sandy Dunkin 

John Moohr 

Virginia Zlaket 

Primary Alternate: Bette Flick 

 

ATTACHMENT C 



 
2021 Membership Application

Last updated 01/27/2020 Page 1 of 4 

KEEP AN EYE ON YOUR TAX DOLLARS 

RESIDENTS NEEDED FROM THE FIRST, SECOND, FOURTH, AND FIFTH SUPERVISORIAL DISTRICTS 
 

OC Go (also known as Measure M) is the Transportation Ordinance and Plan approved first by Orange County voters in 
1990 and renewed again by voters in 2006. The combined measures raise the sales tax in Orange County by one-half cent 
for a total period of 50 years to alleviate traffic congestion. This money is administered by the Orange County Transportation 
Authority (OCTA) and pays for specific voter-approved transportation projects for freeway improvements, local street and 
road improvements, and rail and transit programs specified in the Plan.  

OC Go calls for an independent Taxpayer Oversight Committee to oversee compliance with the Ordinance as specified in 
the Transportation Ordinance and Plan. 

The responsibilities of the 11-member Taxpayer Oversight Committee are to: 

Ensure all transportation revenue collected from OC Go is spent on the projects approved by the voters as part of 
the Plan; 
Ratify any changes in the Plan and recommend any major changes go back to the voters for approval; 
Participate in ensuring that all jurisdictions in Orange County conform with the requirements of OC Go before receipt 
of any tax monies for local projects; 
Hold annual public meetings regarding the expenditure and status of funds generated by OC Go; 
Review independent audits of issues regarding the Plan and performance of the Orange County Local 
Transportation Authority regarding the expenditure of OC Go sales tax monies. 
Annually certify OCTA is proceeding in accordance with the Plan. 

HOW ARE MEMBERS CHOSEN? WHO CAN APPLY TO SERVE? 

Taxpayer Oversight Committee candidates are chosen by 
the Grand Jurors Association of Orange County (GJAOC), 
which has formed a five-member Taxpayer Oversight 
Committee Selection Panel to conduct an extensive 
recruitment program. The panel screens all applications, 
conducts interviews and recommends candidates for 
membership on the Taxpayer Oversight Committee. The 
GJAOC is made up of former grand jurors who have a 
continuing concern for good government and whose 
purpose is to promote public understanding of the 
functions and purpose of the grand jury. The GJAOC is a 
neutral body serving the interests of the citizens of Orange 
County. 
 

     Taxpayer Oversight Committee members represent 
each of the five Orange County Supervisorial Districts and 
have been meeting regularly since 1990. At this time, the 
GJAOC is conducting a recruitment to fill four vacancies 
with one representative from each of the First, Second, 
Fourth, and Fifth Supervisorial Districts. The GJAOC will 
recommend as many as five finalists from each district. 
The new members are to be chosen by lottery at the   
June 28, 2021 meeting of the OCTA Board of Directors. 
The terms for the new committee members will begin    
July 1, 2021. The representatives will serve    three-year 
terms which expire on June 30, 2024. This is a volunteer 
position and no monetary compensation will be paid to 
committee members. The chairperson is the elected 
Auditor-Controller of Orange County. The Auditor-

term. 

Any Orange County citizen 18 years or older may apply to 
serve on the Taxpayer Oversight Committee. Potential 
candidates will be reviewed on the basis of the following 
criteria: 
 

1. Commitment and ability to participate in Taxpayer 
Oversight Committee meetings for a three-year term 
from July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2024. The Committee will 
maintain time and meeting requirements. The 
Committee currently meets quarterly. 

2. Demonstrated interest and history of participation in 
community activities, with special emphasis on 
transportation-related activities. 

3. Lack of financial conflict of interest with respect to the 
allocation of sales tax revenue generated by OC Go. All 
Taxpayer Oversight Committee members are required to 
sign a conflict of interest form when accepting 
appointment. 

4. Elected or appointed city, district, county, state or federal 
officials are not eligible to serve. 

 
DEADLINE FOR APPLICATION: 

 

All applications MUST be received no later than         
May 2, 2021. For additional information, please call 
714-974-9699 or visit octa.net/TOC recruitment. Please 
print and mail completed application to: 

 

GJAOC 
Attn: TOC Application Screening 
P.O. BOX 354 
Orange, CA 92856-9998  

ATTACHMENT D 



 
2021 Membership Application

Last updated 01/27/2020 Page 2 of 4 

APPLICATION FOR TAXPAYER OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE 
Please type or print using dark ink. Additional sheets may be attached if needed. Please be as comprehensive as possible. 

 Name:       Email:        

 Business Address:                      
 Street  City  Zip Code  
 Residence Address:                      

Street  City Zip Code 

 Home Phone: (     ) Business Phone: (     )  

 Supervisorial District Number:       (Call Registrar of Voters at (714) 567-7582 to confirm your district.)  

Present Employment Status:                     Employed                     Unemployed                       Retired            

     
 Present Occupation:       Employer:        

 Ethnic Origin (optional):  How long have you lived in Orange County?  year(s)  

 
Are you a citizen of the United States?     Yes      No Are you a registered voter?     Yes      No  

  
 Have you (or your spouse) or any entity that you either work for or have a financial 

interest in, received any financial remuneration for goods or services provided by 
you, or by any entity you work for or have a financial interest in, that was paid for 
with OC Go revenues, either directly or indirectly, within the past 12 months? 

   Yes      No 

 

  
 If so, please explain.  

       

 
Do you have any possible conflict of interest with respect to the allocation of OC Go 
revenues? 

   Yes      No 
 

 If so, please explain.  

  

 Are you currently an elected or appointed officer of any public entity? 
(Note: All public officers shall complete an intent to resign form.) 

   Yes      No 
 

 If so, please explain.   

       

 Are you related to or closely associated with any elected official or public employee?    Yes      No  
 If so, please state the nature of the association.  

       

 Have you ever been convicted of malfeasance in office, or of any felony?    Yes      No  
 If so, please explain.  

       
  



 
2021 Membership Application

Last updated 01/27/2020 Page 3 of 4 

 
As a member of any profession or organization, or as a holder of any office, have you 
ever been suspended, disbarred, or otherwise disqualified? 

   Yes      No  
 If so, please explain.  

       
  

 
Do you personally have any past or pending issues related to development or 
transportation in any Orange County city? 

   Yes      No  
 If so, please explain.  

       
  
 Have you ever been involved in a lawsuit with OCTA?    Yes      No  
 If so, please explain.  

       
  

 
Do you possess research abilities, including complex reading facility and capability to 
assess and analyze facts? 

   Yes      No  
  

 
Is there any reason that you may be biased and not objective if you are chosen to serve 
as a member of the Taxpayer Oversight Committee? 

   Yes      No  
  

 

While no specific time commitment is predetermined, are you willing to make a 
conscientious effort for a period of three years to give membership on this committee 
a priority and participate as necessary? 

   Yes      No 

 
  

 

If you are presently active or have been active in the past five years in any organization, please give the 
organization name, nature of your activities and duties, and appropriate dates.  
(Attach sheet if necessary)  

       

       

       
  
 In what transportation-related activities have you been involved?  

       

       
  
 What do you know about OC Go/Measure M?  

       

       
  
 What specialized skill or expertise would you bring to the Oversight Committee?  

       

       



 
2021 Membership Application

Last updated 01/27/2020 Page 4 of 4 

 

EDUCATIONAL BACKGROUND: 
List highest grade completed, any degrees you hold and the college/university attended and date of 
graduation.  

       

       
  

 
EMPLOYMENT BACKGROUND: 
List or attach your resume, including positions and titles held.  

       

       
  
 How did you hear about the Taxpayer Oversight Committee?  

  Online  Newspaper/Magazines  Social Media  

  OC Register      OC Register     Facebook / Instagram  

  LA Times      LA Times     Twitter  

  OCTA Website      Local Advertisement      E-mail   

  Other:   
  
 Why do you wish to be considered for membership on the Taxpayer Oversight Committee?  

       

       

       

       

       

       
  

APPLICATION MUST BE RECEIVED BY MAY 1, 2020 

Please print and mail completed application to: 
GJAOC  
Attn: TOC Application Screening 
P.O. BOX 354 
Orange, CA 92856-9998  
 

For more information 714-974-9699. 

I hereby declare the information provided in this Application for the Taxpayer Oversight Committee is true, correct and 
complete to the best of my knowledge. I understand that my statements may be verified and I give permission to do so. 

             
Date 

 Signature 



MEASURE M2 TAXPAYER OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE

2021 FINALISTS 
 

 

DISTRICT 1 
 

NAME  CITY 
Pauline Merry Garden Grove 
Andrew Ramirez  Fountain Valley 

 
DISTRICT 2 

 
NAME  CITY 
Paul Anderson Newport Beach 
Ellen Riley  Huntington Beach 
Pradeep Gunaratne Huntington Beach 
Michael Hamrell Huntington Beach 
Mark Kizzar Huntington Beach 

 
DISTRICT 4 

 
NAME  CITY 
James Evans  Brea 
Ajay Khetani Anaheim 
Dana Swart Placentia 

 

DISTRICT 5 
 

NAME  CITY 
Patricia Andereen San Clemente 
Kevin Dailey Mission Viejo 
Nilima Gupta Lake Forest 

Toole San Clemente 
Blake Stephens  Laguna Niguel 

 

ATTACHMENT E 



Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California  92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282) 

June 28, 2021 
 
 
To: Members of the Board of Directors 
 
From: Darrell E. Johnson, Chief Executive Officer 
 
Subject: Taxpayer Oversight Committee Measure M2 Annual Public 

Hearing Results and Compliance Finding 
 
 
Overview 
 

-half cent sales tax for transportation, was 
passed by voters in 1990 and renewed in 2006. The Measure M2 Ordinance  
No. 3 requires an independent committee to oversee compliance and to 
determine whether the Orange County Transportation Authority is proceeding in 
accordance with Ordinance No. 3. On June 8, 2021, that independent 
committee, established as the Taxpayer Oversight Committee, conducted the 
30th Measure M Annual Public Hearing. The Taxpayer Oversight Committee 
found the Orange County Local Transportation Authority has proceeded in 
accordance with Measure M2 Ordinance No. 3 during 2020.  
 
Recommendation  
 
Receive and file as an information item. 
 
Background 
 
The Measure M2 (M2) Ordinance No. 3 (M2 Ordinance) requires the 
establishment of an independent Taxpayer Oversight Committee (TOC) to 
ensure the transportation projects in the M2 Transportation Investment Plan 
(Plan) are implemented as approved by the voters in 2006. The 11-member 
committee has balanced representation of all five supervisorial districts, with ten 
private citizens plus the Orange County Auditor-Controller. The TOC meets 
bimonthly to review progress on the implementation of M2. 
 
Annually, the TOC is required to hold a public hearing to receive comments from 
the public regarding M2 as part of its oversight effort to determine whether the 
Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA), acting as the Orange County 
Local Transportation Authority (OCLTA), is proceeding in accordance with M2. 
 



Taxpayer Oversight Committee Measure M2 Annual Public 
Hearing Results and Compliance Finding 

Page 2
 

 

 

The results of the hearing and the finding of the TOC are transmitted to the OCTA 
Board of Directors annually. The TOC has consistently found OCTA in 
compliance for the past 29 years. 
 
Discussion 
 
On June 8, 2021, the 30th Measure M Annual Public Hearing took place virtually 
via Zoom. The hearing was publicized through news releases, public notices, 

 and On the Move blog. In accordance 
with Executive Order N-29-20, in order to ensure the safety of the TOC members 
and staff, and due to the coronavirus pandemic, public comments were to be 
submitted remotely by 6:00 p.m. on Friday, June 4, 2021. There were no public 
comments received by the deadline.  
 
Following the public hearing and review of the annual financial audit of OCLTA 
and all other information the committee members have been provided to date, 
the TOC made the determination at its June 8, 2021 meeting that during 2020, 
OCTA has proceeded in accordance with the M2 Ordinance. Frank Davies, Chair 
of the TOC, has submitted an official letter stating their findings (Attachment A). 
 
Additionally, in accordance with M2 Ordinance, Section 10, Paragraph 3, Chair 
Davies certified that the revenues through fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, have 
been spent in compliance with the M2 Ordinance. 
 
Summary 
 
Subsequent to bimonthly meetings and the Measure M Annual Public Hearing 
on June 8, 2021, the TOC has determined that OCTA is proceeding in 
accordance with the M2 Ordinance and Plan. 
 



Taxpayer Oversight Committee Measure M2 Annual Public 
Hearing Results and Compliance Finding 

Page 3
 

 

 

Attachment 
 

A. Memo to Andrew Do, Chairman, Orange County Transportation Authority, 
from Frank Davies, Chair, Measure M Taxpayer Oversight Committee, 
dated June 9, 2021, Subject  30th Measure M Annual Public Hearing 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: 
 
 
 

 Approved by: 
 
 
 

Alice T. Rogan  Maggie McJilton 
Director, Marketing and Public 
Outreach 
714-560-5577 

 Interim Executive Director, 
External Affairs 
(714) 560-5824 

 





Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California 92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282) 

June 23, 2021 
 
 
To: Finance and Administration Committee 
 
From: Darrell E. Johnson, Chief Executive Officer 
 
Subject: Orange County Transportation Authority Investment and Debt 

Programs Report  May 2021  
 
 
Overview 
 
The Orange County Transportation Authority has a comprehensive investment 
and debt program to fund its immediate and long-term cash flow demands.  Each 
month, the Treasurer submits a report detailing investment allocation, 
performance, compliance, outstanding debt balances, and credit ratings for the 

month ending May 31, 2021.   
 
Recommendation 
 
Receive and file as an information item. 
 
Discussion 
 
As of May 31, 2021, the Orange County Transportation OCTA) 
outstanding investments totaled $2 billion.  The portfolio is divided into three 
managed portfolios: the liquid portfolio for immediate cash needs, the short-term 
portfolio for future budgeted expenditures, and the bond proceeds portfolio to 
meet Measure M2 (M2) transportation program needs. In addition to these 
portfolios, OCTA has funds invested in debt service reserve funds for the  
91 Express Lanes Program.  
 
Portfolio Compliance and Liquidity Requirements for the Next Six Months: The 

California Government Code. Additionally, OCTA has reviewed the liquidity 
requirements for the next six months 
sufficient to meet projected expenditures during the next six months. 
 
The weighted average book yield for the OCTA portfolio is 1.1 percent. The book 
yield measures the exact income, or interest, on a bond without regard to market 



Orange County Transportation Authority Investment and Debt 
Programs Report  May 2021 

Page 2
 

 

 

price change. The yield is the income return on an investment, such as the 
interest received from holding a particular security. The yield is usually 
expressed as an annual percentage rate based on the investment's cost and 
market value.  
 
OCTA -end balance in the Local Agency Investment Fund was 
$70,996,561, with an average monthly effective yield of 0.3 percent. OCTA
month-end balance in the Orange County Investment Pool (OCIP) was 
$23,218,901. For the month of April, the monthly gross yield for the OCIP was 
0.5 percent. Yields for the month of May will be received in June.   
 

During the month of May, two securities  
were downgraded. The total number of securities on the Negative Credit  
Watch list remained at one security for the month. Please refer to  
A-8 (Rating Downgrades and Negative Credit Watch) of Attachment A for further 
details. As of May 31, 2021, the securities reflected on A-8 still meet the minimum 
ratings requirements   
 

 debt program is separate from its investment program and is comprised 
of M2 Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, 91 Toll Revenue Bonds, and 2017 
Transportation Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (TIFIA) Loan. The debt 
program currently has an outstanding principal balance of $990 million as of  
May 31, 2021.  Approximately 62 percent of the outstanding balance is 
comprised of M2 debt, nine percent is associated with the 91 Express Lanes 
Program, and 29 percent is for the TIFIA Loan.  
 

Summary  
 

The Treasurer is submitting a copy of the Orange County Transportation 
Authority Investment and Debt Programs report to the Finance and 
Administration Committee. The report is for the month ending May 31, 2021. 
 

  



Orange County Transportation Authority Investment and Debt 
Programs Report  May 2021 

Page 3
 

 

 

Attachments 
 

A. Orange County Transportation Authority Investment and Debt Programs 
 For the Period Ending May 31, 2021 

B. Orange County Transportation Authority Portfolio Listing as of  
May 31, 2021  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved by: 

 
Robert Davis  Andrew Oftelie 
Department Manager 
Treasury/Public Finance 
(714) 560-5675 

Chief Financial Officer 
Finance and Administration 
(714) 560-5649 

 



ATTACHMENT A

Treasury/Public Finance Department's
Report On

Orange County Transportation Authority

Presented to the
Finance and Administration Committee

For The Period Ending

May 31, 2021

Investment and Debt Programs 



*Per CA Government Code LAIF limit is $75 million

OCTA Investment Dashboard
5/31/2021

A-1



Dollar Amount Percent Of Investment Policy
Short-Term/Liquid Portfolio1 Invested Portfolio Maximum Percentages
U.S. Treasury Obligations 555,470,320$       31.5% 100%
Federal Agency/GSE 352,379,286         20.0% 100%
Municipal Debt 121,906,281         6.9% 30%
Commercial Paper -                       0.0% 25%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 21,800,000           1.2% 30%
Repurchase Agreements -                       0.0% 25%
Medium Term Maturity Notes/Corporates 215,993,153         12.2% 30%
Money Market/Mutual Funds 24,925,786           1.4% 20%
Mortgage & Asset-Backed 187,081,384         10.6% 20%*
Supranationals 30,904,063           1.8% 20%
Local Agency Investment Fund** 70,996,561           4.0% $ 75 Million
Orange County Investment Pool 23,218,901           1.3% 10%
Joint Powers Authority Pools -                       0.0% 10%
Bank Deposits 30,585,282           1.7% 5%
Variable & Floating Rate Securities 128,573,775         7.3% 30%

Total Short-Term/Liquid Portfolio 1,763,834,793$    100.0%
1. Excludes portion of Liquid Portfolio subject to Indenture
*Asset-backed securities, excluding mortgages, may not exceed 10 percent of the allocation
**OCTA increased the balance in the LAIF (Pool) from $46m to $71m during the month of February. 

Dollar Amount
Invested Credit Quality Term Credit Quality Term 

Liquid Portfolio*
Money Market Funds 40,444,268$         AAA/Aaa 45 days Min. A2/A Max. 4 years
Total Liquid Portfolio 40,444,268$         

Bond Proceeds Portfolio
Money Market Funds 171,159,345$       AAA/Aaa 45 days Min. A2/A Max. 4 years
Total Bond Proceeds Portfolio 171,159,345$       

Reserve Funds Portfolio
Commercial Paper 25,084,570$         P-1/F-1 60-150 days Min. A-1/P-1 Max. 180 days 
Bank Deposits 218,921$              
US Treasuries Obligations 68                         AAA/Aaa 30 days Min. A2/A Max. 5 years
Total Reserve Funds Portfolio 25,303,558$         

Total Portfolio Subject to Indenture 196,462,903$       

Portfolio Total 2,000,741,964$    

*Reflects portion of Liquid Portfolio subject to Indenture

Portfolio Subject to Indenture

Investment Compliance
5/31/2021

A-2

OCTA Indenture Requirements

Portfolio Subject to Investment Policy



Investment Manager Diversification and Maturity Schedules

MetLife Investment Management
5/31/2021

SHORT-TERM PORTFOLIO ( $407.0 M)

Book Market
Value Value

U.S. Treasury Obligations 102,562,991.99$   103,315,728.80$   
Federal Agency/GSE 48,709,920.16$     48,776,476.40$     
Municipal Debt 60,095,988.45$     60,736,395.50$     
Bankers Acceptances -$                       -$                       
Commercial Paper -$                       -$                       
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit -$                       -$                       
Repurchase Agreements -$                       -$                       
Medium Term Maturity Notes 53,928,022.65$     54,391,837.58$     
Money Market/Mutual Funds 3,598,741.70$       3,598,741.70$       
Mortg & Asset-Backed Securities 69,294,922.04$     69,783,016.39$     
Supranationals 14,408,432.40$     14,685,554.70$     
Joint Powers Authority Pools -$                       -$                       
Variable & Floating Rate Securities 54,436,564.62$     54,398,059.16$     

407,035,584.01$   409,685,810.23$   

Wtd Avg Life 1.67 Yrs
Duration 1.61 Yrs

Monthly Yield 0.34%
TSY Benchmark 0.15%

Gov/Corp Benchmark 0.20%

Monthly Return 0.14%
TSY Benchmark 0.08%

Gov/Corp Benchmark 0.10%

3 Month Return 0.20%
TSY Benchmark 0.14%

Gov/Corp Benchmark 0.16%

Fiscal YTD Return 0.91%
TSY Benchmark 0.23%

Gov/Corp Benchmark 0.42%

12 Month Return 1.23%
TSY Benchmark 0.26%

Gov/Corp Benchmark 0.53%

A-3

U.S. 
Treasury 

Obligations
25.2%

Federal 
Agency/GSE

12.0%

Municipal 
Debt

14.8%

Medium 
Term 

Maturity 
Notes
13.2%

Money 
Market/Mutual 

Funds
0.9%

Mortg & Asset 
Backed Sec

17.0%

Supranationals 
3.5%

Variable & 
Floating 

Rate 
Securities 

13.4%

$ 



Investment Manager Diversification and Maturity Schedules

PFM
5/31/2021

                       SHORT-TERM PORTFOLIO ( $409.1 M)

Book Market
Value Value

U.S. Treasury Obligations 155,382,622.11$   157,503,266.95$   
Federal Agency/GSE 91,887,108.83$     92,172,020.80$     
Municipal Debt 14,512,759.95$     14,594,102.10$     
Bankers Acceptances -$                       -$                       
Commercial Paper -$                       -$                       
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 21,800,000.00$     22,128,127.50$     
Repurchase Agreements -$                       -$                       
Medium Term Maturity Notes 45,676,309.05$     45,721,958.30$     
Money Market/Mutual Funds 379,466.21$          379,466.21$          
Mortg & Asset-Backed Securities 52,907,519.71$     53,547,435.89$     
Supranationals 8,102,487.95$       8,125,610.30$       
Joint Powers Authority Pools -$                       -$                       
Variable & Floating Rate Securities 18,458,588.42$     18,552,655.26$     

409,106,862.23$   412,724,643.31$   

Wtd Avg Life 1.79 Yrs
Duration 1.79 Yrs

Monthly Yield 0.24%
TSY Benchmark 0.15%

Gov/Corp Benchmark 0.20%

Monthly Return 0.10%
TSY Benchmark 0.08%

Gov/Corp Benchmark 0.10%

3 Month Return 0.18%
TSY Benchmark 0.14%

Gov/Corp Benchmark 0.16%

Fiscal YTD Return 0.56%
TSY Benchmark 0.23%

Gov/Corp Benchmark 0.42%

12 Month Return 0.69%
TSY Benchmark 0.26%

Gov/Corp Benchmark 0.53%

A-4

U.S. Treasury 
Obligations

38.0%

Federal 
Agency/GSE

22.5%

Municipal 
Debt
3.6%

Negotiable 
Certificates 
of Deposit

5.3%
Medium Term 
Maturity Notes

11.2%

Money 
Market/Mutu

al Funds
0.1%

Mortg & Asset 
Backed Sec

12.9%

Supranationals 
2.0%

Variable & 
Floating 

Rate 
Securities

4.5%



Investment Manager Diversification and Maturity Schedules

Chandler Asset Management
5/31/2021

SHORT-TERM PORTFOLIO ($403.2 M)

Book Market
Value Value

U.S. Treasury Obligations 97,527,214.85$      99,669,519.50$      
Federal Agency/GSE 204,675,161.75$    208,045,947.05$    
Municipal Debt 3,000,000.00$        3,129,060.00$        
Bankers Acceptances -$                       -$                       
Commercial Paper -$                       -$                       
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit -$                       -$                       
Repurchase Agreements -$                       -$                       
Medium Term Maturity Notes 60,495,293.70$      61,944,115.65$      
Money Market/Mutual Funds 4,919,156.63$        4,919,156.63$        
Mortg & Asset-Backed Securities 20,408,817.67$      20,584,332.08$      
Supranationals 8,393,142.50$        8,350,608.00$        
Joint Powers Authority Pools -$                       -$                       
Variable & Floating Rate Securities 3,799,446.69$        3,800,089.39$        

403,218,233.79$    410,442,828.30$    

Wtd Avg Life 1.89 Yrs
Duration 1.86 Yrs

Monthly Yield 0.22%
TSY Benchmark 0.15%

Gov/Corp Benchmark 0.20%

Monthly Return 0.09%
TSY Benchmark 0.08%

Gov/Corp Benchmark 0.10%

3 Month Return 0.15%
TSY Benchmark 0.14%

Gov/Corp Benchmark 0.16%

Fiscal YTD Return 0.44%
TSY Benchmark 0.23%

Gov/Corp Benchmark 0.42%

12 Month Return 0.57%
TSY Benchmark 0.26%

Gov/Corp Benchmark 0.53%

A-5

U.S. Treasury 
Obligations

24.2%

Federal 
Agency/GSE

50.8%

Municipal 
Debt
0.7%

Medium Term 
Maturity Notes

15.0%

Money 
Market/Mutual 

Funds
1.2%

Mortg & Asset 
Backed Sec

5.1%

Supranationals 
2.1%

Variable & 
Floating 

Rate 
Securities

0.9%



Investment Manager Diversification and Maturity Schedules

Payden & Rygel
5/31/2021

SHORT-TERM PORTFOLIO ($412.6 M)

Book Market
Value Value

U.S. Treasury Obligations 199,997,491.14$    200,030,891.39$    
Federal Agency/GSE 7,107,095.00$        7,071,373.90$        
Municipal Debt 44,297,533.09$      44,619,513.40$      
Bankers Acceptances -$                       -$                       
Commercial Paper -$                       -$                       
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit -$                       -$                       
Repurchase Agreements -$                       -$                       
Medium Term Maturity Notes 55,893,527.92$      56,679,351.99$      
Money Market/Mutual Funds 8,986,936.08$        8,986,936.08$        
Mortg & Asset-Backed Securities 44,470,124.59$      44,772,184.07$      
Supranationals -$                       -$                       
Joint Powers Authority Pools -$                       -$                       
Variable & Floating Rate Securities 51,879,175.73$      52,055,607.39$      

412,631,883.55$    414,215,858.22$    

Wtd Avg Life 1.81 Yrs
Duration 1.77 Yrs

Monthly Yield 0.21%
TSY Benchmark 0.15%

Gov/Corp Benchmark 0.20%

Monthly Return 0.12%
TSY Benchmark 0.08%

Gov/Corp Benchmark 0.10%

3 Month Return 0.19%
TSY Benchmark 0.14%

Gov/Corp Benchmark 0.16%

Fiscal YTD Return 0.64%
TSY Benchmark 0.23%

Gov/Corp Benchmark 0.42%

12 Month Return 0.89%
TSY Benchmark 0.26%

Gov/Corp Benchmark 0.53%

A-6

U.S. Treasury 
Obligations 

48.5%

Federal 
Agency/GSE 

1.7%

Municipal 
Debt

10.7%

Medium Term 
Maturity Notes

13.5%
Money 

Market/Mutu
al Funds

2.2%

Mortg & 
Asset-
Backed 

Securities
10.8%

Variable & 
Floating 

Rate 
Securities 

12.6%



Short-Term Portfolio
5/31/2021

Portfolio Composition

Maturity Schedule

A-7

U.S. Treasury Obligations
34.0%

Federal Agency/GSE
21.6%

Municipal Debt
7.5%

Negotiable Certificates of 
Deposit

1.3%

Medium Term Maturity Notes
13.2% Money Market/Mutual Funds

1.1%

Mortg & Asset-Backed Sec
11.5%

Supranationals 
1.9%

Variable & Floating Rate 
Securities

7.9%



Rating Downgrades & Negative Credit Watch
5/31/2021

Investment Manager / Security Par Amount Maturity S&P Moody's Fitch Ratings

Rating Downgrades:

Payden & Rygel
Consumers Energy Company 580,000$              6/1/2023 A A1 A+

PFM 
IBM Corporation 935,000$              2/12/2024 A- A2 N/A

Negative Credit Watch:

Chandler Asset Management 
US Bancorp 4,500,000$           Various** A+ A1 A+

**2/5/24 & 7/30/24

A-8

On March 16, 2021, Moody's placed the long-term ratings of US Bancorp (US Bank) under review for 
possible downgrade. The credit watch placement is due to the narrowing outperformance of US Bank 
compared to its peers which is currently attributed to coronavirus related struggles. The security remains in 
compliance with the requirements of the Investment Policy, and the investment manager is comfortable 
holding the security due to US Bank's consistent financial performance and the quality of their balance sheet. 

On May 6, 2021, S&P downgraded the long-term ratings of the IBM Corporation (IBM) from A to A-. The 
downgrade is due to IBM's increased acquisitions in the first quarter affecting their leverage metrics for the 
future. The security complies with the requirements of the Investment Policy, and the manager is comfortable 
holding the security due to the company's diversified portfolio of products and the quality of their balance 
sheet. 

On May 3, 2021, Moody's downgraded the long-term ratings of the Consumers Energy Company 
(Consumers Energy) from Aa3 to A1, and Moody's also downgraded the rating of the parent holding 
company CMS Energy Corp from Baa1 to Baa2. The downgrade is due to Consumers Energy financial 
metrics declining over the past few years due to tax reform changes and continued high leverage to support 
elevated capital investments. The security complies with the requirements of the Investment Policy, and the 
manager is comfortable holding the security due to the company benefiting from a supportive regulatory 
environment and its positive position to maintain its current credit profile. 



D
eb

t

(M2 Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, 91 Toll Revenue Bonds, 2017 TIFIA Loan (I-405))

DEBT PROGRAM



TOTAL OUTSTANDING DEBT:       $990,890,000

Total Outstanding Debt*
As of 5/31/21

A-9

TIFIA Loan
29%

Toll Road Bonds
9%

M2 Long-Term Fixed 
Rate Bonds

62%

Outstanding Debt



Outstanding Debt*
As of 5/31/21

Orange County Local Transportation Authority (OCLTA-M2)

2010 Series A Taxable Build America Bonds - Sales Tax Revenue Bonds
Issued: 293,540,000$            
Outstanding: 250,000,000              
Debt Service FY 2021: 17,270,000                
Pledged Revenue Source: M2 Sales Tax Revenues
Ratings (Fitch/ Moody's/ S&P): AA+/Aa2/AA+
Final Maturity: 2041

2019 M2 Sales Tax Bond 
Issued: 376,690,000$            
Outstanding: 368,625,000              
Debt Service FY 2021: 26,569,650                
Pledged Revenue Source: M2 Sales Tax Revenues
Ratings (Fitch/ S&P): AA+/AA+
Final Maturity: 2041

91 Express Lanes

2013 OCTA 91 Express Lanes Refunding Bonds

Issued: 124,415,000$            
Outstanding: 85,265,000                
Debt Service FY 2021: 10,795,075                
Pledged Revenue Source: 91 Toll Road Revenues
Ratings (Fitch/ Moody's/ S&P): A+/A1/AA-
Final Maturity: 2030

405 Express Lanes

2017 TIFIA Loan

Outstanding: 287,000,000$            
Accrued Interest: 23,724,632                
Pledged Revenue Source: 405 Toll Road Revenues
Ratings (Moody's): Baa2
Final Maturity: 2058

A-10



Orange County Transportation Authority
Portfolio Listing

As of May 31, 2021

LIQUID PORTFOLIO

DESCRIPTION MATURITY DATE BOOK VALUE MARKET VALUE YIELD

CASH EQUIVALENTS
BANK DEPOSITS 5/31/2021 30,585,282.00                 30,585,282.00                      
MONEY MARKET DEMAND ACCOUNT N/A 7,041,485.76                   7,041,485.76                        0.10%
FIDELITY TREASURY OBLIGATIONS FUND N/A 25,833,883.14                 25,833,883.14                      0.01%

FEDERATED TREASURY OBLIGATIONS FUND N/A 14,610,384.50                 14,610,384.50                      0.03%
SUB-TOTAL 78,071,035.40                 78,071,035.40                     

LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND (LAIF) N/A 70,996,561.09 70,996,561.09 0.32%

ORANGE COUNTY INVESTMENT POOL (OCIP) N/A 23,218,900.92                 23,218,900.92 0.54%

LIQUID PORTFOLIO - TOTAL 172,286,497.41$             172,286,497.41$                 

SHORT-TERM PORTFOLIO

DESCRIPTION MATURITY DATE BOOK VALUE MARKET VALUE YIELD

Money Market Funds
FIRST AMER:GVT OBLG Z 5/31/2021 8,986,936.08                   8,986,936.08                        0.02
FIRST AMER:GVT OBLG Z 5/31/2021 379,466.21                       379,466.21                           0.02
FIRST AMER:GVT OBLG Z 5/31/2021 3,598,741.70                   3,598,741.70                        0.02
FIRST AMER:GVT OBLG Z 5/31/2021 4,919,156.63                   4,919,156.63                        0.02

SUB-TOTAL 17,884,300.62                 17,884,300.62                     

NEGOTIABLE CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT
Credit Suisse AG, New York Branch 3/17/2023 3,100,000.00                   3,105,394.00                       0.49
DNB Bank ASA, New York Branch 12/2/2022 3,875,000.00                   3,973,270.00                       0.38
Nordea Bank Abp, New York Branch 8/26/2022 3,875,000.00                   3,960,560.00                       0.10
Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken AB (publ.) 8/26/2022 3,875,000.00                   3,961,412.50                       0.09
Societe Generale, New York Branch 2/14/2022 4,000,000.00                   4,050,400.00                       0.02
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation,  New York Branch 7/8/2022 3,075,000.00                   3,077,091.00                        0.64

SUB-TOTAL 21,800,000.00                 22,128,127.50                     

U.S. TREASURY OBLIGATIONS
UNITED STATES TREASURY 12/31/2022 40,254,000.00                 40,260,440.64                      0.11
UNITED STATES TREASURY 12/31/2022 549,829.97                       550,088.00                           0.11
UNITED STATES TREASURY 12/31/2022 36,440,759.77                 36,460,832.80                      0.11
UNITED STATES TREASURY 12/31/2022 3,749,560.55                   3,750,600.00                        0.11
UNITED STATES TREASURY 12/31/2022 5,799,668.82                   5,800,928.00                        0.11
UNITED STATES TREASURY 12/31/2022 3,935,153.71                   3,935,629.60                        0.11
UNITED STATES TREASURY 1/31/2023 45,000.00                         45,000.00                             0.12
UNITED STATES TREASURY 1/31/2023 8,817,010.26                   8,814,600.00                        0.12
UNITED STATES TREASURY 1/31/2023 8,816,838.12                   8,814,600.00                        0.12
UNITED STATES TREASURY 1/31/2023 4,417,707.64                   4,416,500.00                        0.12
UNITED STATES TREASURY 1/31/2023 759,507.62                       759,300.00                           0.12
UNITED STATES TREASURY 1/31/2023 3,980,777.34                   3,980,000.00                        0.12
UNITED STATES TREASURY 1/31/2023 910,213.28                       910,000.00                           0.12
UNITED STATES TREASURY 1/31/2023 2,320,725.00                   2,320,000.00                        0.12
UNITED STATES TREASURY 1/31/2023 4,351,359.38                   4,350,000.00                        0.12
UNITED STATES TREASURY 1/31/2023 3,110,242.97                   3,110,000.00                        0.12
UNITED STATES TREASURY 1/31/2023 1,034,959.57                   1,035,000.00                        0.12
UNITED STATES TREASURY 3/31/2023 3,238,481.25                   3,239,481.60                        0.13
UNITED STATES TREASURY 3/31/2023 2,073,865.23                   2,074,668.00                        0.13
UNITED STATES TREASURY 4/30/2023 18,669,223.82                 18,669,210.75                      0.14
UNITED STATES TREASURY 5/15/2024 44,361,517.84                 44,372,346.65                      0.30
UNITED STATES TREASURY 5/15/2024 2,361,089.00                   2,361,665.35                        0.30
UNITED STATES TREASURY 7/31/2022 4,097,668.75                   4,175,153.80                        0.10
UNITED STATES TREASURY 7/31/2022 7,004,300.00                   7,268,238.40                        0.10
UNITED STATES TREASURY 7/31/2022 6,005,625.00                   6,124,920.00                        0.10
UNITED STATES TREASURY 7/31/2022 5,216,656.25                   5,308,264.00                        0.10
UNITED STATES TREASURY 9/30/2022 7,534,603.16                   7,737,811.20                        0.12
UNITED STATES TREASURY 10/31/2022 5,360,733.97                   5,533,374.00                        0.13
UNITED STATES TREASURY 2/28/2023 5,538,052.36                   5,780,436.00                        0.15
UNITED STATES TREASURY 12/31/2022 4,326,890.63                   4,487,112.00                        0.14
UNITED STATES TREASURY 12/31/2022 6,439,408.22                   6,797,716.80                        0.14
UNITED STATES TREASURY 1/31/2023 1,253,320.31                   1,283,687.50                        0.14
UNITED STATES TREASURY 1/31/2023 2,911,894.53                   2,978,155.00                        0.14
UNITED STATES TREASURY 3/31/2023 15,308,789.06                 15,373,200.00                      0.15
UNITED STATES TREASURY 6/30/2023 4,097,187.50                   4,100,640.00                        0.17
UNITED STATES TREASURY 11/15/2022 3,995,937.50                   4,087,800.00                        0.12
UNITED STATES TREASURY 4/30/2024 4,455,693.36                   4,460,502.50                        0.30
UNITED STATES TREASURY 5/31/2022 2,985,342.77                   3,024,861.00                        0.09
UNITED STATES TREASURY 6/30/2022 2,010,156.25                   2,035,700.00                        0.11
UNITED STATES TREASURY 10/15/2022 745,312.50                       762,952.50                           0.12
UNITED STATES TREASURY 10/31/2024 5,181,835.94                   5,184,000.00                        0.42
UNITED STATES TREASURY 1/15/2023 2,713,289.06                   2,760,129.00                        0.13
UNITED STATES TREASURY 1/15/2023 4,101,875.00                   4,089,080.00                        0.13
UNITED STATES TREASURY 5/15/2023 2,192,093.75                   2,199,054.00                        0.15
UNITED STATES TREASURY 6/15/2023 4,003,281.25                   4,007,200.00                        0.16
UNITED STATES TREASURY 6/15/2023 1,051,927.73                   1,051,890.00                        0.16
UNITED STATES TREASURY 10/15/2023 9,980,859.38                   9,984,800.00                        0.19
UNITED STATES TREASURY 11/15/2023 4,123,057.81                   4,125,150.00                        0.20
UNITED STATES TREASURY 11/30/2022 874,179.69                       875,236.25                           0.11
UNITED STATES TREASURY 12/15/2023 1,995,468.75                   1,995,400.00                        0.22
UNITED STATES TREASURY 12/15/2023 2,418,842.77                   2,419,422.50                        0.22
UNITED STATES TREASURY 12/31/2022 1,924,849.61                   1,925,308.00                        0.11
UNITED STATES TREASURY 1/31/2023 7,001,640.62                   7,000,000.00                        0.12
UNITED STATES TREASURY 2/15/2024 5,127,669.92                   5,134,086.50                        0.24
UNITED STATES TREASURY 3/15/2024 5,658,817.38                   5,674,546.00                        0.25
UNITED STATES TREASURY 3/15/2024 2,744,306.64                   2,749,780.00                        0.25
UNITED STATES TREASURY 3/31/2023 1,998,828.13                   1,999,680.00                        0.13
UNITED STATES TREASURY 4/15/2024 3,002,226.56                   3,007,980.00                        0.28
UNITED STATES TREASURY 5/15/2022 7,940,162.11                   7,967,626.95                        0.10
UNITED STATES TREASURY 5/15/2022 1,979,554.69                   1,988,083.50                        0.10
UNITED STATES TREASURY 9/30/2022 9,196,083.40                   9,345,092.60                        0.12
UNITED STATES TREASURY 9/30/2022 7,699,007.81                   7,817,382.00                        0.12
UNITED STATES TREASURY 9/30/2022 10,407,680.66                 10,550,911.00                      0.12
UNITED STATES TREASURY 9/30/2022 4,212,140.63                   4,291,896.00                        0.12
UNITED STATES TREASURY 10/15/2022 6,859,031.25                   7,019,163.00                        0.12
UNITED STATES TREASURY 10/15/2022 3,944,908.20                   4,018,216.50                        0.12
UNITED STATES TREASURY 3/15/2023 4,087,313.28                   4,081,438.60                        0.14
UNITED STATES TREASURY 3/15/2023 5,110,995.70                   5,103,056.40                        0.14
UNITED STATES TREASURY 3/15/2023 3,678,658.20                   3,673,798.00                        0.14
UNITED STATES TREASURY 3/15/2023 4,132,031.25                   4,126,732.00                        0.14
UNITED STATES TREASURY 3/15/2023 2,821,000.00                   2,818,256.00                        0.14

1

ATTACHMENT B



Orange County Transportation Authority
Portfolio Listing

As of May 31, 2021

DESCRIPTION MATURITY DATE BOOK VALUE MARKET VALUE YIELD
UNITED STATES TREASURY 3/15/2023 614,622.66                       613,977.20                           0.14
UNITED STATES TREASURY 5/15/2023 4,098,078.13                   4,098,237.00                        0.15
UNITED STATES TREASURY 5/15/2023 5,623,022.46 5,622,581.25 0.15
UNITED STATES TREASURY 10/15/2023 4,989,843.75 4,992,400.00 0.19
UNITED STATES TREASURY 10/15/2023 4,096,476.56                   4,093,768.00                        0.19
UNITED STATES TREASURY 10/15/2023 6,972,656.25                   6,989,360.00                        0.19
UNITED STATES TREASURY 10/15/2023 4,099,725.00                   4,103,752.80                        0.19
UNITED STATES TREASURY 7/31/2022 6,061,226.56                   6,329,084.00                        0.10
UNITED STATES TREASURY 8/31/2022 4,470,357.42                   4,752,625.50                        0.12
UNITED STATES TREASURY 8/31/2022 2,874,960.94                   3,066,210.00                        0.12
UNITED STATES TREASURY 11/30/2022 7,718,648.44                   8,019,960.00                        0.13
UNITED STATES TREASURY 4/30/2023 5,234,208.98                   5,398,050.00                        0.16
UNITED STATES TREASURY 5/31/2023 7,787,187.50                   8,234,720.00                        0.16
UNITED STATES TREASURY 10/31/2023 8,007,187.50                   8,274,080.00                        0.21
UNITED STATES TREASURY 8/15/2022 6,983,046.88                   7,118,930.00                        0.10
UNITED STATES TREASURY 10/15/2022 7,957,187.50                   8,138,160.00                        0.12
UNITED STATES TREASURY 1/31/2025 8,313,750.00                   8,261,280.00                        0.48
UNITED STATES TREASURY 2/28/2022 10,149,609.38                 10,080,500.00                      0.06
UNITED STATES TREASURY 3/31/2025 1,989,687.50                   1,998,680.00                        0.52
UNITED STATES TREASURY 12/15/2023 7,978,437.50                   7,981,600.00                        0.22
UNITED STATES TREASURY 4/15/2024 8,013,437.50                   8,021,280.00                        0.28
UNITED STATES TREASURY 5/15/2024 3,988,281.25                   3,994,360.00                        0.30

SUB-TOTAL 555,470,320.10               560,519,406.64                   

FEDERAL AGENCY/GSE
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 2/12/2026 4,147,095.00                   4,110,118.50                        0.81
FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION 11/25/2024 2,250,000.00                   2,248,245.00                        0.47
FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION 8/1/2021 710,000.00                       713,010.40                           0.15
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 6/8/2022 6,921,676.00                   6,938,365.25                        0.06
FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION 5/22/2023 8,160,363.15                   8,199,487.45                        0.16
FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION 7/10/2023 7,758,283.75                   7,784,407.75                        0.19
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 4/20/2023 7,526,137.50                   7,574,500.95                        0.17
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 5/5/2023 7,146,997.00                   7,179,029.00                        0.16
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 6/26/2023 7,383,377.40                   7,418,180.90                        0.16
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 7/25/2022 4,963,756.50                   4,976,990.00                        0.09
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 8/24/2023 9,190,616.00                   9,204,692.00                        0.23
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 9/8/2023 5,275,963.27                   5,279,114.50                        0.22
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 9/8/2023 6,997,690.00                   7,005,460.00                        0.22
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 10/16/2023 3,088,437.00                   3,094,668.00                        0.20
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 10/16/2023 1,991,720.00                   1,996,560.00                        0.20
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 11/6/2023 8,192,620.00                   8,207,298.00                        0.21
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 12/4/2023 6,918,144.25                   6,928,254.75                        0.23
FHMS K-727 A1 10/25/2023 371,327.01                       385,012.25                           0.40
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 10/20/2022 5,098,470.00                   5,101,887.00                        0.06
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 10/20/2022 5,839,084.50                   5,837,158.95                        0.06
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 8/12/2025 4,095,490.00                   4,093,317.00                        0.64
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 10/13/2023 4,097,950.00                   4,101,640.00                        0.19
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 11/24/2023 2,035,000.00                   2,034,877.90                        0.35
FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION 1/5/2022 3,857,469.00                   3,894,506.00                        0.08
FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION 1/5/2022 5,677,685.00                   5,715,314.00                        0.08
FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION 10/27/2023 6,098,475.00                   6,101,525.00                        0.24
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 1/13/2022 5,652,771.25                   5,655,335.75                        0.07
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 1/13/2022 5,663,313.58                   5,655,335.75                        0.07
FN 468861 8/1/2021 594,211.83                       585,579.05                           2.64
FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANKS 9/8/2023 4,135,800.00                   4,194,840.00                        0.23
FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANKS 9/8/2023 4,104,600.00                   4,194,840.00                        0.23
FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANKS 3/8/2024 5,201,750.00                   5,220,150.00                        0.28
FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANKS 3/10/2023 5,053,550.00                   5,226,950.00                        0.20
FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANKS 6/10/2022 4,988,900.00                   5,137,050.00                        0.10
FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANKS 12/9/2022 7,058,660.00                   7,303,240.00                        0.16
FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANKS 3/11/2022 3,046,221.55                   3,137,599.25                        0.08
FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANKS 3/11/2022 1,160,218.50                   1,195,033.75                        0.08
FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANKS 6/9/2023 3,977,720.00                   4,156,280.00                        0.20
FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANKS 6/9/2023 4,029,880.00                   4,156,280.00                        0.20
FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANKS 9/9/2022 6,828,560.00                   7,060,916.00                        0.13
FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANKS FUNDING CORP 12/17/2021 6,022,920.00                   6,090,060.00                        0.08
FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANKS FUNDING CORP 11/15/2021 7,034,930.00                   7,095,200.00                        0.12
FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANKS FUNDING CORP 7/17/2023 5,060,200.00                   5,282,400.00                        0.22
FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANKS FUNDING CORP 6/26/2023 6,967,450.00                   7,226,030.00                        0.21
FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANKS FUNDING CORP 2/1/2023 4,996,450.00                   5,142,200.00                        0.15
FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANKS FUNDING CORP 8/14/2023 4,993,550.00                   5,150,900.00                        0.23
FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANKS FUNDING CORP 8/14/2023 7,983,280.00                   7,995,520.00                        0.23
FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANKS FUNDING CORP 2/21/2023 5,000,600.00                   5,111,750.00                        0.16
FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANKS FUNDING CORP 5/6/2022 5,627,843.55                   5,644,917.60                        0.06
FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANKS FUNDING CORP 10/2/2023 4,994,600.00                   4,994,300.00                        0.25
FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION 5/22/2023 6,111,548.70                   6,140,850.10                        0.16
FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION 7/10/2023 3,203,098.50                   3,213,884.10                        0.19
FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION 7/10/2023 5,000,300.00                   5,006,050.00                        0.19
FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION 11/27/2023 1,797,948.00                   1,801,980.00                        0.21
FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION 1/5/2022 6,815,760.00                   7,080,920.00                        0.08
FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION 1/19/2023 4,411,710.00                   4,665,285.00                        0.13
FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION 1/19/2023 2,233,875.00                   2,384,479.00                        0.13
FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION 4/12/2022 6,370,496.00                   6,521,536.00                        0.07
FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION 9/6/2022 3,986,080.00                   4,063,560.00                        0.12
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 1/13/2022 8,248,720.00                   8,115,280.00                        0.07
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 5/5/2023 7,621,797.50                   7,655,957.50                        0.16
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 6/26/2023 7,463,143.80                   7,498,323.30                        0.16
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 8/24/2023 8,001,840.00                   8,004,080.00                        0.23
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 9/8/2023 5,098,317.00                   5,103,978.00                        0.22
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 9/8/2023 3,001,860.00                   3,002,340.00                        0.22
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 10/16/2023 6,376,128.00                   6,388,992.00                        0.20
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 11/6/2023 4,705,761.00                   4,714,191.90                        0.21
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 12/4/2023 5,959,094.65                   5,967,803.55                        0.23

SUB-TOTAL 352,379,285.74               356,065,818.16                   

MEDIUM TERM NOTES
ADOBE INC 2/1/2023 1,103,486.15                   1,132,304.55                        0.22
AMAZON.COM INC 5/12/2024 2,047,007.00                   2,054,838.00                        0.37
AMERICAN EXPRESS CO 5/20/2022 1,558,128.00                   1,595,240.40                        0.21
AMERIPRISE FINANCIAL INC 3/22/2022 1,535,888.20                   1,574,157.20                        0.28
AMERIPRISE FINANCIAL INC 3/22/2022 119,877.60                       122,661.60                           0.28
APPLE INC 5/11/2023 1,441,069.60                   1,460,013.55                        0.22
TRUIST FINANCIAL CORP 6/20/2022 2,048,120.00                   2,055,340.00                        0.22
TRUIST FINANCIAL CORP 3/16/2023 1,943,560.70                   2,009,146.10                        0.26
BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON CORP 4/28/2023 1,352,323.95                   1,381,772.28                        0.17
CATERPILLAR FINANCIAL SERVICES CORP 11/29/2022 859,078.00                       880,005.00                           0.20
CATERPILLAR FINANCIAL SERVICES CORP 9/6/2022 1,353,116.55                   1,384,037.65                        0.21
CATERPILLAR FINANCIAL SERVICES CORP 11/18/2022 1,469,323.80                   1,507,529.10                        0.21
CATERPILLAR FINANCIAL SERVICES CORP 5/17/2024 2,072,219.50                   2,076,265.75                        0.43

2



Orange County Transportation Authority
Portfolio Listing

As of May 31, 2021

DESCRIPTION MATURITY DATE BOOK VALUE MARKET VALUE YIELD
CHEVRON CORP 5/11/2023 455,000.00                       462,616.70                           0.28
CISCO SYSTEMS INC 9/20/2021 1,894,243.00                   1,906,916.00                        0.25
CITIGROUP INC 12/8/2021 1,012,830.00 1,011,770.00 0.25
COMERICA INC 7/31/2023 2,120,020.00 2,135,140.00 0.45
CONSUMERS ENERGY CO 6/1/2023 579,802.80                       579,594.00                           0.39
JOHN DEERE CAPITAL CORP 6/13/2022 1,438,142.40                   1,467,100.80                        0.14
JOHN DEERE CAPITAL CORP 4/6/2023 519,875.20                       529,490.00                           0.21
DUKE ENERGY CAROLINAS LLC 3/15/2023 2,502,051.75                   2,557,442.25                        0.45
ERP OPERATING LP 4/15/2023 1,933,786.40                   1,921,746.26                        0.30
ENTERGY LOUISIANA LLC 11/17/2023 759,863.20                       761,094.40                           0.31
ENTERGY LOUISIANA LLC 11/17/2023 740,355.20                       741,065.60                           0.31
FIFTH THIRD BANK NA (OHIO) 1/30/2023 1,473,761.00                   1,508,925.00                        0.35
HUNTINGTON NATIONAL BANK 2/3/2023 1,568,681.20                   1,607,020.60                        0.32
KEYBANK NA 3/7/2023 694,840.24                       703,911.68                           0.33
KEYBANK NA 3/7/2023 311,595.00                       316,128.00                           0.33
KEYBANK NA 3/7/2023 150,524.50                       152,795.20                           0.33
KEYBANK NA 3/7/2023 821,620.13                       829,309.12                           0.33
MORGAN STANLEY 5/19/2022 1,031,611.25                   1,049,979.25                        0.25
NATIONAL RURAL UTILITIES COOPERATIVE FINANCE CORP 4/25/2022 1,208,052.00                   1,221,480.00                        0.23
NIKE INC 3/27/2025 134,816.40                       143,193.15                           0.75
OKLAHOMA GAS AND ELECTRIC CO 5/26/2023 620,000.00                       620,223.20                           0.48
PNC BANK NA 7/22/2022 1,925,000.00                   1,930,544.00                        0.31
PNC BANK NA 2/24/2023 315,000.00                       318,408.30                           0.28
PACCAR FINANCIAL CORP 9/26/2022 714,127.70                       731,201.90                           0.29
PACCAR FINANCIAL CORP 2/7/2023 1,999,900.00                   2,053,540.00                        0.31
PRECISION CASTPARTS CORP 1/15/2023 1,965,015.00                   2,010,781.50                        0.24
CHARLES SCHWAB CORP 3/18/2024 1,754,122.50                   1,768,531.05                        0.46
TRUIST BANK 5/17/2022 1,978,990.20                   2,025,817.20                        0.19
UNITEDHEALTH GROUP INC 5/15/2024 1,703,226.80                   1,706,790.25                        0.44
WALMART INC 12/15/2022 1,323,622.40                   1,319,321.60                        0.25
WELLS FARGO BANK NA 10/22/2021 1,339,852.60                   1,354,163.80                        0.25
ADOBE INC 2/1/2023 449,383.50                       461,119.50                           0.22
AMAZON.COM INC 6/3/2023 2,022,165.00                   2,033,181.00                        0.20
AMAZON.COM INC 5/12/2024 2,935,707.60                   2,946,938.40                        0.37
AMERICAN HONDA FINANCE CORP 6/27/2022 3,796,504.00                   3,879,914.00                        0.25
APPLE INC 9/11/2022 589,899.70                       601,463.70                           0.19
APPLE INC 5/11/2023 1,475,974.40                   1,495,377.20                        0.22
ASTRAZENECA FINANCE LLC 5/28/2024 1,924,826.75                   1,926,001.00                        0.65
BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON CORP 8/23/2022 1,724,448.00                   1,762,536.00                        0.19
BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON CORP 1/27/2023 1,099,230.00                   1,130,437.00                        0.11
BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON CORP 4/24/2025 1,279,625.00                   1,289,125.00                        0.77
BRISTOL-MYERS SQUIBB CO 11/13/2023 1,900,000.00                   1,902,660.00                        0.23
BURLINGTON NORTHERN SANTA FE LLC 4/1/2025 753,641.00                       754,285.00                           0.81
CATERPILLAR FINANCIAL SERVICES CORP 9/6/2022 1,048,540.50                   1,072,501.50                        0.21
CATERPILLAR FINANCIAL SERVICES CORP 11/18/2022 499,770.00                       512,765.00                           0.21
CATERPILLAR FINANCIAL SERVICES CORP 7/7/2023 1,124,370.00                   1,132,807.50                        0.32
CHEVRON CORP 5/11/2023 875,000.00                       889,647.50                           0.28
JOHN DEERE CAPITAL CORP 7/5/2023 399,672.00                       403,828.00                           0.24
JOHN DEERE CAPITAL CORP 10/10/2023 499,420.00                       501,230.00                           0.30
JOHN DEERE CAPITAL CORP 1/17/2024 794,435.55                       795,882.45                           0.41
GOLDMAN SACHS GROUP INC 3/3/2024 440,856.00                       437,264.00                           0.60
GOLDMAN SACHS GROUP INC 1/27/2023 1,000,000.00                   1,000,940.00                        0.34
HONEYWELL INTERNATIONAL INC 8/8/2022 779,212.20                       797,550.00                           0.12
HONEYWELL INTERNATIONAL INC 8/19/2022 1,875,000.00                   1,876,425.00                        0.14
INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS MACHINES CORP 2/12/2024 1,027,845.50                   1,013,820.50                        0.48
JPMORGAN CHASE & CO 4/1/2023 1,000,000.00                   1,024,260.00                        0.32
MORGAN STANLEY 5/19/2022 496,685.00                       512,185.00                           0.25
MORGAN STANLEY 2/25/2023 1,063,280.00                   1,058,930.00                        0.35
NATIONAL RURAL UTILITIES COOPERATIVE FINANCE CORP 1/21/2022 1,099,032.00                   1,111,110.00                        0.19
NATIONAL RURAL UTILITIES COOPERATIVE FINANCE CORP 2/8/2024 809,441.10                       808,533.90                           0.42
NORTHERN TRUST CORP 8/2/2022 1,012,140.00                   1,025,320.00                        0.22
PNC BANK NA 2/24/2023 800,000.00                       808,656.00                           0.28
PACCAR FINANCIAL CORP 8/11/2023 449,410.50                       450,639.00                           0.29
PEPSICO INC 5/1/2023 923,168.50                       934,980.75                           0.19
CHARLES SCHWAB CORP 3/18/2024 1,279,360.00                   1,289,868.80                        0.46
TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORP 1/11/2022 2,310,308.50                   1,953,162.75                        0.23
TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORP 1/11/2024 2,149,871.00                   2,153,719.50                        0.38
TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORP 4/6/2023 584,526.15                       586,439.10                           0.27
UNITEDHEALTH GROUP INC 5/15/2024 1,383,559.60                   1,386,454.25                        0.44
AMERICAN EXPRESS CO 8/1/2022 3,103,260.00                   3,072,390.00                        0.28
ASSOCIATION OF AMERICAN MEDICAL COLLEGES 10/1/2022 2,990,000.00                   3,015,714.00                        1.28
TRUIST FINANCIAL CORP 6/20/2022 2,339,167.50                   2,312,257.50                        0.22
TRUIST FINANCIAL CORP 3/16/2023 2,947,817.00                   3,047,291.00                        0.26
BAYCARE HEALTH SYSTEM INC 11/15/2022 1,456,344.00                   1,484,769.60                        0.48
CATERPILLAR FINANCIAL SERVICES CORP 7/7/2023 3,053,289.20                   3,076,201.70                        0.32
COMCAST CORP 10/15/2025 4,042,256.85                   4,064,995.20                        0.93
CREDIT SUISSE AG (NEW YORK BRANCH) 2/2/2024 2,655,000.00                   2,649,291.75                        0.58
GEORGIA-PACIFIC LLC 5/15/2024 3,064,049.85                   3,063,835.30                        0.64
HUNTINGTON NATIONAL BANK 8/7/2022 2,024,431.10                   2,017,989.20                        0.30
KEYBANK NA 11/22/2021 1,785,864.60                   1,848,217.68                        0.21
KEYBANK NA 11/22/2021 1,953,600.00                   2,022,120.00                        0.21
MASSMUTUAL GLOBAL FUNDING II 6/9/2023 3,982,648.85                   4,027,958.30                        0.32
NATIONAL SECURITIES CLEARING CORP 4/23/2023 3,162,024.90                   3,223,995.60                        0.22
NEW YORK LIFE GLOBAL FUNDING 5/5/2023 2,084,562.15                   2,117,067.30                        0.30
PACIFIC LIFE GLOBAL FUNDING II 9/23/2023 2,022,468.75                   2,030,589.00                        0.38
PROTECTIVE LIFE GLOBAL FUNDING 6/9/2023 3,500,000.00                   3,549,035.00                        0.39
SECURITY BENEFIT GLOBAL FUNDING 5/17/2024 3,128,810.60                   3,141,956.60                        1.12
TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORP 1/11/2024 2,544,847.30                   2,549,402.85                        0.38
VIRGINIA ELECTRIC AND POWER CO 3/15/2023 2,087,580.00                   2,076,760.00                        0.26
AMAZON.COM INC 5/12/2024 3,265,225.80                   3,277,717.20                        0.37
AMERICAN HONDA FINANCE CORP 11/16/2022 2,021,300.00                   2,066,540.00                        0.32
AMERICAN HONDA FINANCE CORP 1/12/2024 1,585,215.00                   1,621,830.00                        0.43
APPLE INC 5/3/2023 1,977,040.00                   2,079,860.00                        0.32
APPLE INC 2/23/2023 2,949,060.00                   3,122,130.00                        0.25
BANK OF AMERICA CORP 1/11/2023 3,034,740.00                   3,146,040.00                        0.28
BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON CORP 1/29/2023 2,944,320.00                   3,130,980.00                        0.19
BERKSHIRE HATHAWAY INC 3/15/2023 2,924,460.00                   3,120,240.00                        0.28
BERKSHIRE HATHAWAY INC 3/15/2023 2,014,300.00                   2,080,160.00                        0.28
CATERPILLAR FINANCIAL SERVICES CORP 5/17/2024 5,193,032.00                   5,203,172.00                        0.43
DEERE & CO 6/8/2022 1,466,700.00                   1,528,320.00                        0.17
JOHN DEERE CAPITAL CORP 1/17/2024 3,512,504.35                   3,518,901.65                        0.41
PACCAR FINANCIAL CORP 9/26/2022 1,498,170.00                   1,533,990.00                        0.29
PACCAR FINANCIAL CORP 2/7/2023 2,274,886.25                   2,335,901.75                        0.31
PACCAR FINANCIAL CORP 2/2/2024 1,618,120.80                   1,618,072.20                        0.39
ROYAL BANK OF CANADA 11/1/2024 4,205,160.00                   4,213,000.00                        0.67
CHARLES SCHWAB CORP 3/18/2024 2,333,832.50                   2,353,002.85                        0.46
CHARLES SCHWAB CORP 3/18/2024 2,006,720.00                   2,015,420.00                        0.46
TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORP 4/6/2023 1,798,542.00                   1,804,428.00                        0.27
US BANCORP 2/5/2024 2,107,940.00                   2,152,580.00                        0.42

3



Orange County Transportation Authority
Portfolio Listing

As of May 31, 2021

DESCRIPTION MATURITY DATE BOOK VALUE MARKET VALUE YIELD
US BANCORP 7/30/2024 2,662,075.00                   2,642,850.00                        0.53
VISA INC 12/14/2022 1,962,480.00                   2,071,480.00                        0.20
WALMART INC 6/26/2023 3,083,010.00                   3,184,500.00                        0.30
WALMART INC 6/26/2023 2,056,460.00                   2,123,000.00                        0.30

SUB-TOTAL 215,993,153.32               218,737,263.52                   

MORTGAGE AND ASSET-BACK SECURITIES
BMWLT 2021-1 A4 7/25/2024 1,349,946.41                   1,346,638.50                        0.50
COPAR 2020-1 A3 11/15/2024 2,129,547.16                   2,163,249.30                        0.52
CARMX 2021-2 A3 2/17/2026 3,349,278.08                   3,358,442.00                        0.43
DRIVE 2020-2 A3 5/15/2024 629,975.93                       631,858.50                           0.37
DRIVE 2021-1 A3 11/15/2024 1,299,923.56                   1,301,794.00                        0.35
FNA 2011-M5 A2 7/25/2021 87,505.25                         80,702.45                             -0.06
FHMS K-020 A2 5/25/2022 2,710,943.89                   2,741,146.05                        0.02
FHMS K-SMC A2 1/25/2023 1,483,888.67                   1,546,947.80                        0.20
FHMS K-SMC A2 1/25/2023 2,030,198.44                   2,117,968.80                        0.20
FHMS K-SMC A2 1/25/2023 410,500.00                       415,288.00                           0.20
FHMS K-717 A2 9/25/2021 1,391,954.13                   1,382,891.68                        0.03
FHMS K-724 A1 3/25/2023 895,006.86                       911,972.69                           0.38
FHMS K-J33 A1 12/25/2025 1,439,986.92                   1,436,159.32                        0.52
FHMS K-727 A2 7/25/2024 4,493,337.89                   4,437,880.80                        0.70
FHMS K-J23 A2 12/25/2022 1,097,943.71                   1,102,186.48                        0.98
FHMS K-J30 A1 1/25/2025 1,578,041.66                   1,577,109.02                        0.54
GMCAR 212 A3 4/16/2026 649,942.87                       652,437.50                           0.38
HDMOT 2019-A A3 2/15/2024 2,814,216.35                   2,841,903.06                        0.75
HAROT 2019-3 A3 8/15/2023 1,809,984.98                   1,828,100.00                        0.50
JDOT 2019 A3 7/17/2023 1,015,002.31                   1,028,232.35                        0.42
JDOT 2020 A3 8/15/2024 2,799,828.92                   2,824,472.00                        0.48
MBALT 2020-A A3 12/15/2022 1,029,864.25                   1,039,053.70                        -0.02
SDART 2020-3 7/15/2024 2,469,763.87                   2,474,816.50                        0.28
SDART 2021-1 A3 9/16/2024 2,949,875.51                   2,952,448.50                        0.26
TAOT 2018-A A3 5/16/2022 0.00                                  0.00                                      0.34
TAOT 2019-C A3 9/15/2023 1,703,680.42                   1,721,532.07                        0.46
VWALT 2019-A A3 11/21/2022 849,986.57                       856,953.00                           -0.03
ALLYA 2019-1 A3 9/15/2023 759,264.07                       768,187.10                           1.11
BMWLT 2021-1 A3 1/25/2024 769,975.59                       770,731.50                           0.22
COMET 2019-2 A 9/15/2022 2,749,307.55                   2,802,250.00                        0.25
COPAR 2019-1 A3 11/15/2023 631,543.93                       639,529.90                           0.89
CARMX 2021-2 A3 2/17/2026 1,314,716.62                   1,318,313.80                        0.43
CARMX 2020-4 A3 8/15/2025 474,895.45                       476,738.50                           0.34
CARMX 2021-1 A3 12/15/2025 649,871.56                       650,117.00                           0.33
DCENT 2019-3 A 10/15/2024 999,785.20                       1,024,120.00                        0.15
FNA 2012-M5 A2 2/25/2022 401,319.57                       406,182.87                           1.10
FNA 2013-M1 A2 8/25/2022 788,212.98                       795,467.58                           0.03
FNA 2013-M7 A2 12/25/2022 646,593.60                       654,117.71                           -0.11
FHMS K-018 A2 1/25/2022 3,142,361.77                   3,193,739.76                        0.31
FHMS K-019 A2 3/25/2022 2,323,624.02                   2,384,382.99                        0.21
FHMS K-022 A2 7/25/2022 1,200,112.17                   1,220,090.43                        0.29
FHMS K-023 A1 4/25/2022 276,376.42                       284,770.61                           0.22
FHMS K-023 A2 8/25/2022 1,775,839.84                   1,789,112.50                        0.25
FHMS K-026 A2 11/25/2022 3,462,687.50                   3,499,212.00                        0.27
FHMS K-026 A2 11/25/2022 510,800.78                       514,590.00                           0.27
FHMS K-029 A1 10/25/2022 180,700.64                       182,874.91                           0.14
FHMS K-029 A1 10/25/2022 330,122.15                       334,513.42                           0.14
FHMS K-034 A1 2/25/2023 673,513.63                       690,280.46                           0.20
FHMS K-035 A1 3/25/2023 523,375.75                       535,666.71                           0.18
FHMS K-717 A2 9/25/2021 668,416.62                       670,492.93                           0.03
FHMS K-720 A2 6/25/2022 2,196,304.69                   2,240,612.00                        0.32
FHMS K-720 A2 6/25/2022 1,005,312.50                   1,018,460.00                        0.32
FHMS K-P05 A 7/25/2023 135,367.57                       138,536.94                           0.91
FHMS K-J27 A1 7/25/2024 919,013.93                       946,864.40                           0.37
FITAT 2019-1 A3 12/15/2023 399,804.35                       405,198.82                           0.81
FORDO 2021-A A3 8/15/2025 859,927.50                       860,524.60                           0.27
GMCAR 2019-1 A3 11/16/2023 1,074,723.00                   1,087,611.11                        1.06
GMCAR 2020-3 A3 4/16/2025 899,794.08                       903,177.00                           0.26
GMCAR 2020-4 A3 8/18/2025 424,909.18                       425,743.75                           0.30
GMALT 2021-1 A3 2/20/2024 1,084,888.90                   1,086,041.60                        0.19
GMALT 2019-3 A3 6/20/2022 372,057.04                       373,374.38                           0.70
HDMOT 2020-A A3 10/15/2024 874,809.16                       885,543.75                           0.65
HAROT 2018-4 A3 1/15/2023 440,060.45                       445,192.10                           0.59
HAROT 2018-3 A3 8/22/2022 337,009.94                       339,108.86                           0.83
HALST 2021-A A3 1/16/2024 494,938.22                       495,767.25                           0.22
HART 2019-A A3 6/15/2023 274,497.89                       277,669.20                           0.62
HART 2021-A A3 9/15/2025 869,908.48                       871,270.20                           0.32
KCOT 211 A3 8/15/2025 914,812.79                       916,619.55                           0.55
MBALT 2020-B A3 11/15/2023 259,986.82                       260,595.40                           0.21
MBART 2020-1 A3 2/18/2025 624,951.19                       627,993.75                           0.25
MBART 2018-1 A3 1/15/2023 371,090.82                       373,606.32                           0.88
NALT 2019-B A3 7/15/2022 276,161.71                       277,304.19                           0.31
NAROT 2018-C A3 6/15/2023 472,055.56                       478,878.83                           0.77
NAROT 2020-B A3 7/15/2024 1,149,968.49                   1,154,726.50                        0.25
NAROT 2018-B A3 3/15/2023 571,734.11                       579,133.96                           0.27
NAROT 2019-C A3 7/15/2024 899,952.48                       913,977.00                           0.54
NAROT 2019-A A3 10/16/2023 1,531,245.05                   1,552,442.99                        0.97
NALT 2019-A A3 3/15/2022 36,868.91                         36,931.68                             0.24
TAOT 2018-D A3 3/15/2023 484,819.45                       490,433.08                           0.73
TAOT 2018-B A3 9/15/2022 295,947.77                       297,452.66                           0.65
TAOT 2019-C A3 9/15/2023 1,024,070.20                   1,034,800.70                        0.46
VZOT 2020-B A 2/20/2025 799,832.00                       803,176.00                           0.21
VZOT 2019-C A1A 4/22/2024 1,424,890.13                   1,447,956.75                        0.15
VZOT 2020-A A1A 7/22/2024 999,882.90                       1,018,980.00                        0.17
VWALT 2019-A A3 11/21/2022 899,985.71                       907,362.00                           -0.03
VALET 2018-2 A3 4/20/2023 952,597.75                       963,335.88                           0.57
WOART 2020-B A3 5/15/2025 999,921.60                       1,005,550.00                        0.32
BMWLT 2019-1 A4 8/22/2022 0.01                                  0.01                                      1.59
CNH 2020-A A2 7/17/2023 304,967.07                       305,608.85                           0.44
CARMX 2020-3 B 3/16/2026 737,328.52                       738,519.10                           0.77
CARMX 2019-3 A2A 12/15/2022 0.00                                  0.00                                      0.55
CARMX 2020-1 A3 12/16/2024 1,024,798.90                   1,045,705.00                        0.61
CARMX 2020-1 A4 6/16/2025 4,262,480.39                   4,252,645.03                        0.75
FH G12952 12/1/2022 74,735.32                         73,937.90                             0.96
FNA 2012-M9 A2 4/25/2022 192,497.12                       193,639.75                           0.27
FNA 2012-M9 A2 4/25/2022 39,664.53                         39,901.53                             0.27
FNA 2012-M17 A2 11/25/2022 345,860.78                       365,973.52                           0.17
FHR 3806 L 2/15/2026 299,230.84                       299,314.78                           0.32
FHMS K-015 A2 7/25/2021 263,528.49                       263,663.47                           -0.21
FHMS K-015 A2 7/25/2021 72,075.95                         70,986.32                             -0.21
FHMS 2011-K016 A2 10/25/2021 1,897,281.13                   1,913,195.83                        0.20
FHMS 2011-K016 A2 10/25/2021 547,654.86                       541,863.74                           0.20

4



Orange County Transportation Authority
Portfolio Listing

As of May 31, 2021

DESCRIPTION MATURITY DATE BOOK VALUE MARKET VALUE YIELD
FHMS K-020 A2 5/25/2022 487,145.86 507,619.64 0.19
FHMS K-020 A2 5/25/2022 97,421.37                         101,523.93                           0.19
FHMS K-020 A2 5/25/2022 194,156.24                       203,047.86                           0.19
FHMS K-021 A2 6/25/2022 979,257.81                       1,018,450.00                        0.27
FHMS K-023 A1 4/25/2022 27,521.51                         28,477.06                             0.22
FHMS K-023 A1 4/25/2022 134,589.72                       137,401.82                           0.22
FHMS K-025 A1 4/25/2022 74,109.47                         75,085.62                             0.20
FHMS K-025 A2 10/25/2022 500,603.91                       504,680.40                           0.25
FHMS K-025 A2 10/25/2022 3,611,499.61                   3,640,908.60                        0.25
FHMS K-S01 A2 1/25/2023 201,492.37                       211,409.90                           0.35
FHMS K-027 A1 9/25/2022 29,520.79                         30,562.72                             0.19
FHMS K-027 A2 1/25/2023 2,101,558.59                   2,170,749.00                        0.28
FHMS K-027 A2 1/25/2023 1,875,366.21                   1,938,168.75                        0.28
FHR 4285 BA 12/15/2023 484,776.04                       484,089.76                           0.56
FHMS K-041 A1 8/25/2024 1,875,959.59                   1,865,847.44                        0.26
FHMS K-046 A1 1/25/2025 627,935.63                       627,673.48                           0.17
FHMS K-047 A1 12/25/2024 701,838.62                       717,260.05                           0.25
FHMS K-050 A1 1/25/2025 2,722,211.02                   2,711,734.80                        0.12
FHMS K-051 A2 9/25/2025 4,348,857.42                   4,349,937.50                        0.80
FHMS K-051 A2 9/25/2025 330,046.88                       330,375.00                           0.80
FHMS K-051 A2 9/25/2025 1,337,686.53                   1,338,018.75                        0.80
FHMS K-052 A2 11/25/2025 985,992.19                       985,977.00                           0.84
FN AM0359 8/1/2022 2,652,306.04                   2,667,007.62                        0.77
FN AM1999 7/1/2021 2,158,164.75                   2,218,302.19                        1.10
FN AM8892 7/1/2025 2,455,698.95                   2,454,295.42                        1.17
FN AM8730 7/1/2025 1,812,130.50                   1,815,487.71                        0.77
FN AN0429 1/1/2025 986,525.69                       980,202.81                           0.63
FNR 0338C MP 5/25/2023 160,831.86                       160,272.04                           0.68
FNR 0338C MP 5/25/2023 177,031.65                       175,991.93                           0.68
FNR 0333J LB 5/25/2023 100,543.93                       100,076.90                           1.12
FNR 0364L HQ 7/25/2023 109,640.67                       109,890.57                           0.69
FHR 2666 OD 8/15/2023 101,398.40                       101,405.48                           1.05
FHR 2666 OD 8/15/2023 105,498.03                       105,330.86                           1.05
FHR 2756 KA 2/15/2024 413,466.42                       408,682.43                           1.05
FNR 2008-45 DB 6/25/2023 134,253.96                       134,042.58                           0.49
FN BM6007 5/1/2023 433,327.87                       426,281.04                           0.82
FORDF 2017-3 A 9/15/2022 776,132.81                       771,885.00                           0.23
FORDF 2019-2 B 4/15/2024 1,831,369.92                   1,836,813.60                        0.65
FORDF 2019-3 A1 9/15/2024 4,105,937.50                   4,102,720.00                        0.25
FORDF 2020-1 A1 9/15/2025 1,007,617.19                   1,007,380.00                        0.38
GMALT 2020-2 B 7/22/2024 4,078,992.65                   4,159,437.60                        0.28
MMAF 20B A3 8/14/2025 3,469,950.38                   3,476,835.90                        0.39
MMAF 20A A2 4/9/2024 1,527,100.33                   1,533,809.50                        0.11
PFSFC 2019-A A2 4/15/2024 517,893.52                       514,518.70                           0.26
PFSFC 20B A 6/17/2024 1,564,789.51                   1,579,413.65                        0.33
PFSFC 20E A 10/15/2025 302,156.25                       303,351.00                           0.53
PFSFC 20E A 10/15/2025 1,007,421.87                   1,011,170.00                        0.53
SCART 20A A 10/15/2024 1,538,428.23                   1,549,293.21                        0.64
TFET 191 A3 4/24/2023 1,974,661.88                   1,995,164.75                        0.38
HAROT 2020-1 A3 4/22/2024 2,939,423.76                   2,987,892.60                        0.39
HAROT 2019-3 A3 8/15/2023 2,764,977.05                   2,792,650.00                        0.50
HART 2021-A A3 9/15/2025 1,759,814.85                   1,762,569.60                        0.32
JDOT 2019-B A3 12/15/2023 1,066,075.28                   1,081,475.13                        0.28
JDOT 2020 A3 8/15/2024 2,124,870.16                   2,143,572.50                        0.48
MBALT 2020-A A3 12/15/2022 1,409,814.16                   1,422,393.90                        -0.02
NAROT 2019-C A3 7/15/2024 2,954,843.98                   3,000,891.15                        0.54
TAOT 2020-D A3 1/15/2025 1,689,685.15                   1,692,332.20                        0.27
TAOT 2021-A A3 5/15/2025 3,699,313.28                   3,700,555.00                        0.25

SUB-TOTAL 187,081,384.01 188,686,968.43

Municipal Debt
ALAMEDA CNTY CALIF JT PWRS AUTH LEASE REV 6/1/2022 1,275,187.50                   1,284,512.50                        0.25
BAY AREA TOLL AUTH CALIF TOLL BRDG REV 4/1/2023 3,700,000.00                   3,827,798.00                        0.30
BAY AREA TOLL AUTH CALIF TOLL BRDG REV 4/1/2022 1,534,485.00                   1,522,260.00                        0.36
BAY AREA TOLL AUTH CALIF TOLL BRDG REV 4/1/2023 790,000.00                       814,924.50                           0.51
CALIFORNIA EARTHQUAKE AUTH REV 7/1/2023 365,000.00                       372,566.45                           0.48
CALIFORNIA ST 3/1/2022 901,032.00                       865,317.75                           0.20
CALIFORNIA ST PUB WKS BRD LEASE REV 12/1/2021 597,068.67                       574,237.44                           0.52
CALIFORNIA ST PUB WKS BRD LEASE REV 12/1/2021 333,842.71                       333,057.66                           0.52
CALIFORNIA ST UNIV REV 11/1/2023 1,090,000.00                   1,091,896.60                        0.40
CALIFORNIA STATEWIDE CMNTYS DEV AUTH REV 2/1/2023 875,000.00                       873,206.25                           0.47
CONTRA COSTA CALIF CMNTY COLLEGE DIST 8/1/2021 1,000,000.00                   1,002,590.00                        0.22
LOS ALTOS CALIF SCH DIST 8/1/2023 2,790,000.00                   2,800,462.50                        -8.13
LOS ANGELES CALIF MUN IMPT CORP LEASE REV 11/1/2025 1,600,000.00                   1,590,336.00                        1.09
LOS ANGELES CALIF MUN IMPT CORP LEASE REV 11/1/2022 1,019,560.00                   1,035,170.00                        0.51
MASSACHUSETTS (COMMONWEALTH OF) 5/1/2022 1,186,968.00                   1,166,140.20                        0.15
OAKLAND-ALAMEDA CNTY CALIF COLISEUM AUTH LEASE REV 2/1/2023 1,058,440.00                   1,046,390.00                        0.56
PALM DESERT CALIF REDEV AGY SUCCESSOR AGY TAX ALLO 10/1/2022 1,114,074.90                   1,126,317.00                        0.61
RANCHO SANTIAGO CALIF CMNTY COLLEGE DIST 9/1/2024 1,410,000.00                   1,408,364.40                        0.67
RIVERSIDE CALIF UNI SCH DIST 2/1/2022 750,000.00                       758,212.50                           0.18
RIVERSIDE CNTY CALIF PENSION OBLIG 2/15/2023 1,375,000.00                   1,416,855.00                        0.58
SACRAMENTO CNTY CALIF SANTN DIST FING AUTH REV 12/1/2023 1,500,000.00                   1,507,590.00                        0.56
SAN BERNARDINO CALIF CMNTY COLLEGE DIST 8/1/2024 890,000.00                       901,142.80                           0.54
SAN DIEGO CALIF CMNTY COLLEGE DIST 8/1/2021 1,285,000.00                   1,288,752.20                        0.26
SAN DIEGO CALIF PUB FACS FING AUTH LEASE REV 10/15/2021 1,325,000.00                   1,338,011.50                        0.41
SAN FRANCISCO CALIF CITY & CNTY PUB UTILS COMMN WT 11/1/2022 630,000.00                       645,302.70                           0.24
SAN FRANCISCO CALIF CITY & CNTY ARPTS COMMN INTL A 5/1/2022 2,350,000.00                   2,411,499.50                        0.21
SANTA BARBARA CNTY CALIF SOLID WASTE SYS REV CTFS 12/1/2021 375,000.00                       380,381.25                           0.47
SEMITROPIC IMPT DIST SEMITROPIC WTR STORAGE DIST C 12/1/2022 1,637,622.60                   1,621,633.00                        0.41
SOUTHERN CALIF PUB PWR AUTH PWR PROJ REV 7/1/2023 2,735,000.00                   2,740,798.20                        0.43
UNIV CALIF REGTS MED CTR POOLED REV 5/15/2022 1,577,512.50                   1,573,978.50                        0.28
UNIVERSITY CALIF REVS 5/15/2022 1,926,739.20                   1,977,062.40                        0.20
UPPER SANTA CLARA VY JT PWRS AUTH CALIF REV 8/1/2022 2,460,000.00                   2,470,356.60                        0.17
VALLEJO CALIF WTR REV 5/1/2023 840,000.00                       852,390.00                           0.70
CALIFORNIA EARTHQUAKE AUTH REV 7/1/2022 815,000.00                       823,606.40                           0.36
CALIFORNIA ST DEPT WTR RES CENT VY PROJ REV 12/1/2022 625,000.00                       627,356.25                           0.10
CALIFORNIA ST DEPT WTR RES CENT VY PROJ REV 12/1/2023 230,000.00                       231,025.80                           0.24
CALIFORNIA ST UNIV REV 11/1/2023 1,000,000.00                   1,001,740.00                        0.40
CONNECTICUT ST 7/1/2023 226,343.25                       232,951.50                           0.30
FLORIDA ST BRD ADMIN FIN CORP REV 7/1/2025 1,025,000.00                   1,037,238.50                        0.96
LOS ANGELES CALIF CMNTY COLLEGE DIST 8/1/2023 760,000.00                       762,910.80                           0.27
MARYLAND ST 8/1/2023 2,125,000.00                   2,132,947.50                        0.24
MISSISSIPPI ST 11/1/2023 925,000.00                       927,654.75                           0.30
NEW JERSEY ST TPK AUTH TPK REV 1/1/2025 850,000.00                       853,340.50                           0.79
NEW YORK ST URBAN DEV CORP REV 3/15/2023 915,000.00                       916,720.20                           0.38
NEW YORK ST URBAN DEV CORP REV 3/15/2024 2,790,000.00                   2,797,616.70                        0.52
PORT AUTH N Y & N J 7/1/2023 1,125,000.00                   1,139,692.50                        0.46
PORT AUTH N Y & N J 7/1/2023 1,101,416.70                   1,109,300.70                        0.46
BAY AREA TOLL AUTH CALIF TOLL BRDG REV 4/1/2022 2,865,000.00                   2,907,516.60                        0.36
BAY AREA TOLL AUTH CALIF TOLL BRDG REV 4/1/2022 1,105,500.00                   1,116,324.00                        0.36

5



Orange County Transportation Authority
Portfolio Listing

As of May 31, 2021

DESCRIPTION MATURITY DATE BOOK VALUE MARKET VALUE YIELD
CALIFORNIA HEALTH FACS FING AUTH REV 6/1/2021 2,140,000.00                   2,140,000.00                        1.88
CALIFORNIA ST 4/1/2024 3,239,373.40                   3,313,351.70                        0.38
CALIFORNIA ST DEPT WTR RES CENT VY PROJ REV 12/1/2024 2,120,000.00                   2,130,621.20                        0.42
CHAFFEY CMNTY COLLEGE DIST CALIF 6/1/2022 715,000.00 724,345.05 0.31
CONTRA COSTA CALIF CMNTY COLLEGE DIST 8/1/2022 1,000,000.00                   1,017,070.00                        0.20
COOPERATIEVE RABOBANK UA (NEW YORK BRANCH) 1/12/2024 4,332,008.85                   4,332,745.80                        0.39
EL CAJON CALIF 4/1/2023 610,000.00                       610,207.40                           0.63
EL CAJON CALIF 4/1/2024 540,000.00                       539,071.20                           0.99
EL DORADO CALIF IRR DIST REV 3/1/2023 720,000.00                       725,536.80                           0.43
EL DORADO CALIF IRR DIST REV 3/1/2024 720,000.00                       728,920.80                           0.63
HAWAII ST ARPTS SYS CUSTOMER FAC CHARGE REV 7/1/2022 715,000.00                       724,473.75                           0.60
HAWAII ST ARPTS SYS CUSTOMER FAC CHARGE REV 7/1/2024 715,000.00                       737,136.40                           0.99
LOS ANGELES CALIF MUN IMPT CORP LEASE REV 11/1/2022 1,620,000.00                   1,616,160.60                        0.49
LOS ANGELES CALIF MUN IMPT CORP LEASE REV 11/1/2022 900,000.00                       900,351.00                           0.49
LOS ANGELES CALIF MUN IMPT CORP LEASE REV 11/1/2023 720,000.00                       720,302.40                           0.63
LOS ANGELES CNTY CALIF PUB WKS FING AUTH LEASE REV 12/1/2021 1,537,050.00                   1,521,675.00                        0.33
MASSACHUSETTS ST SCH BLDG AUTH DEDICATED SALES TAX 10/15/2022 1,800,000.00                   1,843,560.00                        0.21
MASSACHUSETTS ST WTR RES AUTH IAM COML PAPER NTS 3 8/1/2023 2,365,000.00                   2,442,288.20                        0.26
MISSISSIPPI ST 11/1/2023 4,540,000.00                   4,553,029.80                        0.30
OHIO ST SPL OBLIG 10/1/2023 1,180,000.00                   1,188,047.60                        0.27
OHLONE CALIF CMNTY COLLEGE DIST 8/1/2022 800,000.00                       814,152.00                           0.19
PASADENA CALIF PUB FING AUTH LEASE REV 12/1/2021 400,000.00                       405,648.00                           0.45
PENNSYLVANIA ST TPK COMMN TPK REV 12/1/2021 876,767.50                       883,627.50                           0.33
RANCHO SANTIAGO CALIF CMNTY COLLEGE DIST 9/1/2023 865,000.00                       864,359.90                           0.45
RHODE IS ST TPK & BRDG AUTH TOLL REV 12/1/2021 480,000.00                       484,036.80                           0.47
RHODE IS ST TPK & BRDG AUTH TOLL REV 12/1/2022 400,000.00                       409,488.00                           0.58
RIVERSIDE CNTY CALIF PENSION OBLIG 2/15/2022 2,420,000.00                   2,450,177.40                        0.51
SAN DIEGO CALIF CMNTY COLLEGE DIST 8/1/2022 1,500,000.00                   1,530,210.00                        0.22
SAN DIEGO CNTY CALIF WTR AUTH WTR REV 5/1/2024 1,440,000.00                   1,446,638.40                        0.43
SAN FRANCISCO CALIF CITY & CNTY ARPTS COMMN INTL A 5/1/2022 2,138,837.50                   2,181,161.70                        0.47
SAN FRANCISCO CALIF CITY & CNTY ARPTS COMMN INTL A 5/1/2023 1,635,140.00                   1,701,191.05                        0.41
SAN JOSE EVERGREEN CALIF CMNTY COLLEGE DIST 9/1/2021 290,000.00                       290,348.00                           0.13
SAN JOSE EVERGREEN CALIF CMNTY COLLEGE DIST 9/1/2022 430,000.00                       432,773.50                           0.19
SAN JOSE EVERGREEN CALIF CMNTY COLLEGE DIST 9/1/2023 430,000.00                       431,659.80                           0.33
UPPER SANTA CLARA VY JT PWRS AUTH CALIF REV 8/1/2023 2,590,000.00                   2,611,419.30                        0.30
UPPER SANTA CLARA VY JT PWRS AUTH CALIF REV 8/1/2024 2,625,000.00                   2,654,190.00                        0.47
UTAH HSG CORP SINGLE FAMILY MTG REV 1/1/2022 1,300,000.00                   1,311,193.00                        0.64
UTAH HSG CORP SINGLE FAMILY MTG REV 7/1/2022 545,000.00                       553,333.05                           0.74
VENTURA CNTY CALIF PUB FING AUTH LEASE REV 11/1/2022 560,000.00                       563,472.00                           0.41
VENTURA CNTY CALIF PUB FING AUTH LEASE REV 11/1/2023 720,000.00                       728,193.60                           0.58
VENTURA CNTY CALIF PUB FING AUTH LEASE REV 11/1/2023 722,793.60                       728,193.60                           0.58
VENTURA CNTY CALIF PUB FING AUTH LEASE REV 11/1/2023 728,517.60                       728,193.60                           0.58
NEW YORK ST 2/15/2024 3,000,000.00                   3,129,060.00                        0.41

SUB-TOTAL 121,906,281.49 123,079,071.00
Variable & Floating Rate

BANK OF AMERICA CORP 10/24/2024 2,155,000.00                   2,167,175.75                        0.57
BANK OF AMERICA CORP 4/22/2025 1,745,000.00                   1,755,784.10                        0.75
CITIGROUP INC 10/30/2024 2,065,000.00                   2,074,808.75                        0.62
CITIGROUP INC 5/1/2025 615,000.00                       618,800.70                           0.75
FNA 2014-M8 A2 6/25/2024 2,048,559.65                   2,017,201.49                        0.38
FNA 2018-M5 A2 9/25/2021 82,610.55                         81,273.17                             0.39
FHMS K-029 A2 2/25/2023 1,078,080.08                   1,079,759.30                        0.23
FHMS K-029 A2 2/25/2023 1,716,426.56                   1,719,228.40                        0.23
FHMS K-029 A2 2/25/2023 820,581.64                       828,164.90                           0.23
FHMS K-029 A2 2/25/2023 1,797,539.45                   1,771,643.90                        0.23
FHMS K-031 A2 4/25/2023 3,771,482.81                   3,728,044.80                        0.31
FHMS K-032 A2 5/25/2023 3,805,596.09                   3,948,841.60                        0.32
FHMS K-033 A2 7/25/2023 3,809,798.44                   3,823,442.70                        0.33
FHMS K-I05 A 7/25/2024 1,143,213.23                   1,145,133.83                        0.25
FHMS 2021-Q015 A 8/25/2024 2,300,000.00                   2,300,000.00                        0.22
FIRST REPUBLIC BANK 2/12/2024 500,000.00                       511,340.00                           0.57
GOLDMAN SACHS GROUP INC 6/5/2023 2,177,282.40                   2,173,911.60                        0.41
GOLDMAN SACHS GROUP INC 3/8/2024 2,115,000.00                   2,121,027.75                        0.51
GOLDMAN SACHS GROUP INC 10/31/2022 1,573,456.50                   1,579,221.00                        0.32
JPMORGAN CHASE & CO 9/16/2024 1,160,000.00                   1,163,619.20                        0.54
JPMORGAN CHASE & CO 2/16/2025 915,000.00                       913,142.55                           0.67
JPMORGAN CHASE & CO 3/16/2024 2,110,000.00                   2,118,988.60                        0.48
JDOT 2021 A3 9/15/2025 2,349,548.33                   2,350,587.50                        0.35
KEYBANK NA 1/3/2024 1,450,000.00                   1,451,116.50                        0.37
MORGAN STANLEY 10/21/2025 615,000.00                       616,968.00                           0.77
MORGAN STANLEY 11/10/2023 1,160,000.00                   1,162,528.80                        0.41
MORGAN STANLEY 1/25/2024 1,840,000.00                   1,843,956.00                        0.40
MORGAN STANLEY 4/5/2024 875,000.00                       878,255.00                           0.53
PNC BANK NA 12/9/2022 1,640,000.00                   1,654,743.60                        0.33
WELLS FARGO BANK NA 9/9/2022 1,990,000.00                   2,000,168.90                        0.26
WELLS FARGO & CO 5/19/2025 455,000.00                       456,729.00                           0.64
BANK OF AMERICA CORP 3/5/2024 1,064,260.00                   1,054,820.00                        0.44
BANK OF AMERICA CORP 5/19/2024 1,425,000.00                   1,453,072.50                        0.48
BANK OF AMERICA CORP 4/22/2025 850,000.00                       855,253.00                           0.75
CARMX 2020-3 A3 3/17/2025 774,867.17                       779,278.00                           0.30
CITIGROUP INC 10/30/2024 2,500,000.00                   2,511,875.00                        0.62
CITIGROUP INC 5/1/2025 290,000.00                       291,792.20                           0.75
CITIGROUP INC 11/4/2022 310,000.00                       312,644.30                           0.34
GMALT 2020-3 A3 8/21/2023 624,940.13                       626,837.50                           0.16
GMCAR 2021-1 A3 10/16/2025 369,941.10                       370,721.50                           0.27
GMALT 2021-2 A3 5/20/2024 1,589,750.37                   1,590,969.90                        0.30
GOLDMAN SACHS GROUP INC 11/17/2023 1,675,000.00                   1,678,400.25                        0.49
JPMORGAN CHASE & CO 6/1/2024 1,575,000.00                   1,608,122.25                        0.90
JPMORGAN CHASE & CO 9/16/2024 300,000.00                       300,936.00                           0.54
JPMORGAN CHASE & CO 2/16/2025 815,000.00                       813,345.55                           0.67
JPMORGAN CHASE & CO 3/16/2024 1,000,000.00                   1,004,260.00                        0.48
MORGAN STANLEY 1/25/2024 1,535,000.00                   1,538,300.25                        0.40
MORGAN STANLEY 4/5/2024 250,000.00                       250,930.00                           0.53
NALT 2020-B A3 10/16/2023 424,956.27                       426,224.00                           0.18
TLOT-21A-A3 4/20/2024 1,084,873.38                   1,084,873.06                        0.00
BMW US CAPITAL LLC 4/1/2024 2,410,000.00                   2,424,435.90                        0.33
BANK OF AMERICA CORP 12/20/2023 2,879,411.20                   2,851,079.60                        0.40
BANK OF AMERICA CORP 10/24/2024 2,256,637.50                   2,262,712.50                        0.57
BANK OF AMERICA CORP 10/24/2024 802,424.00                       804,520.00                           0.57
CITIGROUP INC 5/1/2025 2,515,000.00                   2,530,542.70                        0.75
FHMS K-048 A2 6/25/2025 180,617.00                       180,828.45                           0.74
FHMS K-730 AM 1/25/2025 3,800,660.16                   3,783,304.50                        0.84
FN AL3382 3/1/2023 725,909.86                       732,542.66                           0.68
GOLDMAN SACHS GROUP INC 11/17/2023 3,560,000.00                   3,567,226.80                        0.49
GOLDMAN SACHS GROUP INC 11/17/2023 3,604,680.00                   3,607,308.00                        0.49
JPMORGAN CHASE & CO 12/5/2024 964,932.50                       948,491.25                           0.66
JPMORGAN CHASE & CO 12/5/2024 3,132,832.40                   3,078,531.60                        0.66
JPMORGAN CHASE & CO 12/5/2024 3,961,872.00                   3,902,364.00                        0.66
KEYBANK NA 2/1/2022 4,180,000.00                   4,197,890.40                        0.19

6



Orange County Transportation Authority
Portfolio Listing

As of May 31, 2021

DESCRIPTION MATURITY DATE BOOK VALUE MARKET VALUE YIELD
MORGAN STANLEY 11/10/2023 5,725,000.00                   5,737,480.50                        0.41
MORGAN STANLEY 11/10/2023 1,801,008.00                   1,803,924.00                        0.41
PNC BANK NA 2/24/2023 4,045,000.00                   4,053,656.30                        0.18
STATE STREET CORP 3/30/2023 1,750,000.00                   1,787,520.00                        0.26
WELLS FARGO & CO 6/2/2024 6,140,580.00                   6,143,700.00                        0.46
JDOT 2021 A3 9/15/2025 1,454,720.35                   1,455,363.75                        0.35
TLOT-21A-A3 4/20/2024 2,344,726.34                   2,344,725.64                        0.00

SUB-TOTAL 128,573,775.47 128,806,411.18

Supranationals
INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 5/24/2023 2,599,116.00 2,615,730.00 0.20
INTERNATIONAL BANK FOR RECONSTRUCTION AND DEVELOPM 11/24/2023 2,644,302.50 2,648,834.00 0.27
INTERNATIONAL BANK FOR RECONSTRUCTION AND DEVELOPM 4/20/2023 2,859,069.45 2,861,046.30 0.20
INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 4/14/2022 1,934,593.40 1,957,367.40 0.13
INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 4/14/2022 1,177,726.00 1,191,661.50 0.13
INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 4/14/2022 811,863.00 821,485.80 0.13
INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 9/14/2022 10,484,250.00 10,715,040.00 0.17
INTERNATIONAL BANK FOR RECONSTRUCTION AND DEVELOPM 3/19/2024 5,349,700.00 5,301,950.00 0.34
INTERNATIONAL BANK FOR RECONSTRUCTION AND DEVELOPM 11/24/2023 3,043,442.50 3,048,658.00 0.27

SUB-TOTAL 30,904,062.85 31,161,773.00

SHORT-TERM PORTFOLIO - TOTAL 1,631,992,563.60$          1,634,103,996.06$              

BOND PROCEEDS PORTFOLIO

Bond Proceeds
BNY MELLON-MONEY MARKET FUND N/A 171,159,344.52               171,159,344.52                   0.06%

BOND PROCEEDS PORTFOLIO-TOTAL 171,159,344.52$             171,159,344.52$                 

DEBT SERVICE RESERVE FUNDS

DESCRIPTION MATURITY DATE BOOK VALUE REQUIRED AMOUNT YIELD

91 EXPRESS LANES 2013 BONDS 2030 10,799,437.46                     
US BANK COMMERCIAL PAPER 7/6/2021 11,490,414.08                 0.09%
FIRST AMERICAN TREAS OBLIGATIONS N/A 67.59                                0.01%

91 EXPRESS LANES 2013 BONDS - OPERATING & MAINTENANCE RESERVES 13,000,000.00                     
BANK DEPOSITS N/A 218,920.72                       
OPERATING RESERVE 7/13/2021 3,098,667.86                   0.13%
MAINTENANCE RESERVE 7/13/2021 10,495,487.92                 0.13%

DEBT SERVICE RESERVE FUNDS - TOTAL 25,303,558.17$               

Book Value Market Value

TOTAL PORTFOLIO 2,000,741,963.70$          2,002,853,396.16$              

7



                                                                                       COMMITTEE TRANSMITTAL 

Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California 92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282) 

 
July 12, 2021 
 
 
To: Members of the Board of Directors 
    
From: Andrea West, Interim Clerk of the Board  

Subject: OC Streetcar Project Quarterly Update    

Transit Committee Meeting of July 8, 2021 
 
Present: Directors Chaffee, Do, Jones, Nguyen, Sarmiento, Shaw, and 

Sidhu 
Absent: None 
 

 
Committee Vote 
 
Following the discussion, no action was taken on this receive and file 
information item.  

 
Staff Recommendation 
 
Receive and file as an information item.  

            
 



Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California  92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282) 

July 8, 2021 
 
 
To: Transit Committee 
 
From: Darrell E. Johnson, Chief Executive Officer  
 
Subject: OC Streetcar Project Quarterly Update 
 
 
Overview 
 
The Orange County Transportation Authority is implementing the OC Streetcar 
project, and updates are provided to the Board of Directors on a quarterly  
basis. This report provides an update on OC Streetcar project activities from  
April 2021 through June 2021. 
 
Recommendation  
 
Receive and file as an information item. 
 
Background 
 
The Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA), in cooperation with the 
cities of Santa Ana and Garden Grove, is implementing a modern streetcar 
running between the Santa Ana Regional Transportation Center in  
the City of Santa Ana (City) and the intersection of Harbor Boulevard  
and Westminster Avenue in the City of Garden Grove. The OC Streetcar  
project (Project) will improve transit connectivity and accessibility, increase 
transit options, relieve congestion, and provide benefits to the community and  
traveling public. The Project is being implemented as part of Measure M2  
Project S  Transit Extensions to Metrolink, approved by Orange County voters 
in November 2006. 
 
Construction of the 4.15-mile project line involves complex and specialized work, 
including the installation of embedded track in existing streets, an overhead 
contact system (OCS) to supply power to the vehicles, stops with canopies, 
bridges, and a maintenance and storage facility (MSF).   
 
The Project includes ten streetcar stops in each direction (four shared center 
platforms and six side platforms in each direction, for a total of 16 platforms). 
Each stop includes a canopy, benches, leaning rails, trash cans, lighting, 



OC Streetcar Project Quarterly Update Page 2
 

 

 

variable message signs, video cameras, a public address system, and ticket 
vending machines, which will be procured separately. Platforms will be  
14 inches high to enable level boarding to streetcar vehicles. Furthermore, the 
installation of new traffic signals and transit signal priority at intersections along 
the route is also included.   
 
The MSF can accommodate up to 15 modern streetcar vehicles, as well as all 
necessary administration, operations, vehicle maintenance, parts storage, and 
maintenance-of-way needs for the Project. Secured exterior vehicle storage, 
including a wye track for turning vehicles end-for-end, a free-standing vehicle 
wash, employee parking, and fire department/delivery access will also be 
included. 
 
On March 26, 2018, the Board of Directors (Board) awarded a contract to 
Siemens Mobility, Inc., (Siemens) for the manufacture and delivery of  
eight modern streetcar vehicles, spare parts, and special tools. On  
September 24, 2018, the Board awarded the project construction contract to 
Walsh Construction Company II, LLC (Walsh). On November 30, 2018, the 
Federal Transit Administration (FTA) executed the Full Funding Grant 
Agreement (FFGA), securing $149,000,000 in federal New Starts discretionary 
funding for the Project. In February 2019, the FFGA was funded through the FTA 
Transit Award Management System, which was the final step necessary to begin 
the drawdown of federal funding. Through June 4, 2021, $71,295,408 has been 
drawn down on the FFGA. 
 
Discussion 
 
The following is the status of ongoing project activities related to construction, 
vehicle manufacturing, and public outreach.   
 
Construction  
 
In the Pacific Electric Right-of-Way (PEROW), Walsh continues to install OCS 
pole foundations, duct banks, and foundation and block for three soundwalls. 
The Fairview grade crossing was completed with installation of rail and crossing 
panels, while preparations began for the Fifth Street crossing. Construction of 
the Westminster Bridge and Santa Ana River Bridge (SARB) is substantially 
complete, and work is underway to prepare for rail installation on both bridges. 
A quality issue at the SARB has been identified in regard to installation of the 
deck. The Project team is working with Walsh to resolve this issue, and staff will 
report back with   
 
 
 



OC Streetcar Project Quarterly Update Page 3
 

 

 

Double-sided station platforms at Fairview Street and Raitt Street are under 
construction, and conduits are being installed at the Harbor Station. Electrical 
conduits are being placed to serve traction power substations near  
Westminster Avenue and at the northwest corner of the MSF.  
 
Construction of the MSF is critical to the Project schedule, as it is needed  
to accept delivery and conduct final acceptance testing for the eight vehicles 
being manufactured by Siemens. OCTA continues to coordinate with the FTA 
and the Most Likely Descendant on the reinterment of the Native American 
cultural remains encountered during excavations at the MSF site in fall 2020. 
Construction work continues on the site utilities, foundation slab, wheel-truing 
pit, service and inspection pits, and perimeter block wall, and the storm drainage 
infiltration basin was installed. While there were some construction delays at the 
MSF while waiting for design and material procurement for cathodic and stray 
current protection, the majority has been installed and placement of reinforced 
concrete and vapor barrier continues. MSF yard utilities and the car wash 
building slab have also been completed. Staff will be seeking Board approval of 
a construction change order (CCO) to compensate Walsh for changes to the 
MSF plans associated with building permit design compliance requirements in 
the third quarter of 2021. 
 
Construction of westbound track on Santa Ana Boulevard between Bristol Street 
and Raitt Street is complete. Construction of eastbound track within the same 
limits is underway. On Santa Ana Boulevard between French Street and  
Parton Street Walsh encountered conflicting utilities within the excavation for 
track construction, which was addressed by employing a re-designed track slab 
to avoid the utilities, reducing the overall depth of excavation and allowing 
construction to advance. Track was also placed on Santa Ana Boulevard across 
the Main Street and Broadway intersections, as well as along the north-south 
running Mortimer Street from Fourth Street to Sixth Street, with street paving 
planned in this location in mid-June.  
 
To better assist in detecting utility conflicts, Walsh is utilizing ground penetrating 
radar equipment to provide additional data on utilities and identify other potential 
unknown or unmarked utilities. Other significant construction activities in the 
quarter include continued installation of OCS and traffic signal pole foundations, 
reconstruction of impacted sidewalks and curb ramps, and inspection of special 
track work at the fabrication site. 
 
During the reporting quarter, the construction management team worked on 
preparation of additional CCOs, including additional funding for exploratory 
potholing allowance, which staff will seek Board approval for in July 2021. Other 
CCOs planned for Board approval in the third quarter of 2021 include design 
modifications to the traction power substations, traffic signal interconnects, 
additional removal and disposal of contaminated soil in the PEROW and treated 



OC Streetcar Project Quarterly Update Page 4
 

 

 

wood waste, and installation of a fiber optic backbone network system 
redundancy.   
 
Vehicle and Operations     
 
Siemens continues production of eight S700 streetcar vehicles. OCTA has an 
on-site resident inspector at the Siemens facility to oversee the vehicle 
manufacturing process and ensure compliance with the technical specifications. 
Currently, cars 1-7 are in final stages of equipping with installation of the last 
remaining vehicle components. Car 8 is in final assembly and is anticipated to 
begin static and dynamic testing in the next quarter. Static testing is when the 
vehicle is stationary inside the facility to verify functionality of the components in 
a controlled environment. Dynamic testing is performed on the test track when 
the vehicle is in motion and allows the vehicle manufacturer to observe the 
functional behavior of the vehicle, monitor system functionality and performance 
in vehicle operation, and verify response time.  
 
During the reporting period, a First Article Inspection (FAI) was conducted  
to observe the Computer Aided Dispatching (CAD) and Automated Vehicle  
Location (CAD/AVL) systems in a simulated environment at 
facility. The CAD 
adherence performance, provides communications between the Operations 
Control Center (OCC)/dispatcher and streetcar operator, as well as real-time 
communication between streetcar vehicles to ensure adequate headways. The 
Automated Vehicle Location system feeds information to the CAD system and 
provides data to the OCC for the location of each streetcar vehicle on the  
OC Streetcar system. During the FAI, staff witnessed the systems pass multiple 
performance tests. In conjunction with the FAI for CAD/AVL, staff also witnessed 
the OC Streetcar vehicle Automated Passenger Counter. FAIs are a contract 
requirement and a critical component of the manufacturing process to ensure 
that each component is built according to specifications and quality control 
measures are met.  
 
Ongoing coordination with Siemens on the design features and FAIs of multiple 
vehicle components, as well as extended testing efforts for the vehicle door, 
energy absorbing bumper, and emergency battery drive, has impacted the 
anticipated dates for delivery of the S700 vehicles. Staff is in negotiations with 
Siemens on an updated master program schedule, including options for vehicle 
storage to align with the availability of the project infrastructure that is needed to 
accept and test the vehicles. Staff will return to the Board later this year with any 
contract amendments required for Siemens as a result of these discussions.  
 
Last quarter, it was reported that staff would seek Board approval in June 2021 
for a rail tow vehicle contract award. That procurement was subsequently 



OC Streetcar Project Quarterly Update Page 5
 

 

 

requirements. After further review, it was determined that a 16-ton boom truck, 
which was already planned for OCS and system maintenance, can also serve 
the same function as the rail tow vehicle. The boom truck can tow a streetcar 
vehicle in the unlikely event that it would not be able to move either under its 
own power or with the assistance of another streetcar vehicle. Work was 
completed during the quarter for the technical specifications to support this 
procurement.  
 
The limited Notice to Proceed (NTP) for the operations and maintenance (O&M) 
contractor, Herzog, began in May 2021. The general manager has been 
coordinating with staff on several processes which will be performed by the O&M 
contractor during system integration testing, pre-revenue operations, and 
revenue operations. The full NTP will be issued to Herzog pending discussions 
related to the revised revenue service date with FTA and OCTA later this year.   
 
Public Outreach  
 
OCTA outreach staff continued to provide door-to-door construction notifications 
to residents and businesses regarding nearby activities. Electronic and social 
media posts supported and amplified the messaging to use detours to avoid 
specific activities. 
 
During the reporting period, there were full closures of two busy intersections, 
Santa Ana Boulevard at Main Street and Broadway, for track installation 
activities. In addition to electronic and social media, a targeted flyer for  
Hall of Administration stakeholders was developed and distributed through the 
County of Orange distribution channels. The flyer directed staff to a route that 
provided them access to all parking structures.  
 
OCTA and City staff continue to meet and discuss the needs of the visitors  
and businesses along Segment 4 (Fourth Street between Parton Street and  
Mortimer Street). The contractor has identified the two subsegments where they 
plan to initiate the work. The outreach team developed and distributed a bilingual 
postcard identifying the detours available when the traffic control is set. In 
addition, a flyer detailing track installation activities was also distributed. There 
will be additional door-to-door outreach prior to the work beginning.  
 
Outreach staff presented a project  
Transportation Committee and attended a field meeting with Communication 
Linkage Forum (Com-Link) committee members to discuss project activities in 
Segment 2 (Santa Ana Boulevard between Raitt Street and Bristol Street).  
Com-Link partners with the City to promote the exchange of ideas and 
information between neighborhoods and community leaders. 
 



OC Streetcar Project Quarterly Update Page 6
 

 

 

Outreach staff continues to brief the business associations at its meetings to 

the Downtown Santa Ana segment.  
 

expanded to 54 participants, exceeding the 
goal of 40 businesses. Targeted social media campaigns and biweekly 
newsletters continue to feature businesses and include information about local 
community events. 
 
Cost and Schedule   
 
As discussed with the Board in March 2021, the Project cost and schedule to 
complete the Project is under review by OCTA and FTA, considering the 
challenges encountered and outstanding project risks. Staff will return to the 
Board on or before November 2021 to present the results of  risk analysis, 
as well as recommendations for the cost and schedule adjustments needed to 
complete the Project.  
 
Next Steps  
 
Construction activities in the next quarter will focus on completing the floor slabs 
in the MSF building, installation of embedded track in the street and ballasted 
track in the PEROW, installing OCS poles, delivering the traction power 
substations, and constructing station stop platforms. Next steps for vehicles 
include finalizing design for remaining vehicle components, as well as continued 
production, assembly, and ongoing static and dynamic testing. Upcoming 
outreach activities include ongoing coordination with the construction team and 
the City regarding traffic control measures that are needed for the in-street 
embedded track installation, particularly along Fourth Street where businesses 
are more prevalent. 
 
Summary 
 
An OC Streetcar project update covering April 2021 through June 2021 is 
provided for the Orange County Transportation 
review. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



OC Streetcar Project Quarterly Update Page 7
 

 

 

Attachments 
 
None.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: 

 

Approved by: 

 
Ross Lew, P.E.  James G. Beil, P.E. 
Program Manager, Senior 
(714) 560-5775 

Executive Director, Capital Programs 
(714) 560-5646 

 



OC Streetcar Project Quarterly Update 



Pacific Electric Right-of-Way (PEROW)

Installation of overhead contact system (OCS) pole foundations, communication duct 
banks, and foundation for three soundwalls

Fairview Street grade crossing completed, and preparations began for Fifth Street grade 
crossing

Electrical conduits installed near Westminster Avenue to serve traction power 
substations 

Construction Segment 1

2



Westminster Bridge

3

Substantially complete, preparations underway for rail installation. 



Santa Ana River Bridge

4
Substantially complete, preparations underway for rail installation.



Station Stops

5



Maintenance and Storage Facility (MSF)

6

On-site utilities, foundation slab, wheel truing and service and inspection pits. 

Car wash building slab completed.



Construction of westbound embedded track on Santa Ana Boulevard between Bristol Street 
and Raitt Street is complete. 

Construction of eastbound embedded track on Santa Ana Boulevard between Raitt Street 
and Bristol Street is underway. 

Embedded track placed on Santa Ana Blvd intersections across Broadway and Main Street, 
and along Mortimer Street from Fourth to Sixth Streets.

Construction Segments 2 Through 5

7



Track Installation

8



Upcoming Construction Milestones 

In-street embedded track
PEROW ballasted track
OCS and traffic signal pole foundations
MSF slabs and walls
Station stop platforms
Delivery and placement of traction power substations

9



Vehicles

10

Cars 1-7 of the eight S-700 streetcar vehicles are undergoing final equipping of remaining vehicle 
components. 
Car 8 is in final assembly and then will proceed to static and dynamic testing. 
First article inspection conducted for the Computer Aided Dispatching/Automated Vehicle Location 
system. 
Negotiations are ongoing with Siemens regarding options for vehicle storage to align with the 
availability of the project infrastructure needed to accept and test the vehicles. 



Vehicle Interior 

11



Outreach 

12

Bilingual Door-to-Door Notices

Field Meetings

Downtown Business Associations

Eat Shop Play



                      COMMITTEE TRANSMITTAL 

Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California 92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282) 

 
 
August 9, 2021 
 
 
To: Members of the Board of Directors 

 
From: Andrea West, Interim Clerk of the Board 

Subject: Orange County Transportation Authority Investment and Debt 
Programs Report  June 2021                      

Finance and Administration Committee Meeting of July 28, 2021 
 
Present: Directors Goodell, Harper, Hennessey, Hernandez, Jones, and 

Muller 
Absent: Director Foley  
 
 
Committee Vote 
 
Following the roll call vote, this item was declared passed 6-0 by the Members 
present. 
 
Committee Recommendation 
 
Receive and file as an information item.  



Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California 92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282) 

July 28, 2021 
 
 
To: Finance and Administration Committee 
 
From: Darrell E. Johnson, Chief Executive Officer 
 
Subject: Orange County Transportation Authority Investment and Debt 

Programs Report  June 2021  
 
 
Overview 
 
The Orange County Transportation Authority has a comprehensive investment 
and debt program to fund its immediate and long-term cash flow demands.  Each 
month, the Treasurer submits a report detailing investment allocation, 
performance, compliance, outstanding debt balances, and credit ratings for the 

month ending June 30, 2021.   
 
Recommendation 
 
Receive and file as an information item. 
 
Discussion 
 
As of June 30, 2021, the Orange County Transportation OCTA) 
outstanding investments totaled $2 billion.  The portfolio is divided into three 
managed portfolios: the liquid portfolio for immediate cash needs, the short-term 
portfolio for future budgeted expenditures, and the bond proceeds portfolio to 
meet Measure M2 (M2) transportation program needs. In addition to these 
portfolios, OCTA has funds invested in debt service reserve funds for the  
91 Express Lanes Program.  
 
Portfolio Compliance and Liquidity Requirements for the Next Six Months: The 

California Government Code. Additionally, OCTA has reviewed the liquidity 
requirements for the next six months 
sufficient to meet projected expenditures during the next six months. 
 
The weighted average book yield for the OCTA portfolio is one percent. The 
book yield measures the exact income, or interest, on a bond without regard to 



Orange County Transportation Authority Investment and Debt 
Programs Report  June 2021 

Page 2
 

 

 

market price change. The yield is the income return on an investment, such as 
the interest received from holding a particular security. The yield is usually 
expressed as an annual percentage rate based on the investment's cost and 
market value.  
 
OCTA -end balance in the Local Agency Investment Fund was 
$70,996,561, with an average monthly effective yield of 0.3 percent. OCTA
month-end balance in the Orange County Investment Pool (OCIP) was 
$15,221,463. For the month of May, the monthly gross yield for the OCIP was 
0.6 percent. Yields for the month of June will be received in July.   
 

During the month of June, there were no securities 
investment portfolio that were downgraded. The total number of securities on the 
Negative Credit Watch list remained at one security for the month. Please refer 
to A-8 (Rating Downgrades and Negative Credit Watch) of Attachment A for 
further details. As of June 30, 2021, the securities reflected on A-8 still meet the 
minimum ratings requirements   
 

 debt program is separate from its investment program and is comprised 
of M2 Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, 91 Toll Revenue Bonds, and 2017 
Transportation Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (TIFIA) Loan. The debt 
program currently has an outstanding principal balance of $990 million as of 
June 30, 2021.  Approximately 62 percent of the outstanding balance is 
comprised of M2 debt, nine percent is associated with the 91 Express Lanes 
Program, and 29 percent is for the TIFIA Loan.  
 

Summary  
 

The Treasurer is submitting a copy of the Orange County Transportation 
Authority Investment and Debt Programs report to the Finance and 
Administration Committee. The report is for the month ending June 30, 2021. 
 

  



Orange County Transportation Authority Investment and Debt 
Programs Report  June 2021 

Page 3
 

 

 

Attachments 
 

A. Orange County Transportation Authority Investment and Debt Programs 
 For the Period Ending June 30, 2021 

B. Orange County Transportation Authority Portfolio Listing as of  
June 30, 2021  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved by: 

 
 

Robert Davis  Andrew Oftelie 
Department Manager 
Treasury/Public Finance 
(714) 560-5675 

Chief Financial Officer 
Finance and Administration 
(714) 560-5649 

 



ATTACHMENT A

Treasury/Public Finance Department's
Report On

Orange County Transportation Authority

Presented to the
Finance and Administration Committee

For The Period Ending

June 30, 2021

Investment and Debt Programs 



*Per CA Government Code LAIF limit is $75 million

OCTA Investment Dashboard
6/30/2021

A-1



Dollar Amount Percent Of Investment Policy
Short-Term/Liquid Portfolio1 Invested Portfolio Maximum Percentages
U.S. Treasury Obligations 563,875,544$       29.7% 100%
Federal Agency/GSE 347,561,994         18.3% 100%
Municipal Debt 121,392,836         6.4% 30%
Commercial Paper -                       0.0% 25%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 21,800,000           1.1% 30%
Repurchase Agreements -                       0.0% 25%
Medium Term Maturity Notes/Corporates 204,661,458         10.8% 30%
Money Market/Mutual Funds 177,086,558         9.3% 20%
Mortgage & Asset-Backed 174,466,196         9.2% 20%*
Supranationals 30,904,063           1.6% 20%
Local Agency Investment Fund** 70,996,561           3.7% $ 75 Million
Orange County Investment Pool 15,221,463           0.8% 10%
Joint Powers Authority Pools -                       0.0% 10%
Bank Deposits 26,313,126           1.4% 5%
Variable & Floating Rate Securities 145,152,496         7.6% 30%

Total Short-Term/Liquid Portfolio 1,899,432,295$    100.0%
1. Excludes portion of Liquid Portfolio subject to Indenture
*Asset-backed securities, excluding mortgages, may not exceed 10 percent of the allocation
**OCTA increased the balance in the LAIF (Pool) from $46m to $71m during the month of February. 

Dollar Amount
Invested Credit Quality Term Credit Quality Term 

Liquid Portfolio*
Money Market Funds 71,423,376$         AAA/Aaa 45 days Min. A2/A Max. 4 years
Total Liquid Portfolio 71,423,376$         

Bond Proceeds Portfolio
Money Market Funds 10,553$                AAA/Aaa 45 days Min. A2/A Max. 4 years
Total Bond Proceeds Portfolio 10,553$                

Reserve Funds Portfolio
Commercial Paper 25,084,570$         P-1/F-1 60-150 days Min. A-1/P-1 Max. 180 days 
Bank Deposits 218,921$              
US Treasuries Obligations 68                         AAA/Aaa 30 days Min. A2/A Max. 5 years
Total Reserve Funds Portfolio 25,303,558$         

Total Portfolio Subject to Indenture 25,314,111$         

Portfolio Total 1,996,169,783$    

*Reflects portion of Liquid Portfolio subject to Indenture

Portfolio Subject to Indenture

Investment Compliance
6/30/2021

A-2

OCTA Indenture Requirements

Portfolio Subject to Investment Policy



Investment Manager Diversification and Maturity Schedules

MetLife Investment Management
6/30/2021

SHORT-TERM PORTFOLIO ( $408.0 M)

Book Market
Value Value

U.S. Treasury Obligations 112,733,192.19$   113,299,542.64$   
Federal Agency/GSE 48,115,708.33$     48,104,952.17$     
Municipal Debt 58,845,988.45$     59,290,417.45$     
Bankers Acceptances -$                       -$                       
Commercial Paper -$                       -$                       
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit -$                       -$                       
Repurchase Agreements -$                       -$                       
Medium Term Maturity Notes 42,089,422.25$     42,277,881.00$     
Money Market/Mutual Funds 16,269,173.31$     16,269,173.31$     
Mortg & Asset-Backed Securities 61,611,643.86$     61,735,638.27$     
Supranationals 14,408,432.40$     14,659,783.70$     
Joint Powers Authority Pools -$                       -$                       
Variable & Floating Rate Securities 53,939,934.07$     53,756,585.46$     

408,013,494.86$   409,393,974.00$   

Wtd Avg Life 1.75 Yrs
Duration 1.62 Yrs

Monthly Yield 0.40%
TSY Benchmark 0.24%

Gov/Corp Benchmark 0.29%

Monthly Return -0.09%
TSY Benchmark -0.15%

Gov/Corp Benchmark -0.15%

3 Month Return 0.14%
TSY Benchmark -0.03%

Gov/Corp Benchmark 0.01%

Fiscal YTD Return 0.81%
TSY Benchmark 0.07%

Gov/Corp Benchmark 0.27%

12 Month Return 0.81%
TSY Benchmark 0.07%

Gov/Corp Benchmark 0.27%

A-3

U.S. 
Treasury 

Obligations
27.6%

Federal 
Agency/GSE

11.8%

Municipal 
Debt

14.4%

Medium 
Term 

Maturity 
Notes
10.3%

Money 
Market/Mutual 

Funds
4.0%

Mortg & Asset 
Backed Sec

15.1%

Supranationals 
3.5%

Variable & 
Floating 

Rate 
Securities 

13.2%

$ 



Investment Manager Diversification and Maturity Schedules

PFM
6/30/2021

                       SHORT-TERM PORTFOLIO ( $409.7 M)

Book Market
Value Value

U.S. Treasury Obligations 158,923,371.14$   160,509,803.55$   
Federal Agency/GSE 91,870,469.13$     92,028,866.19$     
Municipal Debt 14,512,759.95$     14,563,162.35$     
Bankers Acceptances -$                       -$                       
Commercial Paper -$                       -$                       
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 21,800,000.00$     22,093,341.50$     
Repurchase Agreements -$                       -$                       
Medium Term Maturity Notes 44,759,067.30$     45,103,387.85$     
Money Market/Mutual Funds 2,028,469.70$       2,028,469.70$       
Mortg & Asset-Backed Securities 48,483,862.88$     48,960,436.62$     
Supranationals 8,102,487.95$       8,110,919.90$       
Joint Powers Authority Pools -$                       -$                       
Variable & Floating Rate Securities 19,243,588.42$     19,300,346.16$     

409,724,076.47$   412,698,733.82$   

Wtd Avg Life 1.78 Yrs
Duration 1.75 Yrs

Monthly Yield 0.32%
TSY Benchmark 0.24%

Gov/Corp Benchmark 0.29%

Monthly Return -0.13%
TSY Benchmark -0.15%

Gov/Corp Benchmark -0.15%

3 Month Return 0.05%
TSY Benchmark -0.03%

Gov/Corp Benchmark 0.01%

Fiscal YTD Return 0.43%
TSY Benchmark 0.07%

Gov/Corp Benchmark 0.27%

12 Month Return 0.43%
TSY Benchmark 0.07%

Gov/Corp Benchmark 0.27%

A-4

U.S. Treasury 
Obligations

38.8%

Federal 
Agency/GSE

22.4%

Municipal 
Debt
3.5%

Negotiable 
Certificates 
of Deposit

5.3%
Medium Term 
Maturity Notes

10.9%

Money 
Market/Mutu

al Funds
0.5%

Mortg & Asset 
Backed Sec

11.8%

Supranationals 
2.0%

Variable & 
Floating 

Rate 
Securities

4.7%



Investment Manager Diversification and Maturity Schedules

Chandler Asset Management
6/30/2021

SHORT-TERM PORTFOLIO ($404.1 M)

Book Market
Value Value

U.S. Treasury Obligations 98,158,019.53$      100,062,285.00$    
Federal Agency/GSE 200,468,721.70$    203,258,286.95$    
Municipal Debt 3,000,000.00$        3,116,550.00$        
Bankers Acceptances -$                       -$                       
Commercial Paper -$                       -$                       
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit -$                       -$                       
Repurchase Agreements -$                       -$                       
Medium Term Maturity Notes 63,581,616.60$      64,825,061.95$      
Money Market/Mutual Funds 178,778.83$           178,778.83$           
Mortg & Asset-Backed Securities 22,154,262.59$      22,295,702.29$      
Supranationals 8,393,142.50$        8,315,112.00$        
Joint Powers Authority Pools -$                       -$                       
Variable & Floating Rate Securities 8,125,043.84$        8,109,554.29$        

404,059,585.59$    410,161,331.31$    

Wtd Avg Life 1.91 Yrs
Duration 1.86 Yrs

Monthly Yield 0.30%
TSY Benchmark 0.24%

Gov/Corp Benchmark 0.29%

Monthly Return -0.13%
TSY Benchmark -0.15%

Gov/Corp Benchmark -0.15%

3 Month Return 0.01%
TSY Benchmark -0.03%

Gov/Corp Benchmark 0.01%

Fiscal YTD Return 0.30%
TSY Benchmark 0.07%

Gov/Corp Benchmark 0.27%

12 Month Return 0.30%
TSY Benchmark 0.07%

Gov/Corp Benchmark 0.27%

A-5

U.S. Treasury 
Obligations

24.3%

Federal 
Agency/GSE

49.6%

Municipal 
Debt
0.7%

Medium Term 
Maturity Notes

15.7%

Money 
Market/Mutual 

Funds
0.04%

Mortg & Asset 
Backed Sec

5.5%

Supranationals 
2.1%

Variable & 
Floating 

Rate 
Securities

2.0%



Investment Manager Diversification and Maturity Schedules

Payden & Rygel
6/30/2021

SHORT-TERM PORTFOLIO ($413.1 M)

Book Market
Value Value

U.S. Treasury Obligations 194,060,960.69$    193,736,552.51$    
Federal Agency/GSE 7,107,095.00$        7,048,014.00$        
Municipal Debt 45,034,088.09$      45,246,490.33$      
Bankers Acceptances -$                       -$                       
Commercial Paper -$                       -$                       
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit -$                       -$                       
Repurchase Agreements -$                       -$                       
Medium Term Maturity Notes 54,231,351.91$      54,817,423.03$      
Money Market/Mutual Funds 6,564,134.02$        6,564,134.02$        
Mortg & Asset-Backed Securities 42,216,426.60$      42,389,198.91$      
Supranationals -$                       -$                       
Joint Powers Authority Pools -$                       -$                       
Variable & Floating Rate Securities 63,843,929.72$      63,840,676.20$      

413,057,986.03$    413,642,489.00$    

Wtd Avg Life 1.82 Yrs
Duration 1.76 Yrs

Monthly Yield 0.36%
TSY Benchmark 0.24%

Gov/Corp Benchmark 0.29%

Monthly Return -0.14%
TSY Benchmark -0.15%

Gov/Corp Benchmark -0.15%

3 Month Return 0.07%
TSY Benchmark -0.03%

Gov/Corp Benchmark 0.01%

Fiscal YTD Return 0.50%
TSY Benchmark 0.07%

Gov/Corp Benchmark 0.27%

12 Month Return 0.50%
TSY Benchmark 0.07%

Gov/Corp Benchmark 0.27%

A-6

U.S. Treasury 
Obligations 

47.0%

Federal 
Agency/GSE 

1.7%

Municipal 
Debt

10.9%

Medium Term 
Maturity Notes

13.1%
Money 

Market/Mutu
al Funds

1.6%

Mortg & 
Asset-
Backed 

Securities
10.2%

Variable & 
Floating 

Rate 
Securities 

15.5%



Short-Term Portfolio
6/30/2021

Portfolio Composition

Maturity Schedule

A-7

U.S. Treasury Obligations
34.5%

Federal Agency/GSE
21.3%

Municipal Debt
7.4%

Negotiable Certificates of 
Deposit

1.3%

Medium Term Maturity Notes
12.5% Money Market/Mutual Funds

1.5%

Mortg & Asset-Backed Sec
10.7%

Supranationals 
1.9%

Variable & Floating Rate 
Securities

8.9%



Rating Downgrades & Negative Credit Watch
6/30/2021

Investment Manager / Security Par Amount Maturity S&P Moody's Fitch Ratings

Negative Credit Watch:

Chandler Asset Management 
US Bancorp 4,500,000$           Various** A+ A1 A+

**2/5/24 & 7/30/24

A-8

On March 16, 2021, Moody's placed the long-term ratings of US Bancorp (US Bank) under review for 
possible downgrade. The credit watch placement is due to the narrowing outperformance of US Bank 
compared to its peers which is currently attributed to coronavirus related struggles. The security remains in 
compliance with the requirements of the Investment Policy, and the investment manager is comfortable 
holding the security due to US Bank's consistent financial performance and the quality of their balance sheet. 



D
eb

t

(M2 Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, 91 Toll Revenue Bonds, 2017 TIFIA Loan (I-405))

DEBT PROGRAM



TOTAL OUTSTANDING DEBT:       $990,890,000

Total Outstanding Debt*
As of 6/30/21

A-9

TIFIA Loan
29%

Toll Road Bonds
9%

M2 Long-Term Fixed 
Rate Bonds

62%

Outstanding Debt



Outstanding Debt*
As of 6/30/21

Orange County Local Transportation Authority (OCLTA-M2)

2010 Series A Taxable Build America Bonds - Sales Tax Revenue Bonds
Issued: 293,540,000$            
Outstanding: 250,000,000              
Debt Service FY 2021: 17,270,000                
Pledged Revenue Source: M2 Sales Tax Revenues
Ratings (Fitch/ Moody's/ S&P): AA+/Aa2/AA+
Final Maturity: 2041

2019 M2 Sales Tax Bond 
Issued: 376,690,000$            
Outstanding: 368,625,000              
Debt Service FY 2021: 26,569,650                
Pledged Revenue Source: M2 Sales Tax Revenues
Ratings (Fitch/ S&P): AA+/AA+
Final Maturity: 2041

91 Express Lanes

2013 OCTA 91 Express Lanes Refunding Bonds

Issued: 124,415,000$            
Outstanding: 85,265,000                
Debt Service FY 2021: 10,795,075                
Pledged Revenue Source: 91 Toll Road Revenues
Ratings (Fitch/ Moody's/ S&P): A+/A1/AA-
Final Maturity: 2030

405 Express Lanes

2017 TIFIA Loan

Outstanding: 287,000,000$            
Accrued Interest: 24,411,073                
Pledged Revenue Source: 405 Toll Road Revenues
Ratings (Moody's): Baa2
Final Maturity: 2058

A-10



Orange County Transportation Authority
Portfolio Listing

As of June 30, 2021

LIQUID PORTFOLIO

DESCRIPTION MATURITY DATE BOOK VALUE MARKET VALUE YIELD

CASH EQUIVALENTS
BANK DEPOSITS 6/30/2021 26,313,126.00                 26,313,126.00                     
MONEY MARKET DEMAND ACCOUNT N/A 152,046,002.39               152,046,002.39                   0.10%
FIDELITY TREASURY OBLIGATIONS FUND N/A 53,160,533.79                 53,160,533.79                     0.01%

FEDERATED TREASURY OBLIGATIONS FUND N/A 18,262,842.36                 18,262,842.36                     0.03%
SUB-TOTAL 249,782,504.54               249,782,504.54                   

LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND (LAIF) N/A 70,996,561.09 70,996,561.09 0.26%

ORANGE COUNTY INVESTMENT POOL (OCIP) N/A 15,221,462.73                 15,221,462.73 0.56%

LIQUID PORTFOLIO - TOTAL 336,000,528.36$             336,000,528.36$                 

SHORT-TERM PORTFOLIO

DESCRIPTION MATURITY DATE BOOK VALUE MARKET VALUE YIELD

Money Market Funds
FIRST AMER:GVT OBLG Z 6/30/2021 178,778.83                      178,778.83                          0.02
FIRST AMER:GVT OBLG Z 6/30/2021 16,269,173.31                 16,269,173.31                     0.02
FIRST AMER:GVT OBLG Z 6/30/2021 6,564,134.02                   6,564,134.02                       0.02
FIRST AMER:GVT OBLG Z 6/30/2021 2,028,469.70                   2,028,469.70                       0.02

SUB-TOTAL 25,040,555.86                 25,040,555.86                     

NEGOTIABLE CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT 3/17/2023 940,000.00                      940,272.60                          0.57
Credit Suisse AG, New York Branch 3/17/2023 2,160,000.00                   2,160,626.40                       0.57
Credit Suisse AG, New York Branch 12/2/2022 1,175,000.00                   1,202,295.25                       0.42
DNB Bank ASA, New York Branch 12/2/2022 2,700,000.00                   2,762,721.00                       0.42
DNB Bank ASA, New York Branch 8/26/2022 1,175,000.00                   1,198,711.50                       0.12
Nordea Bank Abp, New York Branch 8/26/2022 2,700,000.00                   2,754,486.00                       0.12
Nordea Bank Abp, New York Branch 8/26/2022 1,175,000.00                   1,198,958.25                       0.11
Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken AB (publ) 8/26/2022 2,700,000.00                   2,755,053.00                       0.11
Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken AB (publ) 2/14/2022 1,215,000.00                   1,228,267.80                       0.04
Societe Generale, New York Branch 2/14/2022 2,785,000.00                   2,815,412.20                       0.04
Societe Generale, New York Branch 7/8/2022 930,000.00                      930,465.00                          0.65
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation,  New York Bra 7/8/2022 2,145,000.00                   2,146,072.50                       0.65

SUB-TOTAL 21,800,000.00                 22,093,341.50                     

U.S. TREASURY OBLIGATIONS
UNITED STATES TREASURY 7/31/2022 5,865,703.12                   6,114,360.00                       0.12
UNITED STATES TREASURY 8/31/2022 4,470,357.42                   4,744,069.50                       0.14
UNITED STATES TREASURY 8/31/2022 2,874,960.94                   3,060,690.00                       0.14
UNITED STATES TREASURY 11/30/2022 7,718,648.44                   8,001,708.00                       0.17
UNITED STATES TREASURY 4/30/2023 5,234,208.98                   5,382,877.50                       0.24
UNITED STATES TREASURY 5/31/2023 7,787,187.50                   8,211,280.00                       0.24
UNITED STATES TREASURY 10/31/2023 8,007,187.50                   8,243,120.00                       0.32
UNITED STATES TREASURY 8/15/2022 6,983,046.88                   7,108,570.00                       0.12
UNITED STATES TREASURY 10/15/2022 7,957,187.50                   8,126,240.00                       0.15
UNITED STATES TREASURY 1/31/2025 8,313,750.00                   8,219,680.00                       0.60
UNITED STATES TREASURY 3/31/2025 1,989,687.50                   1,990,080.00                       0.63
UNITED STATES TREASURY 12/15/2023 7,978,437.50                   7,957,840.00                       0.34
UNITED STATES TREASURY 4/15/2024 8,013,437.50                   7,990,640.00                       0.42
UNITED STATES TREASURY 5/15/2024 3,988,281.25                   3,978,120.00                       0.44
UNITED STATES TREASURY 6/15/2024 10,975,937.50                 10,933,010.00                     0.46
UNITED STATES TREASURY 5/15/2022 7,940,162.11                   7,953,012.90                       0.11
UNITED STATES TREASURY 5/15/2022 1,979,554.69                   1,984,437.00                       0.11
UNITED STATES TREASURY 9/30/2022 9,196,083.40                   9,329,328.91                       0.14
UNITED STATES TREASURY 9/30/2022 3,124,891.41                   3,167,585.16                       0.14
UNITED STATES TREASURY 9/30/2022 4,574,116.40                   4,636,445.40                       0.14
UNITED STATES TREASURY 9/30/2022 10,407,680.66                 10,532,739.00                     0.14
UNITED STATES TREASURY 9/30/2022 4,212,140.63                   4,284,504.00                       0.14
UNITED STATES TREASURY 10/15/2022 6,859,031.25                   7,009,968.75                       0.14
UNITED STATES TREASURY 10/15/2022 3,944,908.20                   4,012,953.13                       0.14
UNITED STATES TREASURY 12/31/2024 4,074,494.92                   4,068,863.30                       0.58
UNITED STATES TREASURY 12/31/2024 6,095,705.27                   6,103,294.95                       0.58
UNITED STATES TREASURY 3/15/2023 4,087,313.28                   4,075,275.00                       0.21
UNITED STATES TREASURY 3/15/2023 5,110,995.70                   5,095,350.00                       0.21
UNITED STATES TREASURY 3/15/2023 3,678,658.20                   3,668,250.00                       0.21
UNITED STATES TREASURY 3/15/2023 4,132,031.25                   4,120,500.00                       0.21
UNITED STATES TREASURY 3/15/2023 2,821,000.00                   2,814,000.00                       0.21
UNITED STATES TREASURY 3/15/2023 614,622.66                      613,050.00                          0.21
UNITED STATES TREASURY 5/15/2023 4,098,078.13                   4,091,671.88                       0.23
UNITED STATES TREASURY 5/15/2023 5,623,022.46                   5,613,574.22                       0.23
UNITED STATES TREASURY 10/15/2023 4,989,843.75                   4,978,906.25                       0.31
UNITED STATES TREASURY 10/15/2023 4,096,476.56                   4,082,703.13                       0.31
UNITED STATES TREASURY 10/15/2023 6,972,656.25                   6,970,468.75                       0.31
UNITED STATES TREASURY 10/15/2023 4,099,725.00                   4,092,660.94                       0.31
UNITED STATES TREASURY 12/31/2022 25,519,000.00                 25,497,053.66                     0.18
UNITED STATES TREASURY 12/31/2022 8,720,000.00                   8,712,500.80                       0.18
UNITED STATES TREASURY 12/31/2022 549,829.97                      549,527.00                          0.18
UNITED STATES TREASURY 12/31/2022 36,440,759.77                 36,423,648.70                     0.18
UNITED STATES TREASURY 12/31/2022 3,749,560.55                   3,746,775.00                       0.18
UNITED STATES TREASURY 12/31/2022 5,799,668.82                   5,795,012.00                       0.18
UNITED STATES TREASURY 12/31/2022 3,935,153.71                   3,931,615.90                       0.18
UNITED STATES TREASURY 1/31/2023 45,000.00                        44,955.90                            0.19
UNITED STATES TREASURY 1/31/2023 8,817,010.26                   8,805,961.69                       0.19
UNITED STATES TREASURY 1/31/2023 2,756,099.63                   2,752,699.71                       0.19
UNITED STATES TREASURY 1/31/2023 6,060,738.49                   6,053,261.98                       0.19
UNITED STATES TREASURY 1/31/2023 4,417,707.64                   4,412,171.83                       0.19
UNITED STATES TREASURY 1/31/2023 759,507.62                      758,555.89                          0.19
UNITED STATES TREASURY 1/31/2023 3,980,777.34                   3,976,099.60                       0.19
UNITED STATES TREASURY 1/31/2023 910,213.28                      909,108.20                          0.19
UNITED STATES TREASURY 1/31/2023 2,320,725.00                   2,317,726.40                       0.19
UNITED STATES TREASURY 1/31/2023 4,351,359.38                   4,345,737.00                       0.19
UNITED STATES TREASURY 1/31/2023 3,110,242.97                   3,106,952.20                       0.19
UNITED STATES TREASURY 1/31/2023 1,034,959.57                   1,033,985.70                       0.19
UNITED STATES TREASURY 3/31/2023 1,604,247.66                   1,602,560.40                       0.21
UNITED STATES TREASURY 3/31/2023 1,634,233.60                   1,632,514.80                       0.21
UNITED STATES TREASURY 3/31/2023 2,073,865.23                   2,071,846.00                       0.21
UNITED STATES TREASURY 4/30/2023 5,008,450.41                   5,000,631.30                       0.23
UNITED STATES TREASURY 4/30/2023 11,616,405.93                 11,598,270.60                     0.23
UNITED STATES TREASURY 5/15/2024 14,710,632.73                 14,654,399.55                     0.44
UNITED STATES TREASURY 5/15/2024 27,629,233.85                 27,523,617.75                     0.44
UNITED STATES TREASURY 5/15/2024 2,361,089.00                   2,352,063.45                       0.44
UNITED STATES TREASURY 5/15/2024 4,144,488.28                   4,127,299.50                       0.44
UNITED STATES TREASURY 7/31/2022 1,342,512.50                   1,365,540.40                       0.12
UNITED STATES TREASURY 7/31/2022 4,549,843.75                   4,713,152.50                       0.12
UNITED STATES TREASURY 7/31/2022 2,454,456.25                   2,542,554.70                       0.12
UNITED STATES TREASURY 7/31/2022 6,005,625.00                   6,114,360.00                       0.12
UNITED STATES TREASURY 7/31/2022 5,216,656.25                   5,299,112.00                       0.12
UNITED STATES TREASURY 9/30/2022 2,287,290.25                   2,344,663.80                       0.14
UNITED STATES TREASURY 9/30/2022 5,247,312.92                   5,378,934.60                       0.14
UNITED STATES TREASURY 10/31/2022 1,626,122.46                   1,675,302.75                       0.15
UNITED STATES TREASURY 10/31/2022 3,734,611.51                   3,847,560.75                       0.15

1

ATTACHMENT B



Orange County Transportation Authority
Portfolio Listing

As of June 30, 2021

DESCRIPTION MATURITY DATE BOOK VALUE MARKET VALUE YIELD
UNITED STATES TREASURY 2/28/2023 1,679,409.38                   1,747,788.00                       0.20
UNITED STATES TREASURY 2/28/2023 3,858,642.98                   4,015,751.00                       0.20
UNITED STATES TREASURY 12/31/2022 3,302,362.50                   3,416,479.20                       0.18
UNITED STATES TREASURY 12/31/2022 1,024,528.13 1,059,931.80 0.18
UNITED STATES TREASURY 12/31/2022 6,439,408.22 6,781,505.40 0.18
UNITED STATES TREASURY 1/31/2023 1,253,320.31                   1,280,612.50                       0.20
UNITED STATES TREASURY 1/31/2023 10,041.02                        10,244.90                            0.20
UNITED STATES TREASURY 1/31/2023 2,901,853.51                   2,960,776.10                       0.20
UNITED STATES TREASURY 3/31/2023 4,643,666.01                   4,651,510.50                       0.22
UNITED STATES TREASURY 3/31/2023 3,546,536.13                   3,552,527.25                       0.22
UNITED STATES TREASURY 3/31/2023 7,118,586.91                   7,130,612.25                       0.22
UNITED STATES TREASURY 6/30/2023 1,239,399.22                   1,237,176.60                       0.25
UNITED STATES TREASURY 6/30/2023 2,857,788.28                   2,852,663.40                       0.25
UNITED STATES TREASURY 11/15/2022 1,208,771.09                   1,234,393.60                       0.16
UNITED STATES TREASURY 11/15/2022 2,787,166.41                   2,846,246.40                       0.16
UNITED STATES TREASURY 4/30/2024 1,352,433.98                   1,347,250.20                       0.42
UNITED STATES TREASURY 4/30/2024 3,103,259.38                   3,091,364.80                       0.42
UNITED STATES TREASURY 10/15/2022 223,593.75                      228,550.50                          0.15
UNITED STATES TREASURY 10/15/2022 521,718.75                      533,284.50                          0.15
UNITED STATES TREASURY 10/31/2024 1,570,096.29                   1,563,298.20                       0.53
UNITED STATES TREASURY 10/31/2024 3,611,739.65                   3,596,101.80                       0.53
UNITED STATES TREASURY 11/30/2024 2,577,022.66                   2,564,122.40                       0.56
UNITED STATES TREASURY 11/30/2024 1,519,250.78                   1,511,645.60                       0.56
UNITED STATES TREASURY 11/30/2024 4,402,568.36                   4,385,320.00                       0.56
UNITED STATES TREASURY 1/15/2023 2,039,991.40                   2,071,148.10                       0.18
UNITED STATES TREASURY 1/15/2023 673,297.66                      683,580.90                          0.18
UNITED STATES TREASURY 1/15/2023 4,101,875.00                   4,081,080.00                       0.18
UNITED STATES TREASURY 5/15/2023 662,610.16                      663,756.45                          0.22
UNITED STATES TREASURY 5/15/2023 1,529,483.59                   1,532,129.55                       0.22
UNITED STATES TREASURY 6/15/2023 1,531,255.08                   1,530,122.40                       0.25
UNITED STATES TREASURY 6/15/2023 2,472,026.17                   2,470,197.60                       0.25
UNITED STATES TREASURY 6/15/2023 1,051,927.73                   1,050,084.00                       0.25
UNITED STATES TREASURY 10/15/2023 3,029,190.82                   3,021,949.50                       0.31
UNITED STATES TREASURY 10/15/2023 6,951,668.56                   6,935,050.50                       0.31
UNITED STATES TREASURY 11/15/2023 1,250,927.73                   1,247,900.00                       0.32
UNITED STATES TREASURY 11/15/2023 2,872,130.08                   2,865,178.40                       0.32
UNITED STATES TREASURY 11/30/2022 264,751.56                      264,825.10                          0.17
UNITED STATES TREASURY 11/30/2022 609,428.13                      609,597.40                          0.17
UNITED STATES TREASURY 12/15/2023 1,336,964.06                   1,332,938.20                       0.34
UNITED STATES TREASURY 12/15/2023 658,504.69                      656,521.80                          0.34
UNITED STATES TREASURY 12/15/2023 2,418,842.77                   2,412,220.25                       0.34
UNITED STATES TREASURY 12/31/2022 584,954.30                      584,496.90                          0.18
UNITED STATES TREASURY 12/31/2022 1,339,895.31                   1,338,847.60                       0.18
UNITED STATES TREASURY 1/31/2023 2,125,498.05                   2,122,917.50                       0.19
UNITED STATES TREASURY 1/31/2023 4,876,142.57                   4,870,222.50                       0.19
UNITED STATES TREASURY 2/15/2024 1,553,235.94                   1,549,953.60                       0.37
UNITED STATES TREASURY 2/15/2024 3,574,433.98                   3,566,880.40                       0.37
UNITED STATES TREASURY 3/15/2024 2,547,714.26                   2,544,831.10                       0.40
UNITED STATES TREASURY 3/15/2024 3,111,103.12                   3,107,582.40                       0.40
UNITED STATES TREASURY 3/15/2024 2,744,306.64                   2,739,055.00                       0.40
UNITED STATES TREASURY 3/31/2023 604,645.51                      604,080.40                          0.21
UNITED STATES TREASURY 3/31/2023 1,394,182.62                   1,392,879.60                       0.21
UNITED STATES TREASURY 4/15/2024 910,675.39                      908,935.30                          0.42
UNITED STATES TREASURY 4/15/2024 2,091,551.17                   2,087,554.70                       0.42
UNITED STATES TREASURY 6/15/2024 852,728.91                      849,793.05                          0.46
UNITED STATES TREASURY 6/15/2024 1,939,833.59                   1,933,154.95                       0.46

SUB-TOTAL 563,875,543.54               567,608,183.70                   

FEDERAL AGENCY/GSE
FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANKS 9/8/2023 4,135,800.00                   4,181,160.00                       0.30
FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANKS 9/8/2023 4,104,600.00                   4,181,160.00                       0.30
FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANKS 3/8/2024 5,201,750.00                   5,193,500.00                       0.43
FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANKS 3/10/2023 5,053,550.00                   5,214,100.00                       0.22
FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANKS 6/10/2022 4,988,900.00                   5,124,400.00                       0.11
FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANKS 12/9/2022 7,058,660.00                   7,283,220.00                       0.19
FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANKS 6/9/2023 3,977,720.00                   4,134,560.00                       0.38
FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANKS 6/9/2023 4,029,880.00                   4,134,560.00                       0.38
FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANKS 9/9/2022 6,828,560.00                   7,042,012.00                       0.13
FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANKS FUNDING CORP 12/17/2021 6,022,920.00                   6,074,820.00                       0.11
FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANKS FUNDING CORP 11/15/2021 7,034,930.00                   7,077,350.00                       0.10
FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANKS FUNDING CORP 7/17/2023 5,060,200.00                   5,263,850.00                       0.29
FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANKS FUNDING CORP 6/26/2023 6,967,450.00                   7,207,550.00                       0.27
FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANKS FUNDING CORP 2/1/2023 4,996,450.00                   5,132,800.00                       0.17
FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANKS FUNDING CORP 8/14/2023 4,993,550.00                   5,137,350.00                       0.30
FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANKS FUNDING CORP 8/14/2023 7,983,280.00                   7,983,280.00                       0.30
FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANKS FUNDING CORP 2/21/2023 5,000,600.00                   5,103,550.00                       0.19
FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANKS FUNDING CORP 5/6/2022 5,627,843.55                   5,643,058.05                       0.08
FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANKS FUNDING CORP 10/2/2023 4,994,600.00                   4,986,100.00                       0.32
FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION 5/22/2023 6,111,548.70                   6,130,061.30                       0.25
FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION 7/10/2023 3,203,098.50                   3,210,032.10                       0.25
FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION 7/10/2023 5,000,300.00                   5,000,050.00                       0.25
FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION 11/27/2023 1,797,948.00                   1,796,778.00                       0.32
FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION 1/5/2022 6,815,760.00                   7,068,530.00                       0.09
FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION 1/19/2023 4,411,710.00                   4,652,145.00                       0.19
FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION 1/19/2023 2,233,875.00                   2,377,763.00                       0.19
FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION 4/12/2022 6,370,496.00                   6,506,240.00                       0.13
FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION 9/6/2022 3,986,080.00                   4,058,920.00                       0.13
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 1/13/2022 8,248,720.00                   8,097,920.00                       0.09
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 5/5/2023 7,621,797.50                   7,645,130.00                       0.23
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 6/26/2023 7,463,143.80                   7,484,850.30                       0.25
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 8/24/2023 8,001,840.00                   7,999,120.00                       0.26
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 9/8/2023 5,098,317.00                   5,095,614.00                       0.29
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 9/8/2023 3,001,860.00                   2,997,420.00                       0.29
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 10/16/2023 6,376,128.00                   6,375,680.00                       0.29
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 11/6/2023 4,705,761.00                   4,705,572.60                       0.29
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 12/4/2023 5,959,094.65                   5,958,080.60                       0.30
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 10/20/2022 5,098,470.00                   5,100,632.40                       0.10
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 10/20/2022 5,839,084.50                   5,835,723.54                       0.10
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 8/12/2025 4,095,490.00                   4,067,556.70                       0.80
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 10/13/2023 4,097,950.00                   4,095,215.30                       0.35
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 11/24/2023 2,035,000.00                   2,033,768.83                       0.38
FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION 1/5/2022 3,857,469.00                   3,887,972.55                       0.08
FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION 1/5/2022 5,677,685.00                   5,705,725.95                       0.08
FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION 10/27/2023 6,098,475.00                   6,091,880.90                       0.36
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 1/13/2022 5,652,771.25                   5,643,238.00                       0.09
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 1/13/2022 5,663,313.58                   5,643,238.00                       0.09
FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANKS 2/12/2026 1,249,125.00                   1,234,587.50                       0.87
FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANKS 2/12/2026 2,897,970.00                   2,864,243.00                       0.87
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 11/25/2024 680,000.00                      676,280.40                          0.61
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 11/25/2024 1,570,000.00                   1,561,412.10                       0.61
US DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 8/1/2021 210,000.00                      210,441.00                          0.13
US DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 8/1/2021 500,000.00                      501,050.00                          0.13
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 6/8/2022 2,098,992.00                   2,103,234.00                       0.09
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 6/8/2022 4,822,684.00                   4,832,430.50                       0.09
FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION 5/22/2023 2,472,535.20                   2,480,024.80                       0.25
FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION 5/22/2023 5,687,827.95                   5,705,057.05                       0.25
FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION 7/10/2023 2,354,926.00                   2,360,023.60                       0.25
FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION 7/10/2023 5,403,357.75                   5,415,054.15                       0.25

2



Orange County Transportation Authority
Portfolio Listing

As of June 30, 2021

DESCRIPTION MATURITY DATE BOOK VALUE MARKET VALUE YIELD
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 4/20/2023 2,284,275.00                   2,295,358.60                       0.25
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 4/20/2023 5,241,862.50                   5,267,296.70                       0.25
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 5/5/2023 2,169,088.60                   2,175,728.80                       0.23
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 5/5/2023 4,977,908.40 4,993,147.20 0.23
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 6/26/2023 2,238,444.60 2,244,955.10 0.25
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 6/26/2023 5,144,932.80                   5,159,896.80                       0.25
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 7/25/2022 1,506,587.40                   1,510,332.20                       0.10
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 7/25/2022 3,457,169.10                   3,465,762.30                       0.10
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 8/24/2023 2,787,154.20                   2,789,693.10                       0.26
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 8/24/2023 6,403,461.80                   6,409,294.90                       0.26
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 9/8/2023 2,725,497.61                   2,722,656.50                       0.29
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 9/8/2023 2,550,465.66                   2,547,807.00                       0.29
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 9/8/2023 6,997,690.00                   6,993,980.00                       0.29
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 10/16/2023 1,539,237.15                   1,539,129.00                       0.29
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 10/16/2023 1,549,199.85                   1,549,091.00                       0.29
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 10/16/2023 1,991,720.00                   1,992,400.00                       0.29
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 11/6/2023 2,482,763.50                   2,482,664.10                       0.29
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 11/6/2023 5,709,856.50                   5,709,627.90                       0.29
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 12/4/2023 2,097,921.00                   2,097,564.00                       0.30
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 12/4/2023 4,820,223.25                   4,819,403.00                       0.30
FHMS K-727 A1 10/25/2023 354,687.31                      367,253.89                          0.43

SUB-TOTAL 347,561,994.16               350,440,119.30                   

MEDIUM TERM NOTES
AMAZON.COM INC 5/12/2024 3,265,225.80                   3,262,773.30                       0.53
AMERICAN HONDA FINANCE CORP 11/16/2022 2,021,300.00                   2,064,240.00                       0.26
AMERICAN HONDA FINANCE CORP 1/12/2024 1,585,215.00                   1,613,100.00                       0.55
APPLE INC 5/3/2023 1,977,040.00                   2,075,760.00                       0.33
APPLE INC 2/23/2023 2,949,060.00                   3,115,620.00                       0.24
BANK OF AMERICA CORP 1/11/2023 3,034,740.00                   3,131,250.00                       0.43
BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON CORP 1/29/2023 2,944,320.00                   3,118,650.00                       0.30
BERKSHIRE HATHAWAY INC 3/15/2023 2,924,460.00                   3,113,340.00                       0.29
BERKSHIRE HATHAWAY INC 3/15/2023 2,014,300.00                   2,075,560.00                       0.29
CATERPILLAR FINANCIAL SERVICES CORP 5/17/2024 5,193,032.00                   5,182,736.00                       0.57
DEERE & CO 6/8/2022 1,466,700.00                   1,524,735.00                       0.20
JOHN DEERE CAPITAL CORP 1/17/2024 3,512,504.35                   3,511,063.20                       0.49
PACCAR FINANCIAL CORP 9/26/2022 1,498,170.00                   1,530,600.00                       0.35
PACCAR FINANCIAL CORP 2/7/2023 2,274,886.25                   2,330,896.75                       0.36
PACCAR FINANCIAL CORP 2/2/2024 1,618,120.80                   1,611,381.60                       0.56
ROYAL BANK OF CANADA 11/1/2024 4,205,160.00                   4,191,680.00                       0.79
CHARLES SCHWAB CORP 3/18/2024 2,333,832.50                   2,348,216.10                       0.53
CHARLES SCHWAB CORP 3/18/2024 2,006,720.00                   2,011,320.00                       0.53
TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORP 4/6/2023 1,798,542.00                   1,800,486.00                       0.38
TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORP 6/18/2024 3,086,322.90                   3,076,404.00                       0.65
US BANCORP 2/5/2024 2,107,940.00                   2,141,960.00                       0.53
US BANCORP 7/30/2024 2,662,075.00                   2,629,850.00                       0.65
VISA INC 12/14/2022 1,962,480.00                   2,066,440.00                       0.22
WALMART INC 6/26/2023 3,083,010.00                   3,178,200.00                       0.27
WALMART INC 6/26/2023 2,056,460.00                   2,118,800.00                       0.27
ASSOCIATION OF AMERICAN MEDICAL COLLEGES 10/1/2022 2,990,000.00                   3,021,395.00                       1.08
BAYCARE HEALTH SYSTEM INC 11/15/2022 1,456,344.00                   1,480,579.20                       0.55
COMCAST CORP 10/15/2025 4,042,256.85                   4,050,535.20                       0.96
CREDIT SUISSE AG (NEW YORK BRANCH) 2/2/2024 2,655,000.00                   2,644,061.40                       0.66
GEORGIA-PACIFIC LLC 5/15/2024 3,064,049.85                   3,052,402.85                       0.77
HORMEL FOODS CORP 6/3/2024 3,344,397.90                   3,352,292.10                       0.41
HUNTINGTON NATIONAL BANK 8/7/2022 2,024,431.10                   2,014,325.00                       0.29
MASSMUTUAL GLOBAL FUNDING II 6/9/2023 3,982,648.85                   4,025,766.55                       0.32
NATIONAL SECURITIES CLEARING CORP 4/23/2023 3,162,024.90                   3,214,595.55                       0.33
NEW YORK LIFE GLOBAL FUNDING 5/5/2023 2,084,562.15                   2,112,209.25                       0.39
PACIFIC LIFE GLOBAL FUNDING II 9/23/2023 2,022,468.75                   2,027,187.00                       0.45
PROTECTIVE LIFE GLOBAL FUNDING 6/9/2023 3,500,000.00                   3,541,475.00                       0.47
SECURITY BENEFIT GLOBAL FUNDING 5/17/2024 3,128,810.60                   3,135,164.50                       1.19
TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORP 1/11/2024 2,544,847.30                   2,536,652.40                       0.58
VIRGINIA ELECTRIC AND POWER CO 3/15/2023 2,087,580.00                   2,069,240.00                       0.37
ADOBE INC 2/1/2023 334,541.05                      342,410.20                          0.30
ADOBE INC 2/1/2023 768,945.10                      787,032.40                          0.30
AMAZON.COM INC 5/12/2024 619,094.80                      618,629.80                          0.53
AMAZON.COM INC 5/12/2024 1,427,912.20                   1,426,839.70                       0.53
AMERICAN EXPRESS CO 5/20/2022 469,436.00                      479,273.10                          0.29
AMERICAN EXPRESS CO 5/20/2022 1,088,692.00                   1,111,505.70                       0.29
AMERIPRISE FINANCIAL INC 3/22/2022 498,863.00                      510,103.00                          0.27
AMERIPRISE FINANCIAL INC 3/22/2022 1,037,223.20                   1,060,602.40                       0.27
AMERIPRISE FINANCIAL INC 3/22/2022 119,679.60                      122,179.20                          0.27
APPLE INC 5/11/2023 433,816.80                      438,801.90                          0.28
APPLE INC 5/11/2023 1,007,252.80                   1,018,827.40                       0.28
TRUIST FINANCIAL CORP 3/16/2023 584,567.10                      602,216.55                          0.38
TRUIST FINANCIAL CORP 3/16/2023 1,358,993.60                   1,400,024.80                       0.38
BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON CORP 4/28/2023 404,968.45                      411,597.01                          0.31
BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON CORP 4/28/2023 947,355.50                      962,861.90                          0.31
CATERPILLAR FINANCIAL SERVICES CORP 11/29/2022 262,776.80                      268,676.20                          0.19
CATERPILLAR FINANCIAL SERVICES CORP 11/29/2022 596,301.20                      609,688.30                          0.19
CATERPILLAR FINANCIAL SERVICES CORP 9/6/2022 404,437.05                      412,452.00                          0.34
CATERPILLAR FINANCIAL SERVICES CORP 9/6/2022 948,679.50                      967,480.00                          0.34
CATERPILLAR FINANCIAL SERVICES CORP 11/18/2022 439,797.60                      449,671.20                          0.36
CATERPILLAR FINANCIAL SERVICES CORP 11/18/2022 1,029,526.20                   1,052,639.40                       0.36
CATERPILLAR FINANCIAL SERVICES CORP 5/17/2024 624,162.50                      622,925.00                          0.57
CATERPILLAR FINANCIAL SERVICES CORP 5/17/2024 1,448,057.00                   1,445,186.00                       0.57
CHEVRON CORP 5/11/2023 135,000.00                      137,006.10                          0.34
CHEVRON CORP 5/11/2023 320,000.00                      324,755.20                          0.34
CISCO SYSTEMS INC 9/20/2021 568,272.90                      571,311.00                          0.19
CISCO SYSTEMS INC 9/20/2021 1,325,970.10                   1,333,059.00                       0.19
CITIGROUP INC 12/8/2021 303,849.00                      302,844.00                          0.23
CITIGROUP INC 12/8/2021 708,981.00                      706,636.00                          0.23
CITIGROUP GLOBAL MARKETS HOLDINGS INC 6/7/2024 600,000.00                      597,186.00                          0.91
CITIGROUP GLOBAL MARKETS HOLDINGS INC 6/7/2024 1,400,000.00                   1,393,434.00                       0.91
COMERICA INC 7/31/2023 636,006.00                      637,722.00                          0.54
COMERICA INC 7/31/2023 1,484,014.00                   1,488,018.00                       0.54
CONSUMERS ENERGY CO 6/1/2023 169,942.20                      169,694.00                          0.44
CONSUMERS ENERGY CO 6/1/2023 409,860.60                      409,262.00                          0.44
JOHN DEERE CAPITAL CORP 6/13/2022 429,445.30                      434,563.70                          0.16
JOHN DEERE CAPITAL CORP 6/13/2022 1,008,697.10                   1,020,761.90                       0.16
JOHN DEERE CAPITAL CORP 4/6/2023 159,961.60                      162,408.00                          0.34
JOHN DEERE CAPITAL CORP 4/6/2023 359,913.60                      365,418.00                          0.34
DUKE ENERGY CAROLINAS LLC 3/15/2023 753,142.85                      770,367.25                          0.28
DUKE ENERGY CAROLINAS LLC 3/15/2023 995,766.05                      1,018,539.25                       0.28
DUKE ENERGY CAROLINAS LLC 3/15/2023 753,142.85                      770,367.25                          0.28
ERP OPERATING LP 4/15/2023 578,770.40                      572,940.82                          0.41
ERP OPERATING LP 4/15/2023 1,355,016.00                   1,341,367.80                       0.41
ENTERGY LOUISIANA LLC 11/17/2023 449,919.00                      450,382.50                          0.22
ENTERGY LOUISIANA LLC 11/17/2023 759,863.20                      761,147.60                          0.22
ENTERGY LOUISIANA LLC 11/17/2023 290,436.20                      290,734.90                          0.22
FIFTH THIRD BANK NA (OHIO) 1/30/2023 444,626.20                      454,727.70                          0.34
FIFTH THIRD BANK NA (OHIO) 1/30/2023 1,029,134.80                   1,052,515.80                       0.34
HORMEL FOODS CORP 6/3/2024 104,981.10                      105,228.90                          0.41
HORMEL FOODS CORP 6/3/2024 259,953.20                      260,566.80                          0.41
HUNTINGTON NATIONAL BANK 2/3/2023 469,605.20                      480,161.40                          0.36
HUNTINGTON NATIONAL BANK 2/3/2023 1,099,076.00                   1,123,782.00                       0.36
KEYBANK NA 3/7/2023 592,902.60                      598,893.30                          0.36

3



Orange County Transportation Authority
Portfolio Listing

As of June 30, 2021

DESCRIPTION MATURITY DATE BOOK VALUE MARKET VALUE YIELD
KEYBANK NA 3/7/2023 101,937.64                      102,967.62                          0.36
KEYBANK NA 3/7/2023 311,595.00 315,207.00 0.36
KEYBANK NA 3/7/2023 150,524.50 152,350.05 0.36
KEYBANK NA 3/7/2023 821,620.13 826,893.03 0.36
MORGAN STANLEY 5/19/2022 306,967.25                      311,801.50                          0.23
MORGAN STANLEY 5/19/2022 724,644.00                      736,056.00                          0.23
NATIONAL RURAL UTILITIES COOPERATIVE FINANCE CORP 4/25/2022 362,415.60                      365,738.40                          0.23
NATIONAL RURAL UTILITIES COOPERATIVE FINANCE CORP 4/25/2022 845,636.40                      853,389.60                          0.23
NIKE INC 3/27/2025 44,938.80                        47,606.40                            0.79
NIKE INC 3/27/2025 89,877.60                        95,212.80                            0.79
OKLAHOMA GAS AND ELECTRIC CO 5/26/2023 190,000.00                      190,005.70                          0.55
OKLAHOMA GAS AND ELECTRIC CO 5/26/2023 430,000.00                      430,012.90                          0.55
PNC BANK NA 7/22/2022 575,000.00                      575,638.25                          0.41
PNC BANK NA 7/22/2022 1,350,000.00                   1,351,498.50                       0.41
PNC BANK NA 2/24/2023 95,000.00                        95,874.95                            0.32
PNC BANK NA 2/24/2023 220,000.00                      222,026.20                          0.32
PACCAR FINANCIAL CORP 9/26/2022 214,737.70                      219,386.00                          0.35
PACCAR FINANCIAL CORP 9/26/2022 499,390.00                      510,200.00                          0.35
PACCAR FINANCIAL CORP 2/7/2023 599,970.00                      614,742.00                          0.36
PACCAR FINANCIAL CORP 2/7/2023 1,399,930.00                   1,434,398.00                       0.36
PRECISION CASTPARTS CORP 1/15/2023 594,543.00                      606,360.70                          0.35
PRECISION CASTPARTS CORP 1/15/2023 1,370,472.00                   1,397,712.80                       0.35
CHARLES SCHWAB CORP 3/18/2024 524,737.50                      527,971.50                          0.53
CHARLES SCHWAB CORP 3/18/2024 1,229,385.00                   1,236,961.80                       0.53
UNITEDHEALTH GROUP INC 5/15/2024 514,464.40                      514,258.40                          0.60
UNITEDHEALTH GROUP INC 5/15/2024 1,188,762.40                   1,188,286.40                       0.60
WALMART INC 12/15/2022 403,291.20                      401,376.30                          0.22
WALMART INC 12/15/2022 920,331.20                      915,961.30                          0.22
WELLS FARGO BANK NA 10/22/2021 399,956.00                      403,016.00                          0.27
WELLS FARGO BANK NA 10/22/2021 939,896.49                      947,087.60                          0.27
ADOBE INC 2/1/2023 134,815.05                      137,986.20                          0.30
ADOBE INC 2/1/2023 314,568.45                      321,967.80                          0.30
AMAZON.COM INC 6/3/2023 614,139.00                      615,559.65                          0.35
AMAZON.COM INC 6/3/2023 1,408,026.00                   1,411,283.10                       0.35
AMAZON.COM INC 5/12/2024 888,700.60                      888,033.10                          0.53
AMAZON.COM INC 5/12/2024 2,047,007.00                   2,045,469.50                       0.53
AMERICAN HONDA FINANCE CORP 6/27/2022 1,148,942.00                   1,172,034.00                       0.26
AMERICAN HONDA FINANCE CORP 6/27/2022 2,647,562.00                   2,700,774.00                       0.26
APPLE INC 9/11/2022 179,969.40                      183,166.20                          0.23
APPLE INC 9/11/2022 409,930.30                      417,211.90                          0.23
APPLE INC 5/11/2023 448,776.00                      453,933.00                          0.28
APPLE INC 5/11/2023 1,027,198.40                   1,039,002.20                       0.28
ASTRAZENECA FINANCE LLC 5/28/2024 584,947.35                      583,865.10                          0.77
ASTRAZENECA FINANCE LLC 5/28/2024 1,339,879.40                   1,337,400.40                       0.77
BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON CORP 8/23/2022 524,832.00                      535,069.50                          0.27
BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON CORP 8/23/2022 1,199,616.00                   1,223,016.00                       0.27
BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON CORP 1/27/2023 334,765.50                      342,812.20                          0.30
BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON CORP 1/27/2023 764,464.50                      782,839.80                          0.30
BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON CORP 4/24/2025 389,006.00                      390,206.80                          0.87
BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON CORP 4/24/2025 890,619.00                      893,368.20                          0.87
BRISTOL-MYERS SQUIBB CO 11/13/2023 575,000.00                      575,690.00                          0.21
BRISTOL-MYERS SQUIBB CO 11/13/2023 1,325,000.00                   1,326,590.00                       0.21
BURLINGTON NORTHERN SANTA FE LLC 4/1/2025 226,092.30                      226,104.90                          0.78
BURLINGTON NORTHERN SANTA FE LLC 4/1/2025 527,548.70                      527,578.10                          0.78
CATERPILLAR FINANCIAL SERVICES CORP 9/6/2022 319,555.20                      325,888.00                          0.34
CATERPILLAR FINANCIAL SERVICES CORP 9/6/2022 728,985.30                      743,432.00                          0.34
CATERPILLAR FINANCIAL SERVICES CORP 11/18/2022 149,931.00                      153,297.00                          0.36
CATERPILLAR FINANCIAL SERVICES CORP 11/18/2022 349,839.00                      357,693.00                          0.36
CATERPILLAR FINANCIAL SERVICES CORP 7/7/2023 339,809.60                      341,927.80                          0.37
CATERPILLAR FINANCIAL SERVICES CORP 7/7/2023 784,560.40                      789,450.95                          0.37
CHEVRON CORP 5/11/2023 265,000.00                      268,937.90                          0.34
CHEVRON CORP 5/11/2023 610,000.00                      619,064.60                          0.34
JOHN DEERE CAPITAL CORP 7/5/2023 119,901.60                      120,837.60                          0.35
JOHN DEERE CAPITAL CORP 7/5/2023 279,770.40                      281,954.40                          0.35
JOHN DEERE CAPITAL CORP 1/17/2024 239,829.60                      239,731.20                          0.49
JOHN DEERE CAPITAL CORP 1/17/2024 554,605.95                      554,378.40                          0.49
GOLDMAN SACHS GROUP INC 3/3/2024 132,256.80                      130,335.60                          0.74
GOLDMAN SACHS GROUP INC 3/3/2024 308,599.20                      304,116.40                          0.74
GOLDMAN SACHS GROUP INC 1/27/2023 300,000.00                      300,165.00                          0.39
GOLDMAN SACHS GROUP INC 1/27/2023 700,000.00                      700,385.00                          0.39
HONEYWELL INTERNATIONAL INC 8/8/2022 234,762.65                      239,481.45                          0.28
HONEYWELL INTERNATIONAL INC 8/8/2022 544,449.55                      555,393.15                          0.28
HONEYWELL INTERNATIONAL INC 8/19/2022 570,000.00                      570,182.40                          0.25
HONEYWELL INTERNATIONAL INC 8/19/2022 1,305,000.00                   1,305,417.60                       0.25
INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS MACHINES CORP 2/12/2024 307,804.00                      301,663.60                          0.64
INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS MACHINES CORP 2/12/2024 720,041.50                      705,677.35                          0.64
JPMORGAN CHASE & CO 4/1/2023 305,000.00                      311,621.55                          0.32
JPMORGAN CHASE & CO 4/1/2023 695,000.00                      710,088.45                          0.32
MORGAN STANLEY 5/19/2022 149,005.50                      153,345.00                          0.23
MORGAN STANLEY 5/19/2022 347,679.50                      357,805.00                          0.23
MORGAN STANLEY 2/25/2023 324,300.40                      321,412.05                          0.48
MORGAN STANLEY 2/25/2023 738,979.60                      732,397.95                          0.48
NATIONAL RURAL UTILITIES COOPERATIVE FINANCE CORP 1/21/2022 334,705.20                      337,847.50                          0.23
NATIONAL RURAL UTILITIES COOPERATIVE FINANCE CORP 1/21/2022 764,326.80                      771,502.50                          0.23
NATIONAL RURAL UTILITIES COOPERATIVE FINANCE CORP 2/8/2024 244,830.95                      244,061.65                          0.50
NATIONAL RURAL UTILITIES COOPERATIVE FINANCE CORP 2/8/2024 564,610.15                      562,836.05                          0.50
NORTHERN TRUST CORP 8/2/2022 308,702.70                      312,072.95                          0.24
NORTHERN TRUST CORP 8/2/2022 703,437.30                      711,117.05                          0.24
PNC BANK NA 2/24/2023 240,000.00                      242,210.40                          0.32
PNC BANK NA 2/24/2023 560,000.00                      565,157.60                          0.32
PACCAR FINANCIAL CORP 8/11/2023 134,823.15                      134,806.95                          0.42
PACCAR FINANCIAL CORP 8/11/2023 314,587.35                      314,549.55                          0.42
PEPSICO INC 5/1/2023 279,445.60                      282,391.20                          0.28
PEPSICO INC 5/1/2023 643,722.90                      650,508.30                          0.28
CHARLES SCHWAB CORP 3/18/2024 389,805.00                      392,207.40                          0.53
CHARLES SCHWAB CORP 3/18/2024 889,555.00                      895,037.40                          0.53
TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORP 1/11/2022 575,119.35                      592,271.55                          0.25
TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORP 1/11/2022 1,317,367.40                   1,356,656.20                       0.25
TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORP 1/11/2024 649,961.00                      647,868.00                          0.58
TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORP 1/11/2024 1,499,910.00                   1,495,080.00                       0.58
TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORP 4/6/2023 174,858.25                      175,047.25                          0.38
TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORP 4/6/2023 409,667.90                      410,110.70                          0.38
UNITEDHEALTH GROUP INC 5/15/2024 419,563.20                      419,395.20                          0.60
UNITEDHEALTH GROUP INC 5/15/2024 963,996.40                      963,610.40                          0.60

SUB-TOTAL 204,661,458.06               207,023,753.83                   

MORTGAGE AND ASSET-BACK SECURITIES
HAROT 2020-1 A3 4/22/2024 2,939,423.76                   2,981,042.40                       0.47
HAROT 2019-3 A3 8/15/2023 2,585,910.35                   2,609,748.24                       0.50
HART 2021-A A3 9/15/2025 1,759,814.85                   1,759,489.60                       0.39
JDOT 2019-B A3 12/15/2023 1,000,737.14                   1,014,022.05                       0.31
JDOT 2020 A3 8/15/2024 2,124,870.16                   2,141,447.50                       0.50
MBALT 2021-B A3 11/15/2024 1,989,849.76                   1,989,064.70                       0.00
MBALT 2020-A A3 12/15/2022 1,409,814.16                   1,420,335.30                       0.01
NAROT 2019-C A3 7/15/2024 2,954,843.98                   2,991,819.30                       0.67
TAOT 2020-D A3 1/15/2025 1,689,685.15                   1,691,656.20                       0.29
TAOT 2021-A A3 5/15/2025 3,699,313.28                   3,697,077.00                       0.30
CNH 2020-A A2 7/17/2023 268,064.66                      268,534.95                          0.44

4



Orange County Transportation Authority
Portfolio Listing

As of June 30, 2021

DESCRIPTION MATURITY DATE BOOK VALUE MARKET VALUE YIELD
CARMX 2020-3 B 3/16/2026 737,328.52                      736,759.80                          0.83
CARMX 2020-1 A3 12/16/2024 1,024,798.90                   1,043,726.75                       0.63
CARMX 2020-1 A4 6/16/2025 4,262,480.39                   4,251,907.57                       0.70
FH G12952 12/1/2022 64,359.35 63,481.31 1.20
FNA 2012-M9 A2 4/25/2022 175,601.90 176,342.22 0.33
FNA 2012-M9 A2 4/25/2022 36,183.23                        36,337.19                            0.33
FNA 2012-M17 A2 11/25/2022 345,185.78                      364,588.79                          0.27
FHR 3806 L 2/15/2026 296,469.76                      295,657.42                          0.32
FHMS K-015 A2 7/25/2021 167,708.62                      167,382.69                          0.34
FHMS K-015 A2 7/25/2021 45,868.88                        45,064.57                            0.34
FHMS 2011-K016 A2 10/25/2021 1,140,471.82                   1,147,967.16                       0.37
FHMS 2011-K016 A2 10/25/2021 329,199.99                      325,132.31                          0.37
FHMS K-020 A2 5/25/2022 485,946.01                      505,313.51                          0.22
FHMS K-020 A2 5/25/2022 97,181.42                        101,062.70                          0.22
FHMS K-020 A2 5/25/2022 193,678.03                      202,125.40                          0.22
FHMS K-021 A2 6/25/2022 979,257.84                      1,002,506.58                       0.46
FHMS K-023 A1 4/25/2022 25,127.16                        25,979.68                            0.24
FHMS K-023 A1 4/25/2022 122,880.53                      125,351.94                          0.24
FHMS K-025 A1 4/25/2022 60,434.04                        61,178.79                            0.22
FHMS K-025 A2 10/25/2022 500,603.91                      503,421.10                          0.28
FHMS K-025 A2 10/25/2022 3,611,499.61                   3,631,823.65                       0.28
FHMS K-S01 A2 1/25/2023 200,856.07                      210,290.94                          0.38
FHMS K-027 A1 9/25/2022 27,413.43                        28,355.64                            0.21
FHMS K-027 A2 1/25/2023 2,101,558.59                   2,164,113.00                       0.35
FHMS K-027 A2 1/25/2023 1,875,366.21                   1,932,243.75                       0.35
FHR 4285 BA 12/15/2023 468,669.18                      467,628.88                          0.56
FHMS K-041 A1 8/25/2024 1,836,372.60                   1,820,389.05                       0.41
FHMS K-046 A1 1/25/2025 614,772.50                      612,959.30                          0.30
FHMS K-PLB A 5/25/2025 2,156,328.13                   2,144,720.00                       0.84
FHMS K-047 A1 12/25/2024 686,735.59                      700,063.23                          0.36
FHMS K-050 A1 1/25/2025 2,670,192.01                   2,647,065.41                       0.37
FHMS K-051 A2 9/25/2025 4,348,857.42                   4,324,144.00                       0.92
FHMS K-051 A2 9/25/2025 330,046.88                      328,416.00                          0.92
FHMS K-051 A2 9/25/2025 1,337,686.53                   1,330,084.80                       0.92
FHMS K-052 A2 11/25/2025 985,992.19                      980,730.00                          0.94
FN AM0359 8/1/2022 2,647,694.55                   2,657,226.50                       0.86
FN AM8892 7/1/2025 2,451,471.14                   2,437,220.21                       1.31
FN AM8730 7/1/2025 1,807,031.98                   1,800,454.81                       0.91
FN AN0429 1/1/2025 984,938.19                      973,196.37                          0.78
FNR 0338C MP 5/25/2023 150,533.39                      149,703.68                          0.73
FNR 0338C MP 5/25/2023 165,695.87                      164,387.01                          0.73
FNR 0333J LB 5/25/2023 93,941.07                        93,397.69                            1.15
FNR 0364L HQ 7/25/2023 103,234.42                      103,286.78                          0.72
FHR 2666 OD 8/15/2023 95,351.59                        95,176.23                            1.10
FHR 2666 OD 8/15/2023 99,206.75                        98,860.47                            1.10
FHR 2756 KA 2/15/2024 391,666.93                      387,052.68                          1.06
FNR 2008-45 DB 6/25/2023 118,103.27                      117,774.92                          0.53
FN BM6007 5/1/2023 432,872.81                      424,742.55                          0.91
FORDF 2017-3 A 9/15/2022 776,132.81                      770,085.00                          0.26
FORDF 2019-2 B 4/15/2024 1,831,369.92                   1,827,237.60                       0.77
FORDF 2019-3 A1 9/15/2024 4,105,937.50                   4,094,600.00                       0.27
FORDF 2020-1 A1 9/15/2025 1,007,617.19                   1,004,900.00                       0.48
MMAF 20B A3 8/14/2025 3,469,950.38                   3,469,514.20                       0.50
MMAF 20A A2 4/9/2024 1,455,109.57                   1,460,658.42                       0.17
PFSFC 2019-A A2 4/15/2024 517,893.52                      513,145.51                          0.31
PFSFC 20B A 6/17/2024 1,564,789.51                   1,578,052.10                       0.34
PFSFC 20E A 10/15/2025 302,156.25                      302,922.00                          0.57
PFSFC 20E A 10/15/2025 1,007,421.87                   1,009,740.00                       0.57
SCART 20A A 10/15/2024 1,420,345.68                   1,429,453.48                       0.65
BMWLT 2021-1 A4 7/25/2024 409,983.72                      408,216.50                          0.60
BMWLT 2021-1 A4 7/25/2024 939,962.69                      935,911.00                          0.60
COPAR 2020-1 A3 11/15/2024 639,863.94                      648,633.60                          0.57
COPAR 2020-1 A3 11/15/2024 1,489,683.22                   1,510,100.10                       0.57
CARMX 2021-2 A3 2/17/2026 1,009,782.35                   1,010,909.00                       0.49
CARMX 2021-2 A3 2/17/2026 2,339,495.73                   2,342,106.00                       0.49
DRIVE 2020-2 A3 5/15/2024 189,992.74                      190,410.40                          0.40
DRIVE 2020-2 A3 5/15/2024 439,983.19                      440,950.40                          0.40
DRIVE 2021-1 A3 11/15/2024 389,977.07                      390,815.10                          0.29
DRIVE 2021-1 A3 11/15/2024 909,946.49                      911,901.90                          0.29
EART 2021-2 A3 10/15/2024 509,955.99                      509,831.70                          0.33
EART 2021-2 A3 10/15/2024 1,189,897.30                   1,189,607.30                       0.33
FNA 2011-M5 A2 7/25/2021 19,483.44                        19,590.33                            0.35
FNA 2011-M5 A2 7/25/2021 52,389.11                        52,635.77                            0.35
FHMS K-SMC A2 1/25/2023 1,175,160.15                   1,221,040.40                       0.28
FHMS K-SMC A2 1/25/2023 308,728.52                      320,781.80                          0.28
FHMS K-SMC A2 1/25/2023 2,030,198.44                   2,110,951.20                       0.28
FHMS K-SMC A2 1/25/2023 410,500.00                      413,912.00                          0.28
FHMS K-717 A2 9/25/2021 421,804.28                      418,164.78                          -0.30
FHMS K-717 A2 9/25/2021 834,857.02                      827,653.52                          -0.30
FHMS K-724 A1 3/25/2023 269,519.10                      275,290.08                          0.39
FHMS K-724 A1 3/25/2023 231,550.97                      236,509.08                          0.39
FHMS K-J33 A1 12/25/2025 436,961.54                      434,191.99                          0.64
FHMS K-J33 A1 12/25/2025 999,855.58                      993,518.29                          0.64
FHMS K-727 A2 7/25/2024 1,357,699.22                   1,329,829.20                       0.94
FHMS K-727 A2 7/25/2024 3,135,638.67                   3,071,272.20                       0.94
FHMS K-J23 A2 12/25/2022 328,044.15                      328,372.74                          1.03
FHMS K-J23 A2 12/25/2022 698,703.73                      699,403.60                          1.03
FHMS K-J30 A1 1/25/2025 477,308.90                      475,605.94                          0.65
FHMS K-J30 A1 1/25/2025 1,096,594.66                   1,092,682.18                       0.65
FHLMC 5/25/2022 6,677.08                          6,777.40                              0.02
GMCAR 212 A3 4/16/2026 199,982.42                      200,308.00                          0.45
GMCAR 212 A3 4/16/2026 449,960.45                      450,693.00                          0.45
HDMOT 2019-A A3 2/15/2024 761,828.68                      768,584.64                          0.80
HDMOT 2019-A A3 2/15/2024 1,777,600.24                   1,793,364.16                       0.80
HAROT 2019-3 A3 8/15/2023 514,376.38                      519,118.10                          0.50
HAROT 2019-3 A3 8/15/2023 1,178,389.53                   1,189,252.36                       0.50
JDOT 2019 A3 7/17/2023 278,212.65                      281,460.60                          0.47
JDOT 2019 A3 7/17/2023 643,517.96                      651,030.60                          0.47
JDOT 2020 A3 8/15/2024 839,948.68                      846,501.60                          0.50
JDOT 2020 A3 8/15/2024 1,959,880.24                   1,975,170.40                       0.50
MBALT 2020-A A3 12/15/2022 309,959.14                      312,272.30                          0.01
MBALT 2020-A A3 12/15/2022 719,905.11                      725,277.60                          0.01
SDART 2020-3 7/15/2024 739,929.26                      740,747.40                          0.37
SDART 2020-3 7/15/2024 1,729,834.61                   1,731,747.30                       0.37
SDART 2021-1 A3 9/16/2024 889,962.44                      890,801.00                          0.25
SDART 2021-1 A3 9/16/2024 2,059,913.07                   2,061,854.00                       0.25
TAOT 2019-C A3 9/15/2023 472,632.23                      477,192.32                          0.47
TAOT 2019-C A3 9/15/2023 1,099,944.11                   1,110,556.68                       0.47
VWALT 2019-A A3 11/21/2022 257,078.94                      258,682.06                          0.11
VWALT 2019-A A3 11/21/2022 583,371.44                      587,009.29                          0.11
ALLYA 2019-1 A3 9/15/2023 231,439.93                      233,974.69                          1.07
ALLYA 2019-1 A3 9/15/2023 450,698.83                      455,634.94                          1.07
BMWLT 2021-1 A3 1/25/2024 234,992.55                      235,213.85                          0.22
BMWLT 2021-1 A3 1/25/2024 534,983.04                      535,486.85                          0.22
COPAR 2019-1 A3 11/15/2023 192,839.01                      195,192.62                          0.82
COPAR 2019-1 A3 11/15/2023 385,678.02                      390,385.25                          0.82
CARMX 2021-2 A3 2/17/2026 399,913.80                      400,360.00                          0.49
CARMX 2021-2 A3 2/17/2026 914,802.82                      915,823.50                          0.49

5



Orange County Transportation Authority
Portfolio Listing

As of June 30, 2021

DESCRIPTION MATURITY DATE BOOK VALUE MARKET VALUE YIELD
CARMX 2020-4 A3 8/15/2025 144,968.08 145,355.25 0.39
CARMX 2020-4 A3 8/15/2025 329,927.37 330,808.50 0.39
CARMX 2021-1 A3 12/15/2025 194,961.47                      194,752.35                          0.39
CARMX 2021-1 A3 12/15/2025 454,910.09                      454,422.15                          0.39
DCENT 2019-3 A 10/15/2024 304,934.49                      311,374.50                          0.28
DCENT 2019-3 A 10/15/2024 694,850.71                      709,525.50                          0.28
FNA 2012-M5 A2 2/25/2022 113,871.85                      115,094.96                          1.13
FNA 2012-M5 A2 2/25/2022 265,700.99                      268,554.91                          1.13
FNA 2013-M1 A2 8/25/2022 223,361.42                      225,013.79                          0.11
FNA 2013-M1 A2 8/25/2022 521,176.64                      525,032.18                          0.11
FNA 2013-M7 A2 12/25/2022 187,689.37                      189,449.17                          0.00
FNA 2013-M7 A2 12/25/2022 457,492.83                      461,782.35                          0.00
FHMS K-018 A2 1/25/2022 950,977.90                      964,321.13                          0.34
FHMS K-018 A2 1/25/2022 2,183,385.76                   2,214,020.97                       0.34
FHMS K-019 A2 3/25/2022 697,087.17                      713,979.73                          0.22
FHMS K-019 A2 3/25/2022 1,568,533.80                   1,606,544.20                       0.22
FHMS K-022 A2 7/25/2022 365,034.11                      370,496.19                          0.28
FHMS K-022 A2 7/25/2022 831,909.81                      844,357.83                          0.28
FHMS K-023 A1 4/25/2022 252,331.91                      259,796.76                          0.24
FHMS K-023 A2 8/25/2022 537,825.78                      539,587.70                          0.48
FHMS K-023 A2 8/25/2022 1,238,014.06                   1,242,069.80                       0.48
FHMS K-026 A2 11/25/2022 1,201,756.25                   1,210,892.40                       0.35
FHMS K-026 A2 11/25/2022 2,260,931.25                   2,278,119.60                       0.35
FHMS K-026 A2 11/25/2022 510,800.78                      513,090.00                          0.35
FHMS K-029 A1 10/25/2022 162,251.85                      163,979.70                          0.16
FHMS K-029 A1 10/25/2022 296,418.02                      299,950.45                          0.16
FHMS K-034 A1 2/25/2023 201,424.52                      206,074.47                          0.27
FHMS K-034 A1 2/25/2023 440,344.42                      450,509.91                          0.27
FHMS K-035 A1 3/25/2023 220,833.65                      225,731.49                          0.20
FHMS K-035 A1 3/25/2023 262,320.48                      268,138.45                          0.20
FHMS K-717 A2 9/25/2021 208,880.19                      209,082.39                          -0.30
FHMS K-717 A2 9/25/2021 394,568.79                      394,950.73                          -0.30
FHMS K-720 A2 6/25/2022 968,370.70                      985,248.40                          0.39
FHMS K-720 A2 6/25/2022 1,227,933.99                   1,249,335.60                       0.39
FHMS K-720 A2 6/25/2022 1,005,312.50                   1,015,720.00                       0.39
FHMS K-P05 A 7/25/2023 135,049.37                      137,796.69                          1.01
FHMS K-J27 A1 7/25/2024 875,742.64                      900,276.29                          0.44
FITAT 2019-1 A3 12/15/2023 364,520.75                      368,534.93                          1.02
FORDO 2021-A A3 8/15/2025 259,978.08                      259,794.60                          0.34
FORDO 2021-A A3 8/15/2025 599,949.42                      599,526.00                          0.34
GMCAR 2019-1 A3 11/16/2023 966,620.02                      977,100.02                          1.07
GMCAR 2020-3 A3 4/16/2025 269,938.22                      270,677.70                          0.31
GMCAR 2020-3 A3 4/16/2025 629,855.86                      631,581.30                          0.31
GMCAR 2020-4 A3 8/18/2025 129,972.22                      130,046.80                          0.36
GMCAR 2020-4 A3 8/18/2025 294,936.96                      295,106.20                          0.36
GMALT 2021-1 A3 2/20/2024 329,966.21                      330,112.20                          0.23
GMALT 2021-1 A3 2/20/2024 754,922.69                      755,256.70                          0.23
GMALT 2019-3 A3 6/20/2022 267,459.77                      268,141.95                          0.87
HDMOT 2020-A A3 10/15/2024 264,942.20                      267,681.80                          0.74
HDMOT 2020-A A3 10/15/2024 609,866.96                      616,173.20                          0.74
HAROT 2018-4 A3 1/15/2023 384,992.15                      388,973.37                          0.61
HAROT 2018-3 A3 8/22/2022 269,769.25                      271,206.56                          0.73
HALST 2021-A A3 1/16/2024 149,981.28                      150,060.00                          0.30
HALST 2021-A A3 1/16/2024 344,956.94                      345,138.00                          0.30
HART 2019-A A3 6/15/2023 245,927.84                      248,488.68                          0.62
HART 2021-A A3 9/15/2025 264,972.12                      264,923.15                          0.39
HART 2021-A A3 9/15/2025 604,936.36                      604,824.55                          0.39
KCOT 211 A3 8/15/2025 274,943.73                      274,672.75                          0.67
KCOT 211 A3 8/15/2025 639,869.06                      639,238.40                          0.67
MBALT 2020-B A3 11/15/2023 79,995.94                        80,145.60                            0.24
MBALT 2020-B A3 11/15/2023 179,990.88                      180,327.60                          0.24
MBART 2020-1 A3 2/18/2025 189,985.16                      190,769.50                          0.28
MBART 2020-1 A3 2/18/2025 434,966.03                      436,761.75                          0.28
MBART 2018-1 A3 1/15/2023 307,109.81                      308,841.49                          0.89
NALT 2019-B A3 7/15/2022 207,101.68                      207,784.49                          0.29
NAROT 2018-C A3 6/15/2023 141,261.38                      142,844.04                          1.14
NAROT 2018-C A3 6/15/2023 282,522.76                      285,688.07                          1.14
NAROT 2020-B A3 7/15/2024 349,990.41                      351,134.00                          0.29
NAROT 2020-B A3 7/15/2024 799,978.08                      802,592.00                          0.29
NAROT 2018-B A3 3/15/2023 500,106.93                      505,614.49                          0.37
NAROT 2019-C A3 7/15/2024 269,985.74                      273,364.20                          0.67
NAROT 2019-C A3 7/15/2024 629,966.74                      637,849.80                          0.67
NAROT 2019-A A3 10/16/2023 460,913.58                      467,174.43                          0.85
NAROT 2019-A A3 10/16/2023 936,230.72                      948,948.06                          0.85
NALT 2019-A A3 3/15/2022 2,148.50                          2,150.89                              0.26
TAOT 2018-D A3 3/15/2023 172,264.72                      174,068.09                          0.70
TAOT 2018-D A3 3/15/2023 258,397.08                      261,102.13                          0.70
TAOT 2018-B A3 9/15/2022 230,485.80                      231,406.58                          0.62
TAOT 2019-C A3 9/15/2023 300,765.97                      303,667.84                          0.47
TAOT 2019-C A3 9/15/2023 644,498.50                      650,716.80                          0.47
VZOT 2020-B A 2/20/2025 239,949.60                      240,664.80                          0.27
VZOT 2020-B A 2/20/2025 559,882.40                      561,551.20                          0.27
VZOT 2019-C A1A 4/22/2024 429,966.85                      436,084.50                          0.17
VZOT 2019-C A1A 4/22/2024 994,923.28                      1,009,079.25                       0.17
VZOT 2020-A A1A 7/22/2024 299,964.87                      305,175.00                          0.19
VZOT 2020-A A1A 7/22/2024 699,918.03                      712,075.00                          0.19
VWALT 2019-A A3 11/21/2022 271,910.42                      273,606.02                          0.11
VWALT 2019-A A3 11/21/2022 617,978.22                      621,831.87                          0.11
VALET 2018-2 A3 4/20/2023 260,476.89                      263,058.85                          0.62
VALET 2018-2 A3 4/20/2023 569,793.20                      575,441.22                          0.62
WOART 2020-B A3 5/15/2025 299,976.48                      301,305.00                          0.36
WOART 2020-B A3 5/15/2025 699,945.12                      703,045.00                          0.36

SUB-TOTAL 174,466,195.92 175,380,976.09

Municipal Debt
NEW YORK ST 2/15/2024 3,000,000.00                   3,116,550.00                       0.52
BAY AREA TOLL AUTH CALIF TOLL BRDG REV 4/1/2022 2,865,000.00                   2,902,588.80                       0.38
BAY AREA TOLL AUTH CALIF TOLL BRDG REV 4/1/2022 1,105,500.00                   1,114,432.00                       0.38
CALIFORNIA ST 4/1/2024 3,239,373.40                   3,288,856.80                       0.58
CALIFORNIA ST DEPT WTR RES CENT VY PROJ REV 12/1/2024 2,120,000.00                   2,115,802.40                       0.62
CHAFFEY CMNTY COLLEGE DIST CALIF 6/1/2022 715,000.00                      723,358.35                          0.33
CONTRA COSTA CALIF CMNTY COLLEGE DIST 8/1/2022 1,000,000.00                   1,016,150.00                       0.16
COOPERATIEVE RABOBANK UA (NEW YORK BRANCH) 1/12/2024 4,332,008.85                   4,317,009.75                       0.54
EL CAJON CALIF 4/1/2023 610,000.00                      609,542.50                          0.69
EL CAJON CALIF 4/1/2024 540,000.00                      537,154.20                          1.12
EL DORADO CALIF IRR DIST REV 3/1/2023 720,000.00                      724,600.80                          0.49
EL DORADO CALIF IRR DIST REV 3/1/2024 720,000.00                      726,192.00                          0.75
HAWAII ST ARPTS SYS CUSTOMER FAC CHARGE REV 7/1/2022 715,000.00                      723,515.65                          0.63
HAWAII ST ARPTS SYS CUSTOMER FAC CHARGE REV 7/1/2024 715,000.00                      733,504.20                          1.13
LOS ANGELES CALIF MUN IMPT CORP LEASE REV 11/1/2022 1,620,000.00                   1,615,545.00                       0.53
LOS ANGELES CALIF MUN IMPT CORP LEASE REV 11/1/2022 900,000.00                      899,856.00                          0.53
LOS ANGELES CALIF MUN IMPT CORP LEASE REV 11/1/2023 720,000.00                      718,509.60                          0.74
LOS ANGELES CNTY CALIF PUB WKS FING AUTH LEASE REV 12/1/2021 1,537,050.00                   1,517,850.00                       0.34
MASSACHUSETTS ST WTR RES AUTH IAM COML PAPER NTS 3 8/1/2023 2,365,000.00                   2,434,956.70                       0.35
MISSISSIPPI ST 11/1/2023 4,540,000.00                   4,541,316.60                       0.41
NEW YORK STATE DORMITORY AUTHORITY 3/15/2025 2,690,000.00                   2,687,713.50                       0.91
OHIO ST SPL OBLIG 10/1/2023 1,180,000.00                   1,185,097.60                       0.37
OHLONE CALIF CMNTY COLLEGE DIST 8/1/2022 800,000.00                      812,848.00                          0.21
PASADENA CALIF PUB FING AUTH LEASE REV 12/1/2021 400,000.00                      404,648.00                          0.46

6



Orange County Transportation Authority
Portfolio Listing

As of June 30, 2021

DESCRIPTION MATURITY DATE BOOK VALUE MARKET VALUE YIELD
PENNSYLVANIA ST TPK COMMN TPK REV 12/1/2021 876,767.50 882,315.00 0.28
RANCHO SANTIAGO CALIF CMNTY COLLEGE DIST 9/1/2023 865,000.00 864,671.30 0.43
RHODE IS ST TPK & BRDG AUTH TOLL REV 12/1/2021 480,000.00 483,297.60 0.48
RHODE IS ST TPK & BRDG AUTH TOLL REV 12/1/2022 400,000.00                      408,716.00                          0.62
RIVERSIDE CNTY CALIF PENSION OBLIG 2/15/2022 2,420,000.00                   2,447,951.00                       0.41
SAN DIEGO CALIF CMNTY COLLEGE DIST 8/1/2022 1,500,000.00                   1,528,650.00                       0.18
SAN DIEGO CNTY CALIF WTR AUTH WTR REV 5/1/2024 1,440,000.00                   1,440,907.20                       0.57
SAN FRANCISCO CALIF CITY & CNTY ARPTS COMMN INTL A 5/1/2022 2,138,837.50                   2,178,209.35                       0.49
SAN FRANCISCO CALIF CITY & CNTY ARPTS COMMN INTL A 5/1/2023 1,635,140.00                   1,697,103.20                       0.47
SAN JOSE EVERGREEN CALIF CMNTY COLLEGE DIST 9/1/2021 290,000.00                      290,211.70                          0.17
SAN JOSE EVERGREEN CALIF CMNTY COLLEGE DIST 9/1/2022 430,000.00                      432,412.30                          0.22
SAN JOSE EVERGREEN CALIF CMNTY COLLEGE DIST 9/1/2023 430,000.00                      430,726.70                          0.42
UPPER SANTA CLARA VY JT PWRS AUTH CALIF REV 8/1/2023 2,590,000.00                   2,607,482.50                       0.36
UPPER SANTA CLARA VY JT PWRS AUTH CALIF REV 8/1/2024 2,625,000.00                   2,643,480.00                       0.60
UTAH HSG CORP SINGLE FAMILY MTG REV 1/1/2022 1,300,000.00                   1,309,386.00                       0.66
UTAH HSG CORP SINGLE FAMILY MTG REV 7/1/2022 545,000.00                      552,515.55                          0.77
VENTURA CNTY CALIF PUB FING AUTH LEASE REV 11/1/2022 560,000.00                      562,973.60                          0.45
VENTURA CNTY CALIF PUB FING AUTH LEASE REV 11/1/2023 720,000.00                      726,120.00                          0.68
VENTURA CNTY CALIF PUB FING AUTH LEASE REV 11/1/2023 722,793.60                      726,120.00                          0.68
VENTURA CNTY CALIF PUB FING AUTH LEASE REV 11/1/2023 728,517.60                      726,120.00                          0.68
ALAMEDA CNTY CALIF JT PWRS AUTH LEASE REV 6/1/2022 387,657.00                      389,572.20                          0.25
ALAMEDA CNTY CALIF JT PWRS AUTH LEASE REV 6/1/2022 887,530.50                      891,915.30                          0.25
BAY AREA TOLL AUTH CALIF TOLL BRDG REV 4/1/2023 1,110,000.00                   1,144,398.90                       0.41
BAY AREA TOLL AUTH CALIF TOLL BRDG REV 4/1/2023 2,590,000.00                   2,670,264.10                       0.41
BAY AREA TOLL AUTH CALIF TOLL BRDG REV 4/1/2022 460,345.50                      455,904.00                          0.38
BAY AREA TOLL AUTH CALIF TOLL BRDG REV 4/1/2022 1,074,139.50                   1,063,776.00                       0.38
BAY AREA TOLL AUTH CALIF TOLL BRDG REV 4/1/2023 240,000.00                      246,964.80                          0.57
BAY AREA TOLL AUTH CALIF TOLL BRDG REV 4/1/2023 550,000.00                      565,961.00                          0.57
CALIFORNIA EARTHQUAKE AUTH REV 7/1/2023 105,000.00                      107,025.45                          0.51
CALIFORNIA EARTHQUAKE AUTH REV 7/1/2023 260,000.00                      265,015.40                          0.51
CALIFORNIA ST 3/1/2022 267,579.20                      261,565.68                          0.21
CALIFORNIA ST 3/1/2022 633,452.80                      604,980.60                          0.21
CALIFORNIA ST PUB WKS BRD LEASE REV 12/1/2021 284,204.69                      272,109.68                          0.51
CALIFORNIA ST PUB WKS BRD LEASE REV 12/1/2021 312,863.98                      299,549.31                          0.51
CALIFORNIA ST PUB WKS BRD LEASE REV 12/1/2021 333,842.71                      331,562.16                          0.51
CALIFORNIA ST UNIV REV 11/1/2023 330,000.00                      329,584.20                          0.53
CALIFORNIA ST UNIV REV 11/1/2023 760,000.00                      759,042.40                          0.53
CALIFORNIA STATEWIDE CMNTYS DEV AUTH REV 2/1/2023 265,000.00                      264,769.45                          0.40
CALIFORNIA STATEWIDE CMNTYS DEV AUTH REV 2/1/2023 610,000.00                      609,469.30                          0.40
CONTRA COSTA CALIF CMNTY COLLEGE DIST 8/1/2021 300,000.00                      300,381.00                          0.23
CONTRA COSTA CALIF CMNTY COLLEGE DIST 8/1/2021 700,000.00                      700,889.00                          0.23
EL SEGUNDO CALIF PENSION OBLIG 7/1/2023 415,000.00                      414,306.95                          0.46
EL SEGUNDO CALIF PENSION OBLIG 7/1/2023 970,000.00                      968,380.10                          0.46
LOS ALTOS CALIF SCH DIST 10/1/2024 1,065,466.50                   1,061,025.00                       0.67
LOS ALTOS CALIF SCH DIST 10/1/2024 2,486,088.50                   2,475,725.00                       0.67
LOS ANGELES CALIF MUN IMPT CORP LEASE REV 11/1/2025 480,000.00                      475,051.20                          1.19
LOS ANGELES CALIF MUN IMPT CORP LEASE REV 11/1/2025 1,120,000.00                   1,108,452.80                       1.19
LOS ANGELES CALIF MUN IMPT CORP LEASE REV 11/1/2022 305,868.00                      309,771.00                          0.54
LOS ANGELES CALIF MUN IMPT CORP LEASE REV 11/1/2022 713,692.00                      722,799.00                          0.54
MASSACHUSETTS (COMMONWEALTH OF) 5/1/2022 354,008.00                      347,136.60                          0.12
MASSACHUSETTS (COMMONWEALTH OF) 5/1/2022 832,960.00                      816,792.00                          0.12
OAKLAND-ALAMEDA CNTY CALIF COLISEUM AUTH LEASE REV 2/1/2023 317,532.00                      312,972.00                          0.60
OAKLAND-ALAMEDA CNTY CALIF COLISEUM AUTH LEASE REV 2/1/2023 740,908.00                      730,268.00                          0.60
PALM DESERT CALIF REDEV AGY SUCCESSOR AGY TAX ALLO 10/1/2022 330,661.50                      333,810.75                          0.58
PALM DESERT CALIF REDEV AGY SUCCESSOR AGY TAX ALLO 10/1/2022 783,413.40                      790,874.70                          0.58
RIVERSIDE CALIF UNI SCH DIST 2/1/2022 230,000.00                      232,159.70                          0.20
RIVERSIDE CALIF UNI SCH DIST 2/1/2022 520,000.00                      524,882.80                          0.20
RIVERSIDE CNTY CALIF PENSION OBLIG 2/15/2023 415,000.00                      427,263.25                          0.53
RIVERSIDE CNTY CALIF PENSION OBLIG 2/15/2023 960,000.00                      988,368.00                          0.53
SACRAMENTO CNTY CALIF SANTN DIST FING AUTH REV 12/1/2023 450,000.00                      450,981.00                          0.67
SACRAMENTO CNTY CALIF SANTN DIST FING AUTH REV 12/1/2023 1,050,000.00                   1,052,289.00                       0.67
SAN BERNARDINO CALIF CMNTY COLLEGE DIST 8/1/2024 270,000.00                      273,094.20                          0.57
SAN BERNARDINO CALIF CMNTY COLLEGE DIST 8/1/2024 620,000.00                      627,105.20                          0.57
SAN DIEGO CALIF CMNTY COLLEGE DIST 8/1/2021 385,000.00                      385,558.25                          0.25
SAN DIEGO CALIF CMNTY COLLEGE DIST 8/1/2021 900,000.00                      901,305.00                          0.25
SAN DIEGO CALIF PUB FACS FING AUTH LEASE REV 10/15/2021 395,000.00                      397,986.20                          0.40
SAN DIEGO CALIF PUB FACS FING AUTH LEASE REV 10/15/2021 930,000.00                      937,030.80                          0.40
SAN FRANCISCO CALIF CITY & CNTY PUB UTILS COMMN WT 11/1/2022 190,000.00                      194,037.50                          0.35
SAN FRANCISCO CALIF CITY & CNTY PUB UTILS COMMN WT 11/1/2022 440,000.00                      449,350.00                          0.35
SAN FRANCISCO CALIF CITY & CNTY ARPTS COMMN INTL A 5/1/2022 710,000.00                      726,699.20                          0.23
SAN FRANCISCO CALIF CITY & CNTY ARPTS COMMN INTL A 5/1/2022 1,640,000.00                   1,678,572.80                       0.23
SANTA BARBARA CNTY CALIF SOLID WASTE SYS REV CTFS 12/1/2021 115,000.00                      116,358.15                          0.48
SANTA BARBARA CNTY CALIF SOLID WASTE SYS REV CTFS 12/1/2021 260,000.00                      263,070.60                          0.48
SEMITROPIC IMPT DIST SEMITROPIC WTR STORAGE DIST C 12/1/2022 497,505.60                      491,649.60                          0.45
SEMITROPIC IMPT DIST SEMITROPIC WTR STORAGE DIST C 12/1/2022 1,140,117.00                   1,126,697.00                       0.45
SOUTHERN CALIF PUB PWR AUTH PWR PROJ REV 7/1/2023 825,000.00                      825,849.75                          0.48
SOUTHERN CALIF PUB PWR AUTH PWR PROJ REV 7/1/2023 1,910,000.00                   1,911,967.30                       0.48
UNIV CALIF REGTS MED CTR POOLED REV 5/15/2022 478,342.50                      476,504.80                          0.30
UNIV CALIF REGTS MED CTR POOLED REV 5/15/2022 1,099,170.00                   1,094,947.20                       0.30
UNIVERSITY CALIF REVS 5/15/2022 582,035.80                      595,207.60                          0.28
UNIVERSITY CALIF REVS 5/15/2022 1,344,703.40                   1,375,134.80                       0.28
UPPER SANTA CLARA VY JT PWRS AUTH CALIF REV 8/1/2022 740,000.00                      742,871.20                          0.17
UPPER SANTA CLARA VY JT PWRS AUTH CALIF REV 8/1/2022 1,720,000.00                   1,726,673.60                       0.17
VALLEJO CALIF WTR REV 5/1/2023 250,000.00                      253,217.50                          0.76
VALLEJO CALIF WTR REV 5/1/2023 590,000.00                      597,593.30                          0.76
CALIFORNIA EARTHQUAKE AUTH REV 7/1/2022 250,000.00                      252,482.50                          0.33
CALIFORNIA EARTHQUAKE AUTH REV 7/1/2022 565,000.00                      570,610.45                          0.33
CALIFORNIA ST DEPT WTR RES CENT VY PROJ REV 12/1/2022 190,000.00                      190,454.10                          0.18
CALIFORNIA ST DEPT WTR RES CENT VY PROJ REV 12/1/2022 435,000.00                      436,039.65                          0.18
CALIFORNIA ST DEPT WTR RES CENT VY PROJ REV 12/1/2023 70,000.00                        70,044.10                            0.39
CALIFORNIA ST DEPT WTR RES CENT VY PROJ REV 12/1/2023 160,000.00                      160,100.80                          0.39
CALIFORNIA ST UNIV REV 11/1/2023 300,000.00                      299,622.00                          0.53
CALIFORNIA ST UNIV REV 11/1/2023 700,000.00                      699,118.00                          0.53
CONNECTICUT ST 7/1/2023 70,417.90                        72,204.30                            0.42
CONNECTICUT ST 7/1/2023 155,925.35                      159,880.95                          0.42
FLORIDA ST BRD ADMIN FIN CORP REV 7/1/2025 310,000.00                      312,979.10                          1.01
FLORIDA ST BRD ADMIN FIN CORP REV 7/1/2025 715,000.00                      721,871.15                          1.01
LOS ANGELES CALIF CMNTY COLLEGE DIST 8/1/2023 230,000.00                      230,333.50                          0.37
LOS ANGELES CALIF CMNTY COLLEGE DIST 8/1/2023 530,000.00                      530,768.50                          0.37
MARYLAND ST 8/1/2023 545,000.00                      546,084.55                          0.31
MARYLAND ST 8/1/2023 1,580,000.00                   1,583,144.20                       0.31
MISSISSIPPI ST 11/1/2023 280,000.00                      280,081.20                          0.41
MISSISSIPPI ST 11/1/2023 645,000.00                      645,187.05                          0.41
NEW JERSEY ST TPK AUTH TPK REV 1/1/2025 255,000.00                      255,086.70                          0.89
NEW JERSEY ST TPK AUTH TPK REV 1/1/2025 595,000.00                      595,202.30                          0.89
NEW YORK ST URBAN DEV CORP REV 3/15/2023 275,000.00                      275,310.75                          0.41
NEW YORK ST URBAN DEV CORP REV 3/15/2023 640,000.00                      640,723.20                          0.41
NEW YORK ST URBAN DEV CORP REV 3/15/2024 845,000.00                      844,264.85                          0.65
NEW YORK ST URBAN DEV CORP REV 3/15/2024 1,945,000.00                   1,943,307.85                       0.65
PORT AUTH N Y & N J 7/1/2023 675,000.00                      683,592.75                          0.45
PORT AUTH N Y & N J 7/1/2023 450,000.00                      455,728.50                          0.45
PORT AUTH N Y & N J 7/1/2023 1,101,416.70                   1,108,939.35                       0.45

SUB-TOTAL 121,392,836.49 122,216,620.13

7



Orange County Transportation Authority
Portfolio Listing

As of June 30, 2021

DESCRIPTION MATURITY DATE BOOK VALUE MARKET VALUE YIELD
Variable & Floating Rate

JPMORGAN CHASE & CO 6/1/2025 865,000.00                      863,339.20                          0.79
JPMORGAN CHASE & CO 6/1/2025 2,308,757.15                   2,300,574.40                       0.79
JPMORGAN CHASE & CO 6/1/2025 1,151,840.00                   1,147,792.00                       0.79
JDOT 2021 A3 9/15/2025 1,454,720.35                   1,453,123.05                       0.42
TLOT-21A-A3 4/20/2024 2,344,726.34                   2,344,725.64                       0.00
BMW US CAPITAL LLC 4/1/2024 2,410,000.00                   2,430,629.60                       0.27
BANK OF AMERICA CORP 12/20/2023 2,879,411.20                   2,839,599.00                       0.52
BANK OF AMERICA CORP 10/24/2024 2,256,637.50                   2,259,360.00                       0.63
BANK OF AMERICA CORP 10/24/2024 802,424.00                      803,328.00                          0.63
CITIGROUP INC 5/1/2025 2,515,000.00                   2,520,985.70                       0.85
FHMS K-048 A2 6/25/2025 180,617.00                      179,680.05                          0.86
FHMS K-730 AM 1/25/2025 3,800,660.16                   3,748,942.50                       1.05
FN AL3382 3/1/2023 724,279.31                      729,228.41                          0.78
GOLDMAN SACHS GROUP INC 11/17/2023 3,560,000.00                   3,561,068.00                       0.60
GOLDMAN SACHS GROUP INC 11/17/2023 3,604,680.00                   3,601,080.00                       0.60
JPMORGAN CHASE & CO 12/5/2024 964,932.50                      944,413.75                          0.72
JPMORGAN CHASE & CO 12/5/2024 3,132,832.40                   3,065,297.20                       0.72
JPMORGAN CHASE & CO 12/5/2024 3,961,872.00                   3,885,588.00                       0.72
MORGAN STANLEY 11/10/2023 5,725,000.00                   5,732,213.50                       0.47
MORGAN STANLEY 11/10/2023 1,801,008.00                   1,802,268.00                       0.47
PNC BANK NA 2/24/2023 4,045,000.00                   4,052,564.15                       0.20
STATE STREET CORP 3/30/2023 1,750,000.00                   1,782,725.00                       0.33
TRUIST FINANCIAL CORP 6/9/2025 3,685,000.00                   3,689,274.60                       0.41
WELLS FARGO & CO 6/2/2024 6,140,580.00                   6,128,340.00                       0.53
BANK OF AMERICA CORP 10/22/2025 658,281.25                      653,812.50                          1.03
BANK OF AMERICA CORP 10/22/2025 1,527,212.50                   1,516,845.00                       1.03
BANK OF AMERICA CORP 10/24/2024 645,000.00                      647,683.20                          0.63
BANK OF AMERICA CORP 10/24/2024 1,510,000.00                   1,516,281.60                       0.63
BANK OF AMERICA CORP 4/22/2025 525,000.00                      526,685.25                          0.83
BANK OF AMERICA CORP 4/22/2025 1,220,000.00                   1,223,916.20                       0.83
CITIGROUP INC 10/30/2024 625,000.00                      626,562.50                          0.70
CITIGROUP INC 10/30/2024 1,440,000.00                   1,443,600.00                       0.70
CITIGROUP INC 5/1/2025 185,000.00                      185,440.30                          0.85
CITIGROUP INC 5/1/2025 430,000.00                      431,023.40                          0.85
FNA 2014-M8 A2 6/25/2024 618,911.98                      606,481.88                          0.55
FNA 2014-M8 A2 6/25/2024 1,425,922.21                   1,397,284.30                       0.55
FNA 2018-M5 A2 9/25/2021 7,858.93                          7,713.82                              0.73
FNA 2018-M5 A2 9/25/2021 18,468.48                        18,127.49                            0.73
FHMS K-029 A2 2/25/2023 1,078,080.08                   1,074,650.50                       0.37
FHMS K-029 A2 2/25/2023 544,232.81                      542,542.00                          0.37
FHMS K-029 A2 2/25/2023 1,172,193.75                   1,168,552.00                       0.37
FHMS K-029 A2 2/25/2023 820,581.64                      824,246.50                          0.37
FHMS K-029 A2 2/25/2023 1,797,539.45                   1,763,261.50                       0.37
FHMS K-031 A2 4/25/2023 1,139,967.97                   1,122,301.60                       0.39
FHMS K-031 A2 4/25/2023 2,631,514.84                   2,590,733.60                       0.39
FHMS K-032 A2 5/25/2023 1,149,819.14                   1,188,093.30                       0.42
FHMS K-032 A2 5/25/2023 2,655,776.95                   2,744,180.10                       0.42
FHMS K-033 A2 7/25/2023 1,143,989.06                   1,143,115.70                       0.43
FHMS K-033 A2 7/25/2023 2,665,809.38                   2,663,774.20                       0.43
FHMS K-I05 A 7/25/2024 342,963.97                      343,523.00                          0.22
FHMS K-I05 A 7/25/2024 800,249.26                      801,553.67                          0.22
FHMS Q-015 A 8/25/2024 690,000.00                      690,000.00                          0.22
FHMS Q-015 A 8/25/2024 1,609,760.34                   1,609,760.34                       0.22
FIRST REPUBLIC BANK 2/12/2024 150,000.00                      153,256.50                          0.56
FIRST REPUBLIC BANK 2/12/2024 350,000.00                      357,598.50                          0.56
GOLDMAN SACHS GROUP INC 6/5/2023 657,292.80                      654,208.00                          0.51
GOLDMAN SACHS GROUP INC 6/5/2023 1,519,989.60                   1,512,856.00                       0.51
GOLDMAN SACHS GROUP INC 3/8/2024 635,000.00                      636,136.65                          0.57
GOLDMAN SACHS GROUP INC 3/8/2024 1,480,000.00                   1,482,649.20                       0.57
GOLDMAN SACHS GROUP INC 10/31/2022 474,534.50                      476,087.75                          0.27
GOLDMAN SACHS GROUP INC 10/31/2022 1,098,922.00                   1,102,519.00                       0.27
JPMORGAN CHASE & CO 9/16/2024 350,000.00                      350,203.00                          0.65
JPMORGAN CHASE & CO 9/16/2024 810,000.00                      810,469.80                          0.65
JPMORGAN CHASE & CO 2/16/2025 275,000.00                      273,498.50                          0.70
JPMORGAN CHASE & CO 2/16/2025 640,000.00                      636,505.60                          0.70
JPMORGAN CHASE & CO 3/16/2024 640,000.00                      641,945.60                          0.57
JPMORGAN CHASE & CO 3/16/2024 1,470,000.00                   1,474,468.80                       0.57
JPMORGAN CHASE & CO 6/1/2025 405,000.00                      404,222.40                          0.79
JPMORGAN CHASE & CO 6/1/2025 930,000.00                      928,214.40                          0.79
JDOT 2021 A3 9/15/2025 709,863.54                      709,084.10                          0.42
JDOT 2021 A3 9/15/2025 1,639,684.79                   1,637,884.40                       0.42
KEYBANK NA 1/3/2024 440,000.00                      440,066.00                          0.40
KEYBANK NA 1/3/2024 1,010,000.00                   1,010,151.50                       0.40
KEYBANK NA 6/14/2024 615,000.00                      615,467.40                          0.39
KEYBANK NA 6/14/2024 1,430,000.00                   1,431,086.80                       0.39
MORGAN STANLEY 10/21/2025 185,000.00                      184,931.55                          0.86
MORGAN STANLEY 10/21/2025 430,000.00                      429,840.90                          0.86
MORGAN STANLEY 11/10/2023 350,000.00                      350,441.00                          0.47
MORGAN STANLEY 11/10/2023 810,000.00                      811,020.60                          0.47
MORGAN STANLEY 1/25/2024 550,000.00                      549,719.50                          0.54
MORGAN STANLEY 1/25/2024 1,290,000.00                   1,289,342.10                       0.54
MORGAN STANLEY 4/5/2024 265,000.00                      265,556.50                          0.61
MORGAN STANLEY 4/5/2024 610,000.00                      611,281.00                          0.61
PNC BANK NA 12/9/2022 490,000.00                      493,542.70                          0.39
PNC BANK NA 12/9/2022 1,150,000.00                   1,158,314.50                       0.39
TRUIST BANK 8/2/2024 1,283,244.00                   1,279,416.00                       0.50
TRUIST BANK 8/2/2024 2,994,236.00                   2,985,304.00                       0.50
WELLS FARGO BANK NA 9/9/2022 600,000.00                      601,998.00                          0.34
WELLS FARGO BANK NA 9/9/2022 1,390,000.00                   1,394,628.70                       0.34
WELLS FARGO & CO 10/30/2025 657,237.50                      653,918.75                          0.99
WELLS FARGO & CO 10/30/2025 1,524,791.00                   1,517,091.50                       0.99
WELLS FARGO & CO 5/19/2025 135,000.00                      134,704.35                          0.80
WELLS FARGO & CO 5/19/2025 320,000.00                      319,299.20                          0.80
BANK OF AMERICA CORP 3/5/2024 319,278.00                      315,204.00                          0.52
BANK OF AMERICA CORP 3/5/2024 744,982.00                      735,476.00                          0.52
BANK OF AMERICA CORP 5/19/2024 430,000.00                      437,340.10                          0.57
BANK OF AMERICA CORP 5/19/2024 995,000.00                      1,011,984.65                       0.57
BANK OF AMERICA CORP 4/22/2025 255,000.00                      255,818.55                          0.83
BANK OF AMERICA CORP 4/22/2025 595,000.00                      596,909.95                          0.83
CARMX 2020-3 A3 3/17/2025 234,959.72                      236,109.20                          0.33
CARMX 2020-3 A3 3/17/2025 539,907.45                      542,548.80                          0.33
CITIGROUP INC 10/30/2024 760,000.00                      761,900.00                          0.70
CITIGROUP INC 10/30/2024 1,740,000.00                   1,744,350.00                       0.70
CITIGROUP INC 5/1/2025 85,000.00                        85,202.30                            0.85
CITIGROUP INC 5/1/2025 205,000.00                      205,487.90                          0.85
CITIGROUP INC 11/4/2022 95,000.00                        95,596.60                            0.48
CITIGROUP INC 11/4/2022 215,000.00                      216,350.20                          0.48
GMALT 2020-3 A3 8/21/2023 189,981.80                      190,410.40                          0.21
GMALT 2020-3 A3 8/21/2023 434,958.33                      435,939.60                          0.21
GMCAR 2021-1 A3 10/16/2025 369,941.10                      370,196.10                          0.33
GMALT 2021-2 A3 5/20/2024 479,924.64                      479,726.40                          0.38
GMALT 2021-2 A3 5/20/2024 1,109,825.73                   1,109,367.30                       0.38

8



Orange County Transportation Authority
Portfolio Listing

As of June 30, 2021

DESCRIPTION MATURITY DATE BOOK VALUE MARKET VALUE YIELD
GOLDMAN SACHS GROUP INC 11/17/2023 510,000.00                      510,153.00                          0.60
GOLDMAN SACHS GROUP INC 11/17/2023 1,165,000.00                   1,165,349.50                       0.60
JPMORGAN CHASE & CO 6/1/2024 475,000.00                      484,367.00                          0.84
JPMORGAN CHASE & CO 6/1/2024 1,100,000.00                   1,121,692.00                       0.84
JPMORGAN CHASE & CO 9/16/2024 90,000.00                        90,052.20                            0.65
JPMORGAN CHASE & CO 9/16/2024 210,000.00                      210,121.80                          0.65
JPMORGAN CHASE & CO 2/16/2025 245,000.00                      243,662.30                          0.70
JPMORGAN CHASE & CO 2/16/2025 570,000.00                      566,887.80                          0.70
JPMORGAN CHASE & CO 3/16/2024 305,000.00                      305,927.20                          0.57
JPMORGAN CHASE & CO 3/16/2024 695,000.00                      697,112.80                          0.57
JPMORGAN CHASE & CO 6/1/2025 240,000.00                      239,539.20                          0.79
JPMORGAN CHASE & CO 6/1/2025 545,000.00                      543,953.60                          0.79
MORGAN STANLEY 1/25/2024 465,000.00                      464,762.85                          0.54
MORGAN STANLEY 1/25/2024 1,070,000.00                   1,069,454.30                       0.54
MORGAN STANLEY 4/5/2024 75,000.00                        75,157.50                            0.61
MORGAN STANLEY 4/5/2024 175,000.00                      175,367.50                          0.61
NALT 2020-B A3 10/16/2023 129,986.62                      130,304.20                          0.21
NALT 2020-B A3 10/16/2023 294,969.65                      295,690.30                          0.21
TLOT-21A-A3 4/20/2024 329,961.49                      329,961.39                          0.00
TLOT-21A-A3 4/20/2024 754,911.89                      754,911.67                          0.00

SUB-TOTAL 145,152,496.06 145,007,162.10

Supranationals
INTERNATIONAL BANK FOR RECONSTRUCTION AND DEVELOPM 3/19/2024 5,349,700.00 5,274,750.00 0.46
INTERNATIONAL BANK FOR RECONSTRUCTION AND DEVELOPM 11/24/2023 3,043,442.50 3,040,362.00 0.38
INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 4/14/2022 1,934,593.40 1,953,995.69 0.17
INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 4/14/2022 1,177,726.00 1,189,608.78 0.17
INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 4/14/2022 811,863.00 820,070.73 0.17
INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 9/14/2022 10,484,250.00 10,696,108.50 0.20
INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 5/24/2023 789,731.40 793,341.70 0.28
INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 5/24/2023 1,809,384.60 1,817,656.30 0.28
INTERNATIONAL BANK FOR RECONSTRUCTION AND DEVELOPM 11/24/2023 803,269.25 802,456.20 0.38
INTERNATIONAL BANK FOR RECONSTRUCTION AND DEVELOPM 11/24/2023 1,841,033.25 1,839,169.80 0.38
INTERNATIONAL BANK FOR RECONSTRUCTION AND DEVELOPM 4/20/2023 868,199.10 867,964.20 0.25
INTERNATIONAL BANK FOR RECONSTRUCTION AND DEVELOPM 4/20/2023 1,990,870.35 1,990,331.70 0.25

SUB-TOTAL 30,904,062.85 31,085,815.60

SHORT-TERM PORTFOLIO - TOTAL 1,634,855,142.94$          1,622,884,441.96$              

BOND PROCEEDS PORTFOLIO

Bond Proceeds
BNY MELLON-MONEY MARKET FUND N/A 10,553.08                        10,553.08                            0.06%

BOND PROCEEDS PORTFOLIO-TOTAL 10,553.08$                      10,553.08$                          

9



Orange County Transportation Authority
Portfolio Listing

As of June 30, 2021

DEBT SERVICE RESERVE FUNDS

DESCRIPTION MATURITY DATE BOOK VALUE REQUIRED AMOUNT YIELD

91 EXPRESS LANES 2013 BONDS 2030 10,799,437.46                     
US BANK COMMERCIAL PAPER 7/6/2021 11,490,414.08                 0.09%
FIRST AMERICAN TREAS OBLIGATIONS N/A 67.59                               0.01%

91 EXPRESS LANES 2013 BONDS - OPERATING & MAINTENANCE RESERVES 13,000,000.00                     
BANK DEPOSITS N/A 218,920.72                      
OPERATING RESERVE 7/13/2021 3,098,667.86                   0.13%
MAINTENANCE RESERVE 7/13/2021 10,495,487.92                 0.13%

DEBT SERVICE RESERVE FUNDS - TOTAL 25,303,558.17$               

Book Value Market Value

TOTAL PORTFOLIO 1,996,169,782.55$          1,984,199,081.57$              

10


	TOC Agenda Cover
	Agenda  8.10.21
	Presentation Items (2).pdf
	Presentation Items
	Blank


